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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER - 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399~ 150

991056 -TX
APPLICATION FORM
for
AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA
INSTRUCTIONS

3. Uunmnh“brn:hmﬁht‘wﬂlwlﬂmm”

4, If you have questions about completh. % the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Com mission
Division of Communications, Certification % Compliance Section
2540 Shumard Oak Bouls vard 4
Tallahassee, Florida 32379-0866 |
(904) 413-6600

5. Once completed, submit the original and si « (6) copies of this form along with
a non-refundable application fee of $250 naade payable to the Florida Public
Service Commission at the above address.

Theck received with filing snd
forwarded 10 Fiscal for deposit.
Fiscal to lorward a copy of chack
to RAR with proof of deposit.
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This is an application for (check one):

(X)  Original authority (new company)

()  Approval of transfer (to another certificated company)
Example, a certificated company purchases an
existing company and desires to retain the original
certificate authority.

() Approval of assignment of existing certificate (10 a noncertificated company)
Example, a non-certificated company purchases an
existing company and desires to retain the
certificate of authority rather than apply for a new
certificate.

()  Approval for transfer of control (to another certificated company)

Example, a company purchases 51% of a
certificated company. The Commission must

approve the new controlling entity.
Name of applicant:
BellSouth RSE, Inc.
Name under which applicant will be doing business (d/t."s):
BellSouth BSE, Inc.
If applicable, please provide proof of fictitious name (d/b/a):
Fictitious name registration number:  Not applicabis

A. National mailing address including street name, number, post office box, city, state,
zip code, and phone number.

Suite 500

1100 Peachtree Street, N.E,
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4599
(404) 249-2080

B. Florida mailing address including street name, number, post office box, city, state, zip
code, anc. phone number.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 2
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




c/o Akerman, Senterfitt & Eidson, P.A.

216 South Monroe Street

Suite 200

Post Office Box 10555

Tallshassee, Florida 32301-1859 (street address)
32302-2555 (P.O. Box)

6. Structure of organization:

( ) Individual ( ) Corporation

(X) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership
( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership
( ) Joint Venture ( ) Other, Please explain)

g5 If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venture, please give name, title and
address of each legal entity.

Not applicable.

8. State whether any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have
previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony
or of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. If so,
please explain.

Neither any of the officers, directors nor any « f the ten largest stockholders of the
Applicant is covered by any of the foregoing.

9. If incorporated, please provide proof from the Floridi Secretary of State that the applicant
has authority to operate in Florida.
Corporate charter number: F97000003920
For the Commission's convenience, attached to this Application as Exhibits O -

are the certificate of the Department of State evidencing the
Applicant's qualification to do business in the State of Florida.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 3
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




10.

12.

13.

14.

Plcase provide the name, title, address, telephone number, internct address, and facsimile
number for the person serving as ongoing liaison with the “ommission, and if different,
the liaison responsible for this application.

Ongoing liaison:

Robert C. Scheye Harry M. Lightsey, IlI

Vice President - Supplier Vice President - General Counsel,
Development and External Affairs and Secretary
Business Relations BellSouth BSE, Inc.
(efTective no earlier than 11/1/97) Suite 500

BellSouth BSE, Inc. 1100 Peachtree Street, N.E.

Suite 500 Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4599
1100 Peachtree Street, N.E. (404) 249-2080 (phone)

Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4599 (404) 249-2088 (facsimile)

(404) 420-8327 (phone) Internet address:

(404) 420-0031 (facsimile) Lightsey. Harry @ bsc.beilsouth.net
Internet address;

Bob.Scheye2 @bridge.bellsouth.com

Please list other states in which the applicant is currently providing or has applied to
provide local exchange or alternative local exchange service.

Applicant is not currently providing local exchange or altemative local exchange

service in any other state. Applicast has applied to provide local exchange or
alternative local exchange service in Inc'ana, Hlinois and Ohio.

Has the applicant been denied certification in any ¢ ther stale? If so, please list the state
and reason for denial.

The applicant has not been denied certifical on in any other state.
Have penalties been imposed against the applicant in any other state? If so, please list the
state and reason for penalty.

No penalties have been imposcd against the applicant in any other state.

Please indicate how a customer can file a service complaint with your company.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 4
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




BellSouth BSE, Inc. will provide customers with a toll free 800 number or similar
access at no charge to end user custome. ~ The method of access will be included
on customer bills and bill inserts. The i cess number will be available 24 hours

per day, 7 days per week.

L' |
.

15.  Please complete and file a price list in accordance with Commission Rule 25-4-285.

Prior to providing service, the applicant will file and maintain a current price list
with the Commission which will clearly set forth the information required by
Commission Rule 25-24.285. For the Commission’s convenience, attached as
Exhibit © - 15 is an illustrative price list in substantially the form of the price list
to be filed by Applicant as stated above.

16.  Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has the
following capabilities to provide alternative local exchange service in Florida.

A.  Financial capability.
Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies:

The application ghould contain the applicant’s financial statements for the most recent 3
years, including:

1. the balance sheet
2, income statement
3, statement of retained eamings.

Further, a written explanation, which can include supporting documentation, regarding
the following should be provided to show financial capability.

1. Please provide documentation that the applicant Las sufficient financial capability to
provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be served.

2. Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to

3. Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability to
meet its lease or ownership obligations.

FORM PSC'CMU 8 (11/95) 5
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and
descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions.

If available, the financial statements should be audited financial state ..ents.

If the Applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall be so stated. The
unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the Applicant’s chicf executive
officer and chief. The signatures should attest that the financial statements are true and
correct

BellSouth BSE, Inc. is a start-up company. Thus, the availability of historical
audited financial information is limited. Set forth on the attached Exhibit O -
16A(1) and A(2) are a Preliminary Projected Income Statement and Balance
Sheet, respectively, for the Company, covering the period from 1997 through
2002. The Applicant is a wholly owned subsidiary of BellSouth BSE Holdings,
Inc., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of BellSouth Corporation. The
Applicant is relying on the financial strength of BellSouth Corporation as
represented by the consolidated financial statements contained in the Annual
Report for 1996 (Exhibit O -16(AX3), attached hereto) and Securities and
Exchange Commission 10-K Report for 1996 (Exhibit © - 16A(4), attached
hereto).

B. Managerial capability.

The Applicant’s local exchange operations will be conducted under the direction
of a highly skilled management team. Relevant diographies of the company's
current management are attached as Exhibit Q - 19 B,

. Technical capability.

(If you will be providing local intra-exchange switched telecommunications
service, then state how you will provide access 10 911 emergency services. If the
nature of the emergency 911 service access .nd funding mechanism is not
equivalent to that provided by the local exchange companies in the areas to be
served, describe in detail the difference.)

See Exhibit O - 16 B for a description of the capabilities of the Applicant’s senior
management team.

BellSouth BSE, Inc. is technically qualified to provide local exchange services in
Florida. The Applicant will utilize the facilities of the incumbent local exchange

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/98) 6
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.5.



carriers (“ILEC's"), competitive access providers, where available, and its own
facilities, as appropriate, to provide local exchange telephone and switched access
service. The various features and functions available to customers of the ILECs
will initially be available to the Applicant’s customers througt wesold services, It
is Applicant’s intention to augment its service offerings in the uture, adding new
services as they become available from the ILECs and as the ." pplicant uses its
own facilities to provide services. When the Applicant offers 1ocal exchange
services and exchange access services over its own facilities, it will provide access
to specific types of services, including two-way lines, trinks, direct
inward/outward dialing options, basic custom calling features, and wireless
services,

Because BellSouth BSE, Inc. will initially offer resold service of the ILECs, it will
rely on the ILECs to provide access to 911 emergency service. The Applicant is
familiar and will comply with all rules and regulations of the Commission
pertaining to 911 emergency services and will ensure that such services will be
readily accessible to its customers in Florida.

Except for those territories served by small local exchange companies subject to
camings based regulation, as provided in Section 364.337(1), Florida statutes,
BellSouth BSE, Inc. will provide dial tone access to the public switched
telecommunications network statewide.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 7
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.



AEFIDAVIT

By my signature below, I the undersigned Ticer, attest to the
of the information contained in this applivation and attached
documents and that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial
ability, and financial capability to provide alternative local exchange
service in the State of Florida. 1 have read the foregoing and declare that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct.
1 attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree
to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules
and orders.

Further, I am aware that pursuant to Chapter 837,06, Florida
Statutes, "Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing
with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his
official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree,
punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083."

Official; 8/13/97
gnature Date
Title: Vice President - General Counsel, (404) 249-1080
Telephone Number

External Affairs and Secretar

Address: 1100 Peachtree Street, N.E.

Suite 500

Atlanta, Ceorgia 30309-4599
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EXHIBIT Q - 9{#)

| certify from the records of this office that BELLSOUTH BSE, INC., is a
corporation organized under the laws of Delaware, authorized to transact
business in the Stata of Florida, qualified on July 25, 1887.
The document number of this corporation is F87000003820.

| further certify that said corporation has paid all fees and penalties due this nifice
through December 31, 1997, and its status is active.

| further certify that sc!d corporation has not filed a Certificate of Withdrawal,

@tven ur.der mp hand and the
Sreat Seal of the State of Florida,
at Tallabassee, the Capital, this the

First bavol August, 1997
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| certify the attached is a true and cormect copy of the complete file of
BELLSOUTH BSE, INC., a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware,
authorized to transact business In the State of Florida, as shown by the records
of this office.
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The document number of this corporation is F§7900003820.
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Giten under my hand and the
Grent Seal of ﬁ:}inir of Florida,

at @ ussee, the Qapitol, this the
rst day of August, 1887
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AUTHORIZATION :

COST LIMIT :

ORDER DATE : July 16, 1997

ORDER TIME :

9:50 AM
ORDER NO. 464304-005
CUSTOMER NO: 4323887
CUSTOMER: Ms. Joyce Irvine

0721000 0032

464304 4323887

$ 70.00

-

S00002247625--8

Bellsouth Enterprises, Inc.

Suite 1800
1155 Peachtree Street,

N. E.
Atlanta, GA 30309-3610

BELLSOUTH BESE,

XXXX QUALIFICATION (TYPE: CO)

PLEASE RETURN THE FOLLOWING AS PRUOF OF FILING:

CERTIFIED COPY
XX PLAIN STAMPED COPY

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

CONTACT PERSON: Stephanie Stscherban
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APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION FOR AUTHORIZATION
y TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN FLORIDA

IN gauruwrgig?arﬂ SECTION 607.1503, FL¢ UDA STATUTES, THE FOLLOWING IS

SU. ISTER A F

f : the word - ey 3 N o
i I clearly -
narural PerSon O PATRESAID i o 0 Continel i the mas il DA i i 4 corporaion intead o

Applied g, 5

2. _ Delaware 3
WWW,W

=M e
4. _July 16, 1997 g Perpetual T3 T [~
ear corp. o

"perpeal”) 4
=

[=]

bS]
6. __Has not transacted business in Florida. 25 9

7. —Suite 1800, 1155 Peachtree Street, «.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-3610 -
mailing address) —

8. Telecommunications and other cervices
mm;ﬁmmﬁ——

9, Nmmmﬁmummwﬂwu (P.O. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT

3

1

1S

\

)
Name: The Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc.

Office Address: 1201 Hays Strest
Tallahassae , Florida, _ 32331

10. Registered agent’s acceptance:

Ha been named as regisiered and to accept service of process for the above stated
m?ndmﬂl:lﬁt ﬂ?:mwm:h mﬁwﬁmu
ar?uudw agree to act in this capacity. | qmmmmgmm iaug
m:ulﬁnuﬁmrﬂmﬂmndm:

chmmt%g“ tion as. I.mufqm

By1
(Registered agents ngnblure)

I1. Attached is a certificate of existence authenticated, not more
mnﬂumwmummmoum the State or ovher
offic h-mm;rormmmmmzzmm law of which t is




12. WWﬁOMWMM{SMMDNLY- P. 0. Box
A, DWM&-W—P.D.MNOTW}
Chairman: _ See Attachment

Address;

Vice Chairman:

Address:

Director:
Address:

Treasurer:

Hﬂ‘l‘l:ll’ » you may attach an addendum to the application listing additional

%ﬁ;ﬁmﬂuu — =

Hubert H. Ho ‘Fiu T
m




BELLSOUTH BSE, INC,
ATTACHMENT TO APPLICATIONS | 2R AUTHORITY

DIRECTORS

Earle Mauldin
Business:  Suite 1000
1100 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4599
Residence: 5425 Chelsen Wood Drive
Duluth, Georgia 30138
DOB: 12/20/40
SSN: 251-68-0717

QFFICERS

John M. Doscher, President
Business:  Suite SHO1
1100 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4589
Residence: 3127 Vinings Ridge Drive
Atlanta, Georgia 30339
DOB: 06/15/44
SSN: 551-80-3145

Hubert H. Hogeman, Vice President, Secre'ary and General Counsel
Business:  Suite SHO1

1100 Peachtree Street, N.E.

Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4599
Residence: 3841 Glenhurst Drive

Smyma, Georgia 30080

(770) 432-8817
DOB: 11/07/56
SSN: 041-60-5132

Gary L. Wallon, Treasurer
Business: Suite 1925
1155 Peachtree Strea!, N.E.
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-3610
Residence: 4348 Allenhurst Dr.
Norcross, GA 30092
(770) 446-0790
DiJB: 10/01/47
S5N: 415-80-5712




Joyce Clower Irvine, Asst.

Business:  Suile 1800
1155 Peachiree Street, N.E.
Allanta, Georgia 30309-3610

Residence; 1849 Oid Jackson Rd.
Locust Grove, GA 30248
(770) 914-8103

DOB: 06/28/52

SSN: 253-02-0026




: Slldn B. Mortham, Secretary of State
BESIGNATION OF REGISTERED AGENT AND REGISTERED OFFICE FOR
ALIEN BUSINESS ORGANIZATION OR FOREIGN CORPORATION

PUSSUANT TO SECTION 607.0505, FLO.UDA STATUTES, THE UNDERSIGNED ALIEN.
B S ORGANIZATION OR FOREIGN CORPORATION SUBMITS Tiie
%mmmmmmmwmwwgm,

IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA: 1

1. _ BellSouth BSE, Inc.

2. _Delavare 3, __Applied For !
(State or country under which enaty 1s organzzed) (FEID Number, f pplicable)

Atlanta, Georgia 30309-3610

2 The Prentice~Hall Corporation System, Inec.

1201 Hays Straestc

Tallshasses, Florida 32301

8 Hubert H. Ho ice President

P T300 ®grung i oumber / above)
9. Signature of registered agent:
I hereby accept the appointment as registered gent, I am familiar with and accept the obligarions
of secrion 607.05035, Mm.

Corporation Service

T EET—— — D

THE FILING OF THIS ALIEN BUSINESS ORGANIZATION FORM WITH THE FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF STATE DOES NOT AUTHORIZE THE ABOVE REFERENCED ENTITY

TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

FILING FEE 35




' State of Delaware PAE 1

Office of the Secretary of State

T, EDWARD J, FREFL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HERERY CERTIFY "BELLSOUTH BSE, TNC."™ IS DULY
TNCORPORATED UMDER THE LAVS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS TN

2773859 8300 < . B56700Y
971240774 . 07-21-97




EXHIBIT Q - 9(B)

BELLSOUTH BSE, INC.
SECRETARY'S CERTIFIt ATE

The undersigned, Joyce Clower Irvine, Assis.ant Secretary of BellSouth BSE, !
inc., a United States corporation duly organized on the 16th day of July, 1997, and |
validly existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the "Company”), does hereby
certify:

1.  That she is a duly elected, qualified and acting Assistant Secretary of the

Company and that she has the custody of the corporate records, corporate
minutes and corporate seal.

2. Thet attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is a true, correct and complete copy of the
By-Laws of the Company which are in full force and effect on the date hereof.
No proposal for any amendment to the By-Laws of the Company Is currently
pending.

3 That she is one of the fully authorized and proper officers of such Company to
make certificates in its behalf and that she has caused this Certificate to be
executed and the seal of the Company to be hereunto appended as of the

day of August, 1997.
BELLSOUTH BSE, INC.




OF
BELLSOUTH BSE, INC.

(a Delaware corporation)
ARTICLE |

STOCKHOLDERS

Section 1. Stockholder Meetings. The annual meeting of the stockholders for
the election of Directors and for the transaction of such other business as may properly
come before the meeting shal! be held at such place, within or without the State of
Delaware, on such date and at such time as the Board of Direclors may by resolution
provide, or if the Board of Directors fails to provide, then such meeting shall be held at
the principal office of the Company at 10:00 A M. on the fourth Monday in March of
each year, or, if such date is a legal holiday, on the next succeeding business day.
The Board of Directors may specify by resolution prior to any special meeting of
stockholders held within the year that such meeting shall be in lieu of the annual
meeting.

Section 2. Special Mestings. A special meeting shall be held on the date and at
the time fixed by the directors. Special meetings shall be held at such place, within or
without the State of Delaware, as the directors may, from time to time, fix. Special
meetings may be called by the directors or by any officer instructed by the directors to

call the meeting.

Section 3. Notice; Waiver of Notice, Written notice of all meetings shall be
given, stating the place, date, and hour of the meeling and stating the place within the
city or other municipality or community at whict: the list of stockholders of the
corporation may be examined. The notice of an annual meeting shall state that the
meeting is called for the election of directors an i for the transaction of other business
which may properly come before the meeting, #.nd shall (if any other action which could
be taken at a special meeting is to be taken at such annual meeting) state the purpose
or purposes. The notice of a special meeting s1all in all instances state the purpose or
purposes for which the meeting is called. The natice of any meeting shall also include,
or be accompanied by, any additional statement s, information, or documents
prescribed by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. Except as
otherwise provided by the General Corporation Law of the Slate of Delaware, a copy of
the notice of any meeting shall be given, personally or by mail, not less than ten days
nor more than sixty days before the date of the meeting, uniess the lapse of the
prescribed period of time shall have been waived, and directed to each siockholder at
his record address or at such other address which he may have fumnished by request in
‘writing to the Secretary of the corporation. Notice by mail shall be deemed to be given
when deposited, with postage thereon prepaid, in the United States Mail. If a meeting is
adjourned to another ‘ime, not more than thirty days hence, and/or to another place,
and if an announcement of the adjourned time and/or place is made at the meeting, it
shall not be necessary to give notice of the adjoumned meeting unless the directors,
after adjournment, fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting. Notice ~eed not be
given to any stockholder who submits a written waiver of notice signed by h'm before or

EXHipi A



after the time stated therein, Attendance of a stockholder at a meeting of stockholders
shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the stockholder
attends the meeting for the express purpose of o 'ecting, at the beginning of the
meeting, to the transaction of any business becai e the meeting is not lawfully calied
or convened. Neither the business to be transact | at, nor the purpose of, any regular
or special meeting of the stockholders need be spacified in any written waiver of notice.

Section 4. Meaning of Ceriain Terms, As used herein in respect of the right to
notice of a meeting of stockholders or a waiver thereof or to participate or vote thereat
or to consent or dissent in writing in lieu of a meeting, as the case may be, the term
"share" or “shares” or "share of stock” or “shares of stock” or "stockholder” or
"stockholders"” refers to an outstanding share or shares of stock and to a holder or
holders of record of outstanding shares of stock when the corporation is authorized to
issue only one class of shares of stock, and said reference is also intended to include
any outstanding share or shares of stock and any holder or holders of record of

shares of stock of any class upon which or upon whom the certificate of
incorporation confers such rights where there are two or more classes or series of
shares of stock or upon which or upon whom the General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware confers such rights notwithstanding that the certificate of incorporation
may provide for more than one class or series of shares of stock, one or more of which
are limited or denied such rights thereunder; p-ovided, however, that no such right shall
vest in the event of an increase or a decrease in the authorized number of shares of
stock of any class or series which is otherwise denied voting rights under the provisions
of the certificate of incorporation, except as any provision of law may otherwise require.

Section 5. Quorum. The holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of stock
shall constitute a quorum at a meeting oi stockholders for the transaction of any
business. The stockholders present may aa;~urn the meeting despite the absence of a
quorum.

Section 6. Voling., Each share of stock rihall entitle the nolders thereof to one
vote. Directors shall be elected by a plurality o' the votes of the shares of stock present
in person or represented by proxy at the meeti.ig and entitied to vote on the election of
directors. Any other action shall be authorized .y a majority of the votes cast except
whers the General Corporation Law of the State »f Delaware prescribes a different
percentage of voles and/or a different axercise o' voting power, and excep® as may be
otherwise prescribed by the provisions of the certificate of incorporation and these
Bylaws. In the election of directors, and for any other action, voting need not be by
baliot.

Section 7. Proxy Representation. Every stockholder may authorize another
person or persons to act for him by proxy in all matters in which a stockholder is
entitled to participate, whether by waiving notice of any meeting, voting or participating
at a meeting, or expressing consent or dissent without a meeting. Every proxy must be
sigr ad by the stockholder or by his attomey-in-fact. No proxy shall be voted or acted
upon after eleven (11) meths from its date unless such proxy provides for a longer

E;




Mmhdmshﬂlmwﬂnltutummnmlam
:niy as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient in law to support an
kmvnuhi.pm pmxymbamd-imwm‘nmgudm:dm&muulm«ﬂt
with which It is coupled is an interest in the stock it :if or an interest in the corporation

generally.

Section 8. Conduct of Meeting. Meetings of the stockholders shall be presided
over by one of the following officers in the order of seniority and if present and acling -
the Chairman of the Board, if any, the Vice-Chairman of the Board, if any, the
President, a Vice-President, or, if none of the foregoing is in office and present and
acting, by a chairman to be chosen by the stockholders. The Secretary of the
corporation, or in his absence, an Assistant Secretary, shall act as secrelary of every
meeting, but If neither the Secrstary nor an Assistant Secretary is present the Chairman
of the meeting shall appoint a secretary of the meeting.

I - Any action required by the
wwmamsmdmmmmummmmm
meeting of stockholders, or any action which may be taken at any annual or special
meeting of stockholders, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and
without a vote, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed
by the holders of cutstanding stock having no* iess than the minimum number of votes
that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all
shares of stock entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, Prompt notice of the
taking of the corporate action withnut a meeting by less than unanimous written
consent shall be given to those stockholders who have not consented in writing. Action
taken pursuant to this paragraph sha!' be subject to the provisions of Section 228 of the
General Corporation Law of the State oi Delaware.

Section 10. Inspectors. The directors in advance of any stockhoder meeting,
may, but need not, appoint one or more inspe tors of election to act at the stockholder
meeting or any adjournment therecf. If an inspector or inspectors are not appointed, the
person presiding at the stockholder meeting riay, but need not, appoint one or more
inspectors. In case any person who may be & ppointed as an inspector fails to appear or
act, the vacancy may be filled by appointmen made by the direclors in advance of the
slockholder meeting or at the stockholder mee ing by the person presiding thereat.
Each inspector, if any, before entering upon the discharge of his duties, shall take and
sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspectors at such stockholder meeting
with strict impartiality and according to the best of his ability. The inspectors, if any,
shall delermine the number of shares of stock outstanding and the voting power of
each, the shares of stock represented at the meeting, the existence of a quorum, the
validity and effect of proxies, and shall receive voltes, ballots, or consents, hear and
determine all challenges and questions arising in connection with the right to vote,
count and tabulate all votes, ballots, or consents, determine the result, and do such
gcls as are proper to conduct the election or vote with faimess to all stockholders. On
1aquest of the parson presiding at the meeting, the inspector or inspectors, if any, shall
make a report in writing of any challenge, question, or matter determined by him or
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them and execute a certificate of any fact found by him or them. Except as otherwise
required by subsection (e) of Section 231 of the General Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware, the provisions of that Section shall not apply to the corporation.

ARTICLE Il

DIRECTORS

Section 1. Funections and Definition. The business and affairs of the corporation
shall be managed by or under the direction of the Board of Directors of the corporation.
The Board of Directors shall have the authority to fix the compensation of the members
thereof. The use of the phrase "whole board" herein refers to the total number of
directors which the corporation would have if there were no vacancies.

Section 2. Composition of the Board. The Board of Directors of the Company
shall consist of not less than one nor more than nine natural persons of the aye of
eighteen years or over, Direclors need not be residents of the State of Delaware
or stockholders of the Company. At each annual meeting the stockholders shall fix the
number of Directors and elect the Directors, who shall sarve until their successors are
elected and qualified; provided that the stockholders may, by the affirmative vote of the
holders of a majority of the shares of stock entitied to vole at an election of Directors,
increase the number of Directors and elect additional Directors at any time and may
reduce the number of Directors and remove Directors with or without cause at any time.
The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, designate a Chairman from among its
members at any time.

Section 3. Election end Term. The first Board of Directors, unless the members
thereof shall have been named in the certificate of incorporation, shall be elected by
the incorporator or incorporators anc shall hoid office until the first annual meeting of
stockholders and until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier
resignation or removal. Any director may resign a any time upon written notice to the
corporation. Thereafter, directors who sre elected at an annual meeting of
stockholders, and direclors who are elected in the, interim to fill vacancies and newly
created directorships, shall hoid office until the n 1xt annual meeting of stockholders
and until their successors are elected and qualific d or until their earlier resignation or
removal.
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of a newly elected Board shall be held as soon after its election as the directors may
conveniently assemble. Meetings shall be held at such place within or without the
State of Delaware as shall be fixed by the Board, No call shall be required for regular
meetings for which the time and place have been fixed. Special meetings may be called
by or at the direction of the Chairman of the Board, if any, the Vice-Chairman of the
Board, if any, of the President, or of a majority of the directors in office. No notice shall
be ruquired for regular meetings for which the time and place have been fixed. Written,

-l




oral, or any other moda of notice of the time and place shall pe given for special

in sufficient time for the convenient assembly of the directors thereat. Notice
need not be given to any director or to any member of a committee of directors who
submits a written waiver of notice signed by hin efore or after the time stated therein.
Attendance of any such person at a meeting sh . | constitute a waiver of notice of such
meeting, except when he attends a meeting for .1e express purpose of objecting, at the
beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not
lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose
d.mdmmmlmmdemmmwﬂmnwmm
waiver of notice.

- Section 5. Quorum and Action. A majority of the whole Board shall constitute a

quorum except when a vacancy or vacancies prevents such majority, whereupon a
of the directors in office shall constitute a quorum, provided, that such majority

shall constitute at least one-third of the whole Board. A majority of the directors
present, whether or not a quorum s present, may adjourn a meeting to another time
&nd place. Except as herein otherwise provided, and except as otherwise provided by
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the vote of the majority of the
directors prasent at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the
Board. The quorum and voting provisions herein stated shall not be construed as
conflicting with any provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware
and these Bylaws which govern a meeting of directors held to fill vacancies and newly
created directorships in the Board or action of disinterested directors. Any member or
members of the Board of Directors or of any committee designated by the Board, may
participate in @ meeting of the Board, or any such committee, as the case may be, by
means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of
which all persons participeting in the \neeting can hear each other.

Section 6. Chairman of the Meeting. The Chairman of the Board, if any and if
present and acting, shall preside at all meeti \gs. Otherwise, the Vice-Chairman of the
Board, if any and if present and acting, or the President, if present and acting, or any
other director chosen by the Board, shall pre Jide.

Section 7. Removal of Directors. Excipt as may otherwise be provided by the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, any director or the entire Board of
Directors may be removed, with or without cau:'e, by the holders of a majority of the
shares of stock then entitied to vote at an election of directors.

Section 8. Vacancies. A vazancy occurring in the Board of Directors by reason
of the removal of a Director by the stockholders shall be filled by the stockholders, or, if
authorized by the stockholders, by the remaining Directors. Any other vacancy

in the Board of Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of
the remaining Directors though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, or by the
sole remaining Direclor, as the casa may be, or, if the vacancy is not so filled, or if no
Director remains, by the stockholders. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve




for the unexpired term of such Director's predecessor in office until the next election of
Directors by the stockholders and the election and qualification of the successor,

Section 8. Committees. The Board of Direct rs may, by resolution passed by a
majority of the whole Board, designate one or more ommittees, each committee to
consist of one or more of the directors of the corpor: .ion. The Board may designate
one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any
absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. In the absence or
disqualification of any member of any such committee or committees, the member or
members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or
not he or they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the
Board of Directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified
member. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the Board,
shall have and may exercise the powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the
management of the business and affairs of the corporation with the exception of any
authority the delegation of which is prohibited by Section 141 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, and may authorize the seal of the
corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it.

Section 10. Executive Committee. The Chairman of the Board, if there is one,
or the President shall be @ member of the Executive Committee. The Executive
Committee shall, except as otherwise provided |.erein, by law or by resolution of the
Board of Directors, have all the authority of the Board of Directors during the intervals
between the meetings of the Board of Directors. Minutes of all meetings of the
Executive Committee shall be kept and recorded by the Secretary, and shall be from
time to time reported to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may designate
from time to time one or more Direclors 2s alternate members of the Executive
Committee or of any other commitiee, who .nay replace any absent member or
members at any meeting of the committee.

Section 10. Telephone Conference Meeti1gs. Members of the Board of
Directors, or any commitiee designated by the Bard of Directors, may participate in a
meeting of the Board or commiltee by means of (elephone conference or similar
communications equipment by means of which vl persons participating in the meeting
can hear each other, and participation in a meeti g pursuant to this Section shall
constitute presence in person at such meeting.

ing. Any action required or
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may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board or committee, as the case
may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes
of proceedings of the Board or commitiee.




ARTICLES I

EXECUTIVE STRUCTURE OF THE GOMPANY

Section 1. Executive Structure of the Company. * e officers of the Company
shall be elected by the Board of Directors, or appointed | , the Board of Directors, the
Chairman of the Board or the President pursuant to Section 10 of this Article Ill, and
shall consist of a Chairman of the Board, President, such number of Executive Vice
Presidents and Vice Presidents as the Board of Directors shall from time to time
determine, a Secretary, @ Treasurer and such assistants or other officers as may be so
elected or appointed. Each officer shall hold office for the term for which such officer
has been elected or appointed and until such officer's successor has been elected or
appointed and has been qualified, or until such officer's earlier resignation, removal
from office or death. Any number of offices may be held by the same person, as the
directors may determine.

Section 2. Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall be the chief
executive officer of tha Company and shall give overall supervisicn to the strategic and
financial affairs of the Company, subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meatings of the stockholders, the Board
of Directors or the Executive Committee at which he is present.

Section 3, President. The President shall be the chief operating officer of the
Company and shall give general supervision and direction to the affairs of the
Company, subject to the direction of the Board of Directors, If there be no Chairman of
the Board, or in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the President shall have the
powers describad in Section 2 of this Article Il and shall preside at all meetings of the
stockholders, the Board of Directors and Exec.tive Committee at which he is present.
Subject to the overall discretion of the Chairman of the Board, the President shall have
the power to make and execute contracts, deeds ad other instruments on behalf of the
Company and 1o delegate such powers to others. 1he President shall be empowered
at any time and from time to time to issua and prom Jigate rules, regulations and
directives relating to the conduct of the business a"d affairs of the Company, 2 d the

of the Company shall maintain a record of such rules, regulations and
directives, Rules, regulations and directives so iss.ied shall be available at any time to
the Board of Directors and, subject to the authority ¢’ the Board of Directors at any time
to amend, suspend or repeal any or all of such rules, regulations or directives. shall
evidence the authority of the officers and employees named therein to act on be:alf of
the Company with respect to the matters set forth therein.

Section 4. Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents, except as provided for
elsewhere herein, shall have such authority and perform such duties as may be
conferred upon or assigned to them by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the
Board or the President. In the case of absence or disability of the President, the duties
of the >ffice shall be performed by such Vice President or other officer of the Company




as the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board or the President may have
designated.

Section 5. Secretary. The Secretary shall send & requisite noti~as of meetings
of the stockholders and the Board of Directors. The Sec «tary shall attend all meetings
of the stockholders and the Board of Directors, and shall xeep a true and faithful record
of the proceedings. The Secretary shall have custody of the seal of the Company, and
of all records, books, documents, and papers of the Company, except those required lo
be in the custody of the Treasurer, and except such subsidiary records as may be kept
in departmental offices, The Secretary shall sign and execute all documents which
require the Secretary's signature and execution, and shall affix the seal of the Company
thereto and attest the same when necessary. Assistant Secretaries shall have such of
the authority and perform such of the duties of the Secretary as may be provided in
these Bylaws or assigned to them by the Board of Directors or by the Secretary.
During the Secretary’s absence or inability, the Secretary’s authority and duties shall
be possessed by such Assistant Secretary or Assistant Secretaries as the Board of
Directors or the Secretary may designate.

Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and have charge of all funds
and securities of the Company. The Treasurer shall depcsit the funds to the credit of
the Company in such depositories as shall be approved from time to time by the Board
of Directors, the Chalrman of the Board, the President or the Treasurer, and the
Treasurer shall disburse the same under such rules and regulations as the Board of
Directors may adopt. The Treasurer shall have the power to make and execute
evidences of indebtedness on behalf of the Company. The Treasurer shall keep full
and regular books showing all of the Treasurer's receipts and disbursements, which
books shall be open at all times to the inspection of the President or of any member of
the Board of Directors; and the Treasurer shall make such reports as the Board of
Directors, the Chairman of the Board or the Presicent may require. Assistant
Treasurers shall have such of the authority and pe: form such of the duties of the
Treasurer as may be provided in these Bylaws or a; may be assigned to them by the
Board of Directors or by the Treasurer. During the Treasurer's absence or inability, the
Treasurer's authority and duties shall be possesse d by such Assistant Treasurer or
Assistant Treasurers as the Board of Directors or 17e Treasurer may designate. The
Treasurer and each Assistant Treasurer shall give vuch security for the faithful
performance of such officer's duties as the Board of Directors may require.

Section 7. Comptroller. The Comptroller shall ba the principal accounting
officer of the Company and shall have custody and charge of all books of account,
except those required by the Treasurer in keeping record of the work of the Treesurer's
cffice, and shall have supervision over such subsidiary accounting records as may be
kept in departmental offices. The Comptrolier shall have access 10 all books of
account, including the records of the Secretary and the Treasurer, for purposes of audit
and for obtaining information necessary to verify or complete the records of the
Comgtroller's offica. The Comptroller or the Comptrolier's duly authorized
representative shall cartify 1 ) the authorizations and approvals pertaining to all




vouchers; and no payments from the general cash shall be made by the Treasurer
except on vouchers bearing the written approval of the Comptroller or the Comptrolier's
authorized representative. Assistant Comptroliers shall have such of the authority and
perform such of the duties of the Comptrolier as may be provided in these Bylaws or
assigned to them by the Board of Directors or by the Comptrolie: During the
Comptroller's absence or inability, the Comptrolier's authority an duties shall Sa
possessed by such Assistant Comptroller or Assistant Comptroll . ‘s as the Board of
Directors or the Comptroller may designate.

Section 8. Other Duties and Authority. Each officer, employee and agent of the
Company shall have such other duties and authority as may be conferred upon such
officer, employee or agent by the Board of Directors or delegated to such officer,
employee or agent by the President.

Section 9. Romoval of Officers. Any officer may be removed at any time by the
. Board of Directors with or without cause, and such vacancy may be filled by the Board
of Directors. This provision shall not prevent the making of a contract of employment
for a definite term with any officer and shall have no effect upon any cause of action
which any officer may have as a result of removal in breach of a contract of

employment.

Section 10. Appointed Officers. The Chairman of the Board or the President
may, from time to time, appoint individuals to serve in s':ch designated capacities for
the Company as the Chairman of the Board or the President may deem appropriate.
Each appointed officer shall perform such duties and shall have such authority as shall
be delegated to such officer from time to tirhe by the officer of the Company then
responsible for the particular area in which such appointed officer is working. Any duty
or authority delegated to any appointed office: pursuant to this Section may be
withdrawn, with or without cause, at any time by *he Chairman of the Board, the
Prasident or the officer delegating such duty or authority to the appointed officer.

ARTICLE IV

Section 1. Certificates Representing Stock. Jertificates representing stock in
the corpcration shall be signed by, or in the name ¢{, the corporation by the Chairman
or Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, «r by the President or a Vice -
President and by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer or the Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary of the corporation. Any or all the signatures on any such certificate
may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent, or registrar who has signed or
whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased lo be
such officer, transfer agent, or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be
issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he were such officer, transfer agent,
or registrar at the date of issue. Whenever the corporation shall be authorized lo issue
more than one class of stock or more than one series of any class of stock, and
whe iever the corporation shall issue any shares of its stock as partly paid stock, the
ceriificates representing shares of stock of any such class or series or of any such

-9 .



partly paid stock shall set forth thereon the statements prescribed by the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. Any restrictions on the transfer or
registration of transfer of any shares of stock of any class or series shall be noted
conspicuously on the certificate representing such shares of itock. The corporation
may issue a new certificate of stock or uncertificated shares . stock in place of any
certificate theretofore issued by it, alleged to have been los! stolen, or destroyed, and
the Board of Directors may require the owner of the lost, stolen, or destroyed
certificate, or his legal representative, to give the corporation a bond sufficient to
indemnify the corporation against any claim that may be made against it on account of
MMMMumﬂmymmwmmuwm
new certificate or uncertificated share of stock.

Section 2. Uncertificated Shares of Slock Subject to any conditions imposed by
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the Board of Directors of the
corporation may provide by resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all
classes or series of the stock of the corporation shall be uncertificated shares of stock.
Within a reasonable time after the issuance or transfer of any uncertificated shares of
stock, the corporation shall send to the registered owner thereof any writlen notice
prescribed by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

Section 3. Fractional Share Interests. The corporation may, but shall not be
required to, issue fractions of a share of stock. If the corporation does not issue
fractions of a share of stock, it shall (1) arrange for the disposition of fractional interests
by those entitied therelo, (2) pay in cash the fair value of fractions of a share of stock
as of the time when those entitied to receive such fractions are determined, or (3) issue
scrip or warrants in registered form (either represented by a certificate or uncertificated)
or bearer form (represented by a certificate) which shall entitle the holder to receive a
full share of stock upon the surrender of such s ~rip or warrants aggregating a full share
of stock. A certificate for a fractional share of stou's or an uncertificated fractional share
of stock shall, but scrip or warrants shall not unles.: otherwise provided therein, entitle
the holder to exercise voting rights, to receive divic ands thereon, and to participate in
any of the assets of the corporation in the event of liquidation. The Board of Directors
may cause scrip or warrants to be issued subject ‘o the conditions that they shall
become void if not exchanged for certificates repr 3senting the full shares of stock or
uncertificated full shares of stock before a specifie 1 date, or subject to the conditions
that the shares of stock for which scrip or warrants wre exchangeable may be sold by
the corporation and the proceeds thereof distributed to the holders of scrip or warrants,
or subject to any other conditions which the Board of Directors may impose.

Section 4. Stock Transfers. Upon compliance with provisions restricting the
transfer or registration of transfer of shares of stock, if any, transfers or registration of
transfers of shares of stock of the corporation shall be made only on the stock ledger of
the corporation by the registered holder thereof, or by his attorney thereunto authorized
by r.ower of attorney duly executed and filed with the Secretary of the corporation or
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with a transfer agent or a registrar. if any, and, in the case of shares of stock
represented by certificates, on surrender of the certifica’ * or certificates for such shares
of stock properly endorsed and the payment of all taxes ue thereon.

Section 5. Record Date for Stockholders, In order that the corporation may
determine the stockholders entitied to notice of or to vole at any meeting of
stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors may fix a record date,
which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the
record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which record date shall not be
more than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting. If no record
date is fixed by the Board of Directors, the record date for determining stockholders
entitled to notice of or to vole at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of
business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is
walived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the
meeting is held. A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote
at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided,
however, that the Board of Directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned
meeting. In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitied to
consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, the Board of Directors may fix
a record date, which record date shall not precede tr2 date upon which the resolution
fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directors, and which date shall not be
more than ten days after the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is
adopted by the Board of Directors. If no record date has been fixed by the Board of
Directors, the record date for determining the stockholders entitied to consent to

action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the Board of
Directors is required by the General Corporatio~ Law of the State of Delaware, shall be
the first date on which a signed written consent se'ting forth the action taken or
proposed to be taken is delivered to the corporation hy delivery to its registered office
in the State of Delaware, its principal place of busine: s, or an officer or agent of the
corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of
stockholders are recorded. Delivery made to the corp oration’s registered office shall be
by hand or by certified or registered mail, return rece pt requested. If no record date
has been fixed by the Board of Directors and prior ac.'on by the Board of Directors is
required by the General Corporation Law of the State «f Delaware, the record date for
determining stockholders entitied to consent to corpora ke action in writing without a
meeting shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board of Dirsctors
adopts the resolution taking such prior action. In order that the corporation may
determine the stockholders entitied to receive payment of any dividend or other
distribution or alloiment of any rights or the stockholders entitled to exercise any rights
in respect of any change, conversion, or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any
other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which record date
shall not precede the date upon which the resoiution fixing the record date is adopted,
and which record date shall be not more than sixty days prior to such action. If no
record de @ Is fixed, the record dale for determining stockhoiders for any such purpose
shall be at the close of busines: on the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the
resolution relating thereto.
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Section 6. Stockholder List. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of
the corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten days before every meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders, arranged in alphabetical order, and
showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares of stock registered
in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examir:ntion of any
stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary usiness hours,
for a period of at least ten days prior o the meeting, either at a place 1 thin the city or
other municipality or community where the meeting is to be held, whic. . place shall be
specified in the notice of the meeting, or if nol so specified, at the place where the
meeting is to be held. The list shall also be produced and kept at the time and place of
the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder
who is present. The stock iedger shall be the only evidence as to who are the
stockholders entitled to examine the stock ledger, the list required by this section or the
books of the corporation, or to vole at any meeting of stockholders.

ARTICLEV

CORPORATE SEAL

The common seal of the Company shall bear within concentric circles the words
"BeliSouth BSE, Inc." with the word “Seal” in the center. The seal and its attestation
may be lithographed or otherwise printed on any document and shall have, to the
extent permitied by law, the same force and effect as if it had been affixed and attested
manually.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

Any person who was or is a party or is threatened \» be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding. whether civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative (including any action by or in 1@ right of the Company),
by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or fficer of the Company, or
is or was serving at the request of the Company as a directo ' or officer of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterpr se, shall be indemnified by
the Company against expenses (including reasonable attoreys’ fees), judgments, fines
and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding, if such person acted in good faith and
in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best
interests of the Company (and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if such
person had no reasonable cause to belleve his conduct was unlawful), to the maximum
extent permitted by, and in the manner provided by, the General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware. '



ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

Subject to the provisions of the certificate of incorpoi stion and the provigions of
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the power to amend, alter, or
repeal these Bylaws and to adopt new Bylaws may be exercised by the Board of
Directors or by the stockholders.
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State of Delaware

. Officé of the Secretary of S ate

PAGE 1

T, EDWAKD J, FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE Cf
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "BELLSOUTH BSE, TNC." TS DULY
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Edward J. Freel, Secretary of State
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EXHIBIT Q - 15
BELLSOUTH BSE, INC, Florida Price List Number 1
Original Page |

FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES PRICE LIST

OF

BELLSOUTH BSE, INC.

This price list contains the rules, regulations, descritions and rates applicable to
the furnishing of service and facilities for telecommu iications services provided by
BellSouth BSE, Inc. in the State of Florida.

Issued: A agust 15, 1997 Effective:

Issuedby:  Vice President Sup lier Development and Business Relations
BeliSouth BSE, Inc.
1100 Peachtree Street, N.E., Suite 500
Atlanta, Georgia 30309-4599




BELLSOUTH BSE, INC. Florida Price List Number |
Original Page 2

CHECK SHEET

Sheets of this price list indicated below are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the

respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the
original price list and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet.

E

I.. Original *
2. Original *
N i s e Original *
4, e Original *
e e Original *
8..... wrOriginal *
9 Original *
10.... ...Origina! *
| B S Original *
' e Original *
LT e e Original *
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This price list applies to telecommunications services fumnished by BellSouth BSE, Inc, to
customers within the state of Florida.
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’ The following are the only symbols used “or the purposes indicated below:
C - Changed regulation.
D - Delete or discontinue.
I - Change Resulting in an increase to a Customer’s bill.
M - Moved from another price list location.
| N - New
| R - Change resulting in a reduction to a Customer’s bill.
! T - Change in text without change n rae or regulation.
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D.

PRICE LIST FORMAT

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Sheets are
numbered sequentially. When a new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a
decimal is added. For example, a new sheet added between sheets 14 and 15 would be
14.1,

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of each
page. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the
Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 14.
Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect.

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level
of coding is subservient to its next higher level:

2.

X )

2.1.1.

2.1.1A.

2.1.LA.L
2.1.1.A.1.(a).
2.1.1.A.1.(a).L
2.1.LA.1(a).L(GD).
2.1.1LA.1L(@).LG).(1).

Check Sheets - When a price list filing is male with the Florida Public Service
Commission an updated Check Sheet accompanies tl ¢ price list filing. The Check Sheet
lists the sheets contained in the price list, with a c/oss reference to the current revision
number, When new sheets are added, the Check S et is changed to reflect the revision.
All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk (*). There will be no other
symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc.
remain the same, just revised revision leveis on some £ heels.)
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBLEVIATIONS

Access Line - An arrangement which connects the Customer’s location to a BSE switching center
or point of presence,

Account Codes - Optional, Customer-defined digits that allow the Customer to identify the
individual user, department or client associated with a call. Account Codes appear on the Customer
bill.

Authorized User - /A person, firm, corporation, or any other entity suthorized by the Customer to
communicate utilizing the Company's service.

BSE - Used throughout this price list to mean BellSouth BSE, Inc. unless clearly indicated
otherwise by the text.

Business - A class of service provided to individuals engaged in business, firms, partnerships,
corporations, agencies, shops, works, tenants of office builaings, and individuals practicing a
profession or operating a business who have no offices other than their residences and where the
use of the service is primarily or substantially of a business, professional or occupational nature.

Calling Card - A billing mechanism by which the charges for a call may be billed to a valid
Company-issued or Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier-ssued account.

Commission - Florida Public Service Commission.
Company or Carrier - BellSouth BSE, Inc., unless otherwise ¢ early indicated by the context.

Customer - The person, firm, corporation or other entity wt ich orders, cancels, amends or uses
service and is responsible for payment of charges and complian e with the Company's price list.

End User - Any person, firm, corporation, partnership or other er tity which uses the services of the
Company under the provisions and regulations of this price list. The End User is responsibic for
payment unless the charges for the services utilized are accepied and paid by another Customer.

Equal Access - The ability of a long distance carrier to serve Customers on a presubscribed basis
rather than through the use of dial access codes.
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SECTION 1 - TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATI! ‘NS, CONT'D.
Holidays - Holidays observed by the Company as specified in this price List.
LATA - Local access and transport area. A geographic arca established by the US District Court for

the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 17-49, within which a local exchange company
provides communications services.

LEC - Local Exchange Company

Person-to-person - A class of call in which the calling party specifies an individual, station
number, department, or an agreed alternate with whom to speak at the called number.

Premises - A building or buildings on contiguous property.

Residence or Residential - A class of service furnished to a Customer at a place of dwelling where
the actual or obvious use is for domestic purposes.

Special Construction - Service configurations specifically designed and constructed at a
Customer’s request.

Station-to-Station - A class of call in which the calling party places the call to any individual or
station at the called party location. All toll calls whi~h are not placed on a Person-to-Person basis
are station-to-station.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGUL. TIONS

21  Undertaking of BellSouth BSE, Inc.

2.1.1

2.12

213

2.14

2.1.5

2.1.6

The Company's services are fumished for intrastate telecommunications originating
and terminating within the state of Florida under terms of this price list.

The Company installs, operates, and maintains the communications services
provided herein in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this
price list. The Company may act as the Customer’s agent for ordering access
connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities, when authorized by the
Customer, to allow connection of a Customer’s location to the Company network.
The Customer shall be responsible for all charges due for such service arrangement.

When services and facilitics provided by the Company arc used to obtal: access to
the regulated or unregulated services provided by another company, or are used by
another company as a part of the regulated or unregulated services offered by that
company, the regulations of the Company apply only to the use of the Company’s
services and facilities,

The Company may offer various unregulated services in conjunction with or
ancillary to its regulated services.

The Company may serve Customess in the State of Florida through the use of its
own facilities or through the resale ol “ervices of other telecommunications service

providers.

The provision of services defined herein is subject to regulations specified in this
price list and may be revised, added 1o, or svpplemented by superseding issues.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CO T'D.

22  Limitations

221

222

223

Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and equipment
and subject to the provisions of this price list. The fumishing of service under this
price list or an applicable contract is subject to the availability on a continuing basis
of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's
facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish
service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company,

Customers and users may use services and facilities provided under this price list or
an applicable contract to obtain access to services offered by other companies. The
Company is responsible for the services and facilities provided under this price list
or an applicable contract, and it assumes no responsibility for any service (whether
regulated or not) provided by any other entity that purchases access (o the Company
network in order to originate or terminate its own services, or to communicate with
its own Customers.

Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or
transfer. All regulations and conditions contained in this price list shall apply to all
such permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions for service.

In view of the fact that the Customer has exclusive control of his communications
over the facilities fumnished him by the Company, and of the other uses for which
facilitics may be fumished him by the Company, and because unavoidable errors
incidental to services and use of such fac lities of the Company may occur, the
services and facilities furnished by the Com any are subject to the terms, conditions
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CON" D.

2.2  Limitations, (cont'd.)
225 Accessories which aid a Customer’s convenience in his use of the services provided

by the Company which are not furnished under this price list, are permissible
provided any such accessory so used would not endanger the safety of Company
employees or the public; damage, require change in or alteration of, or involve direct
electrical connection to the equipment or other facilities of the Company, or
interfere with the proper functioning of such equipment or facilities; or impair the
operation of the telecommunications system or otherwise injure the public in its use
of the Company’s services,

226 The Company reserves the right to limit the length of communication when

227

necessary because of a shortage of facilities caused by emergency conditions.

The service is fumnished subject to the condition that it will not be used for any
unlawful purpose. Service will be discontinved 'f any law enforcement agency,
acting within its apparent jurisdiction, advises in writing that such service is being
used in violation of the law. The Company will refuse to fumnish service when it has
reasonable grounds to believe that such service will be used in violation of the law.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, ONT'D.

23  Liabilities of Company

23.1

232

233

234

235

The Company’s liability for damages arising from any failure of service shall not
exceed an amount equivalent to the proportionate charge to the Customer for the
period during which the failure occurs.

The Company shall not be liable for any claim or loss not directly caused by
negligence of the Coinpany.

The Company is not liable for any act or omission of any other company or

companies fumishing a portion of the facilities, equipment or services used in
connection with the services provided by the Company.

The Company shall not be liable for the use or abuse of a Customer’s service by any
party including, but not limited to, the Customer's employees or members of the
public. "Use or abuse” includes, but is not limited to, any calls placed by means of a
PBX-re-origination or other legal or illegal equipment, service or device. The
Company shall not be liable for any action, such as blocking or refusal to accept
certain calls, that it deems necessary to take in order to prevent unlawful use of its
services. Compensation for any injury the Customer may suffer due to the fault of
parties other than the Company must he sought from such other parties.

Acceptance by the Commission of the liablity provisions contained in this price list
does not constitute its determination that t ¢ limitation of liability imposed by the
Company should be upheld in a court of L w, but the recognition that, as it is the
duty of the courts to adjudicate negligenc : claims and rights to recover damages
therefor, so it is the duty of the courts to Jetermine the validity of the exculpatory
provisions of this price list.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIC 'S, CONT'D.

23  Liabilities of Company, (cont'd.)

23.6 The liability of the Company for service irregularities shall in no event exceed an

amount equivalent to the proportionate charge to the Customer for the service for
the period during which the service irmegularity exists. Service irregularities are
defined as mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, emrors, or defects in
transmission, or failure of or defects in the service and/or facilities furnished by the
Company which occur in the course of furnishing service or facilities and are not
cavsed by the negligence of the Customer or the negligence of the Company in
failing to maintain proper standards of maintenance or operation, or 10 exercise
reasonable supervision.

237 The Company shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Customer against the

following:

a) Claims for slander, libel or infringement of copyright arising out of the
materials, data, information or other content transmitied over the Company's
facilities.

b) All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in
connection with any service or facility provided by the Company.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONT' .
24  'Taxes and Surcharges

24.1 All state and local taxes (l.c., gross receipts tax, sales tax, municipal utilities tax) are
listed as separate line items and are not included in the quoted rates.

24.2 Surcharges (i.c., 911, subscriber line charge, etc.) approved or mandated by any
governmenta' jurisdiction are listed separately on the bill and are not included in
quoted rates.

25  Terminal Equipment

The Company's service may be used with or terminated in Customer-provided terminal
equipment or Customer-provided communications systems, such as a telephone set, key
system or private branch exchange (PBX). Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and
maintained at the expense of the Customer, except as otherwise provided. The Customer is
responsible for all costs at his or her premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power,
and the like, incurred in the use of the Company s service. When such terminal equipment is
used, the equipment shall comply with the generally accepted minimum protective criteria
standards of the telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications
Commission.

2.6  Installation

Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Chistomer and the Company. The
service agreement does not alter rates specified in this price list.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATION!. CONT'D.

27  Payment for Service

2.7.1

272

273

274

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for services and equipment
fumished to the Customer or to an authorized user of the Customer by the
Company. All charges due from the Customer are payable to the Company or to the
Company's authorized billing agent. Terms of payment shall be according 1o the
rules and regulations of regulatory agencies, including the Commission. Any
objections to billed charges must be reported to the Company or its billing agent
within sixty days after receipt of bill. Contested charges will be handled in
accordance with the appropriste Commission rules. Adjustments to Customer’s bills
shall be made to the extent that circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that

such changes are appropriate.

Monthly invoices sent to the Customer are due upon receipt and are considered
delinquent thirty (30) days after the bill is rendered and the account may be subject
to disconnection. All amounts owed after the duc date are subject to late payment
penalty charges of 1.5 % per month. The late payment fee will not be assessed on

unpaid penalty charges and any payment received shall first be applied to any bill for
services rendered.

In no case shall service be actually disconnected until five days after written notice
has been given to the Customer.

Retumed Check Fee - A $(To Be L termined) processing fee will be charged if a
check for payment of an invoice is dithonored for any reason. This charge applies
each time a check is returned to BSE b 1 a bank for insufficient funds.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGUL.. I'TONS, CONT'D.

28  Deposits and Advance Payments

2.8.1

282

The Company does not normally require a deposit or advance payment from
Customers. However, deposits or advance payments may be collected from
Customenrs or potential Customers whose credit or payment history is unsatisfactory
or unknown tc the Company.

In determining whether a Customrrs or potential Customer’s credit history is
unsatisfactory, the Company will consider (i) the Customer’s payment history with
the Company, (ii) the Customer’s ability to demonstrale adequate ability 1o pay for
the service, (iii) credit and related information provided by the Customer, lawfully
obtained from third parties or publicly available, and (iv) information relating to
Customer’s management, owners and affiliates. Customers whose payment or credit
history is determined by the Company to present an undue risk may be required at
any time to provide the Company a security deposit, in cash or the equivalent of
cash, up to an amount equal to the applicable installation charges, if any, and/or two
months actual or estimated usage charges for the service to be provided. In the case
of a cash deposit, simple interest per annum pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Commission shall be credited or paid to the Customer while the deposit is held
by the Company. Such deposit n.xy be refunded to the Customer’s account at the end
of six (6) months of satisfactory creuit history.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIO! - 5, CONT'D.
29 Cancellation by Customer

No charge applies when the applicant cancels an application for service prior to the start of
installation or special construction.

When an applicant cancels an application for service after the start of installation or special
construction, the applicant shall pay a cancellation fee which is the lesser of 1) the costs
incurred by the Carrier, or 2) the charge for the minimum period of the service ordered, plus
applicable installation charges.

Customers of BSE may cancel service by providing thirty (30) days written notice to BSE
Customers are responsible for all charges, including fixed fees, which accrue up to the

cancellation date.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATION , CONT'D.

210 Interconnection

Service furnished by BSE may be connected with the services or facilities of other carriers.
Such service or facilities, if used, are provided under the terms, rates and conditions of the
other carrier. The Customer is responsible for all charges billed by other carriers for use in
connection with BSE's service.

211 Refusal or Discontinuance by Company

The Company may refuse or discontinue service in the following circumstances. Unless
otherwise stated, the Customer will be given ten (10) days’ written notice and allowed a
reasonable time to comply with any rule or to remedy any deficiency. All notices given shall
comply with the Commission rules.

a)

b)

c)

d)

For non-compliance with and/or violation of ~ny State or municipal law, ordinance
or regulation pertaining to telephone service.

For the use of telephone service for any other property or purpose other than that
described in the application.

For failure or refusal to provide the Cumpany with a deposit to insurc payment of
bills in accordance with the Company's reg*lations or failure to meet the Company's

credit requirements.

For neglect or refusal to provide reasonable 2:cess to the Company for the purpose
of inspection and maintenance of equipment owned by the Company. Such action
shall be taken only when corrective action ne gotiated between the Company and the
Customer has failed to resolve the situation.

For non-compliance with and/or violation of the Commission regulations or the
Company's rules and regulations on file with the Commission.

f) In the event of tampering with the equipment fumished and owned by the Company.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATION , CONT'D.

2.11 Refusal or Discontinuance by Company, (cont’d.)

B

h)

i)

k)

)

m)

In the event of Customer use of equipment in such a manner as to adversely affect
the Company service to others. Such discontinuance of service may be made
without notice if a dangerous condition relating to Company service exists which
could subject any person to imminent harm or result in substantial damage to the
property of the Company or others. In such case, the Company shall notify the
Customer immediately in writing and, if possible, orally of the reasons for the
termination or refusal.

In the event of unauthorized or fraudulent use of service. The Company may
terminate service without notice to the Customer if it has evidence that such
Customer has obtained unauthorized service by illegal use or theft. The Company
shall within twenty four (24) hours after such termination send written notification
to the Customer of the reasons for suct termination. Whencver service is
discontinued for fraudulent use of service, the Company may, before restoring
service, require the Customer to make, at his own expense, all changes in facilitics
or equipment necessary to eliminate illegal use and to pay an amount reasonably
estimated as the loss in revenues resulting from such fraudulent use.

For failure of the Customer to make pro,»er application for service. A Customer who
has complied with Commission regulation. shall not be denied service for failure to
comply with the Company's rules which have not been made effective in the manner
prescribed by the Commission.

For Customer’s breach of the contract for service between the Company and the
Customer.

When necessary for the Company to compl ' with any order or request of any
govemmental authority having jurisdiction.

The Company reserves the right to discontinue fumishing service or to limit the use
of service when necessary due to conditions beyond its control or when the
Customer is using service in violation of the law or provisions of this price list.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CO T'D.
211  Refusal or Discontinuance by Company, (cont'd.)
(n)  The Company, with written notification giving reason, may either suspend service
or terminate the Customer’s service without suspension or following a suspension of

service, disconnect the service and remove any of its equipment from the Customer’s
premises upon:

a) Abandonment of service.
b)  Impersonation of another with fraudulent intent.
c) Nonpayment of any sum due the Company.
c) Abuse or fraudulent use of service.
2.12 Inspection, Testing and Adjustment
Upon reasonable notice, the facilities provided by the Company shall be made available to
the Company for tests and adjustments a: may be deemed necessary by the Company for
maintenance. No interruption allowance will be granted for the time during which such tests
and adjustments are made when the interrupt. n is less than twenty-four consecutive hours.
2.13  Tests, Pilots, Promotional Campaigns and Coni>sts

The Company may conduct special tests, pilot p ograms, waivers and promotions to
demonstrate the ease of use, quality of service and to yromote the sale of its services.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REG! .ATIONS, CONT'D.

214 Interruption of Service

of service and trouble reports are subject to the general liability provisions set

forth in Section 2.4 herein and the provisions of the Commission.

2.15 Terms and Conditions

2.15.1

Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least one month unless
specified otherwise in this price list. For the purpose of computing charges in this
price list or sin applicable contract, a month is considered to have 30 days.

2.15.2 Customers may be required 1o enter into wrilten service agreements which shall

2.153

2.154

contain or reference a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be
charged, the duration of the services, and the terms and conditions in this price list
or an applicable contract. The Customer will also be required to execute any other
documents as may be reasonably requested by the Company.

At the expiration of the initial term specified in each service agreement, or in any
extension thereof, service snall continue on a month to month basis at the then
current rates unless terminated by either party. Any termination shall not relieve the
Customer of its obligation to pay 2ny charges incurred under the service order and
this price list or an applicable couract prior to termination. The rights and
obligations which by their nature extend heyond the termination of the term of the
service agreement shall survive such termii ation.

In any action between the parties to enforce any provision of this price list or an
applicable contract, the prevailing party sh. 1l be entitled to recover its legal fees and
court costs from the non-prevailing party ‘n addition to other relief a court may
award.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONT'D.
2.16  Non-routine Instaliation

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the
Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based
on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged to the Company
will epply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer’s
request, exiends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited
to, weekenas, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CON1 D.

2.17 Special Construction And Special Arrangemenis
2.17.1 Special Construction - Subjmmm:wdﬂnmwmymdmlllnfdm

regulations contained in this price list or any applicable contract, special
construction and special arrangements may be undertaken on a reasonable effort
basis at the request of the Customer. Special arangements include any service or
facility relating to a regulated telecommunications service not otherwise specified
under this price list or any applicable contract, or for the provision of service on an
expedited basis or in some other manner different from the normal price list or
contract conditions. Special construction is that construction underaken:

a) Where facilities are not presently available, and there is no other
requirement for the facilities so constructed,

b) Of a type other than that which the Lompany would normally utilize
in the furnishing of its services,

c) Over a route other than that which the Company would normally
utilize in the furnishing of its services,

d) In a quantity greater than tha. which the Company would normally
construct,

) On an expedited basis,
f) On a temporary basis until perm nent facilities are available,
g) Involving abnormal costs, or

h) In advance of its normal construction.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONT™D.

2.17 Special Construction And Special Arrangements, (cont’'d.)

2.17.2 Basis for Charges - Where the Company fumnishes a facility on special construction
basis, or any service for which a rate or charge is not specified in this price list,
charges will be based on the costs incurred by the Company and may include the
following: (i) non-recurring type charges, (ii) recurring type charges, (iii)
termination liabilities or (iv) combinations thereof. The agreement for special
construction will ordinarily include a minimum service commitment based upon the
estimated service of the facilities provided.

2.17.3 Basis for Cost Computation - The costs referred to in Section 2.14.3 preceding may
include one or more of the following items to the extent they are applicable:

a) Cost installed of the facilities tc be provided including estimated
costs for the rearrangements of existing facilities. Cost installed
includes the cost of: (i) equipment and materials provided or used,
(il) engineering, labor and supervision, (iii) transportation, (iv) rights
of way and (v) any other item chargeable to the capital account.

b) Annual charges including Le following: (i) cost of maintenance, (ii)
depreciation on the estimated ost installed of any facilities provided,
based on the anticipated useful service life of the facilities with an
appropriate allowance for tiwc estimated net salvage, (iii)
administration, taxes and uncillectible revenue on the basis of
reasonable average costs for these items, (iv) any other identifiable
costs related to the facilities p ovided and (v) an amount for return

and contingencies.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIO! .3, CONT'D.

2.17 Special Construction And Special Arrangements, (cont’d.)

2.174 Termination Lisbility - To the extent that there is no other requirement for use by
the Company, a termination liability may apply for facilities specially constructed at
the request of the Customer.

a) The maximum termination liability is equal to the total cost of the
special facility as determined under Section 2.14.4, preceding,
adjusted to reflect the predetermined estimated net salvage, including
any reuse of the facilities provided.

b) The maximum termination liability as determined in paragraph a)
shall be divided by the original term of service contracted for by the
Customer (rounded up to the next whole number of months) to
determine the monthly liability. The Customer’s termination liability
ghall be equal tc this monthly amount multiplied by the remaining
unexpired term of service (rounded up to the next whole number of
months), discounted to present value at six (6) percent, plus
applicable taxes.

2.17.5 Maintenance Charge - A maintenancy charge shall apply when a user requests the
dispatch of the Companys personnel fo: the purpose of performing maintenance
activity on the Company’s facilitics and the trouble condition is found to result from
equipment, facilities, or systems not provid d by the Company.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES
31 General

3.1.1 Directory Listings

A white pages standard directory listing is included with each unit of wireline
service.

312 Emergency Services

In jurisdictions where 911 emergency service is available, the Company will provide
this feature with all network access service offerings.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CO! I'D.

32  Timing of Calis
Where applicable, the following rate period and timing parameters apply:

LA |

323

B

Initial Period - The initial period is the length of a call for minimum billing
purposes. The initial period varies by rate schedule and is specified in individual
product rates sections of this price list.

Additional Period - The additional period is the rate element used to bill chargeable
time when a call continues beyond the initial period. The additional period stans
when the initial period ends. Additional period rates apply to any fraction of the
time period for chargeeble time beyond the initial period. Additional periods vary
by rate schedule and are specified in the individual product rates sections of this
price list.

Chargeable time for collect calls begins when the call- station agrees to accept the
charges for the call. Chargeable time for person-to-person calls begins when the
designated called party (or an agreed upon substitute) is connected to the calling
party. Chargeable time for all other calls begins when the called station is answered.

Chargeable time for all calls ends when one of the parties disconnects from the call.
Time of day designations are used in this p-ice list to indicate rale peniod

boundaries. Rate periods begin at the first time of day designation and continue up
to but not including the second time of day designat 'on.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE ANI' RATES, CONT'D.
33  Time of Day Rate Perlods

For rating purposes, the Peak period is from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday,
and all other times are considered Off-Peak. Also for rating purposes, Day rates apply from
8:00 am. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, Evening rates apply from 5:00 p.m. to
11:00 p.m., Sunday through Friday, and Night/Weekend rates apply all other times. When a ,
call spans more than one rating period, the rates for cach period apply to the portion of the ‘
call in that rate period.

34  Holiday Rates

On the following legal holidays, the Evening (Holiday) rate applies for residence service
instead of the Day rate for the appropriate Day period. Other rates apply as usual.

New Year's Day Labor Day
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day
Independence Day Christmas Day

When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the Holiday calling rate applies 1o calls placed on the
following Monday. When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the Holiday calling rate applies to
calls placed on the preceding Friday,
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE A 'D RATES, CONT™D.
35  Local Calling Area

The local calling area mimors the local calling arca for basic local exchange service
provided by the incumbent local exchange company for the same exchange.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE .\ND RATES, CONT'D.
3.6  Calculation of Mileage and Rate Bands
For mileage-sensitive schedules, the distance between the originating and terminating points
is calculated by using the "V" and "H" coordinates of the rate centers as defined by BellCore
(Bell Communications Research), in the following manner:

Step 1: Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the rate center or network access point
serving the Customer’s location and the called/calling station.

Step 2: Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates. Obtain the difference between
the "H" coordinates.

Step 3: Square the differences obtained in Step 2.
Step 4: Add the squares of the "V" difference and “h" difference obtained in Step 3.

Step 5: Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the next
higher whole number if any fraction results from the division.

Step 6: Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to the next
higher whole number if any fraction is ~btained. This is the distance between the

originating and terminating locations of the .all.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE 4 (D RATES, CONT™D.
3.7  Service Connection Charges
3.7.1 Line Connection Charges

Nonrecurring Charge

Residence  Business
Line Connection Charge S(TBD) $(TBD)
Add or Change Existing Service S(TBD) $(TBD)

Add or change line features, package options S(TBD) $(TBD)
3.72 Premises Work Charges

Premises Work applies to work which requires a visit to the Customer’s premises.
Premises work orders are priced on a firm ¢0te basis.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND | ATES, CONT'D.

3.7  Service Connection Charges, (cont'd.)

3.7.3 Other Connection Charges

A.  Service Restoral

A Service Restoral charge applies when service is reconnected after
suspension or disconnection as provided in Section 2.11 of this price list.
The Service Restoral charge applies in addition to all other applicable
charges.

Service Restoral $(TBD)
B.  Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC) Change Charge
A PIC Change charge applies when the Customer changes the primary
interexchange service on a business or residence exchange line after the
initial installation of service.

Per PIC Change, per line $(TBD)

Issued: August 15, 1997 Effective:

Issued by:

Vice President Supplier Development and Business Relations
BeliSouth BSE, Inc.

1100 Peachtree Street, N.E., Suite 500

Atlanta, Georgia 303094599



BELLSOUTH BSE, INC. Florida Price List Number |
Original Page 34

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE Al D RATES, CONT'L.
38  Directory Assistance
The Customer may request a maximum of two telephone numbers per call to Direclory

Assistance Service.
‘ Per Call
Directory assistance $(TBD)
Cirectory assistance and call completion $(TBD)
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, ZONT™D.
39  Residence Services
39.1 The following services are available to Customers who subscribe to one of the
package services offered in this price list. These services may not be purchased
without subscribing to one of the package services specified below.
14 Additional exchange service line with no special features
Monthly Charge per additional residence line $(TBD)

2, Additional features for a service package line which has a full package of
features

Monthly Charge per additional residence feature $(TBD)

3.9.2 In addition to the packages specified in this price list, additional custom packages
may be provided in response to a specific Customr request.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND I' ATES, CONT'D.

39  Residence Services, (cont’d.)

393

Residence Customers may select optional features from the following list:

00 NO R W -

Call block

Call forwarding
Call return

Call selector

Call tracing

Call waiting
Caller identification
Dialing restrictions
Distinctive ringing
Repeat dialing
Speed calling
Three-way calling
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AN ' RATES, CONT'D.

39  Residence Services, (cont'd.)

394 Residential Service Packages

A.  Description

combined with long distance service. This service includes the Customer's
choice of up to five features from the list specified in Section 3.9.3 above
and unregulated services, such as voice messaging, wireless service, video
Internet mccess, and inside wire maintenance, which are
included in the price of the service to the consumer. The retail value of the
local service portion is shown below. These services will only be offered in
a package with nonregulated services and will not be offered individually.

B. Long Distance Service (The rates indicated are illustrative only. Entry into
long distance is subject to Commission authorization).

Intrastate long distance messages will be rated using the rates specified in
Section 3.11.1LA.

The minimum service period for th.* package is ninety days.
D. Rates

Monthly
Residential Packages Service, per line § TBD)
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATE ., CONT'D.
3.10 Business Services
3.10.1 The following vertical services are included in Bus Pkg SM and Bus Pkg MM
Call block

Call forwarding
Call retum

3.102 In addition to the packages specified in this price list, additional custom packages
may be provided in response to a specific Customer request.

3.10.3 The following services are availabl* to Customers who subscribe to one of the
package services offered in this price list. These services may not be purchased
without subscribing to one of the package cervices specified below.

Per Line
Per Month
A. Additional Business Exchang : Line $(TBD)
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONY"D.

3.10 Business Services, (cont'd.)
3.104 Bus Pkg SM

A.  Description

Bus Pkg S*1 provides exchange telecommunications with long distance
service, This package also includes hunting and unlimited use of the vertical
services specified in Section 3.10.1 above and unregulated services, such as
voice messaging, wircless service, and inside wire maintenance, which are
included in the price of the service to the consumer. The retail value of the
local service portion is shown below. These services will only be offered in
a package with nonregulated services and will not be offered individually.

Long Distance Service (The rates indicated are illustrative only. Entry into
long distance is subject to Commission authorization).

Intrastate long distance messages will be -ated using the rates specified in
Section 3.11.1.B,

The minimum service period for this package is one year.

Rates
Monthly
Bus Pkg SM, per line $(TBD)
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE Al ) RATES, CONT™D.

3.10 Business Services, (cont'd.)

3105 Bus Pkg MM

A

Description

service. This package also includes hunting and unlimited use of the vertical
services specified in Section 3.10.1 above and unregulated services which
are included in the price of the service to the consumer. The retail value of
the local service portion is shown below. These services will only be offered
in a package with nonregulated services and will not be offcrad individually.

Long Distance Service (The rates indicated are illustrative only. Entry into
long distance is subject to Commi_sion authorization).

Intrastate long distance messages will be rated using the rates specified in
Section 3.11.1.B.

The minimum service perio.' for this package is one year.

Rates

Monthly
Bus Pkg MM, per channel $(TBD)
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE ANI' RATES, CONT'D.

3.10 Business Services, (cont'd.)

3.10.6 Diversified Access Service

Diversified Access Service provides vendor diversity for dedicated network access
facilities. This package uses scparate dedicated access facilities provided by
different suppliers to connect the Customer to the local exchange company sclected
by the Customer. The Company typically uses dedicated access facilities provided
by the incumbent local exchange company (ILEC) and similar facilities provided by
a facilities-based competitive local exchange carrier (CLEC) unaffilisted with the
ILEC. The Company performs the following functions on behalf of the Customer:
designs separate access and egress routes from the Customer's premises to the local
exchange switching point; procures the facilities from the ILEC and CLEC;
manages the installation, coordination and billing of the services; and acts as the
Customer’s agent for service and support of the dedicated access facilities. The
Company provides a single point of accountability to the Customer for all
coordination of network trouble resolution, including independent telephone
company and CPE vendors/integrators chosen by the Customer. The Customer
must have a designated internal help desk to act as coordination point within the
Customer's business, and if applicable, must have a current maintenance contract
with appropriste CPE vendors/integrators. Customer installation and trouble
resolution status will be provided as spec.fied in the Customer's contract.

Monthly Recurring Charges Individual Case Basis
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONT'D.

311 Domestic Long Distance

Domestic Long Distance service is offered to Customers of Residence or Business
cxchange services. Unless otherwise indicated in the rate plans below, calls are billed in full
minute increments and the minimum call duration for billing purposes is one minute. No
charges apply to incomplete calls. Computation of charges which result in fractional charges
are rounded ap to the next whole cent on a per call basis. Additional per call service charges
as indicated in 3.11.2 below apply when live or automated operator assistance is provided

by the Company to complete or bill the call.
3.11.1 Usage Rates

A.  Residential Usage

1. Direct Dialed Calls
— — — _
Mileage DAY EVENING NIGHT/WEEKEND
FirstMin. | Add'l | FirstMin. | Add'l | FistMin. [ Add"l
Min. Min. Min.
1-10 11900 1900 1425 1425 1140 1140
11-22 1995 1995 1520 1520 1235 1235
23-55 2280 2280 1710 1710 1330 1330
56-124 2375 2375 1805 1805 1425 1425
125202 | 2375 2375 1805 1805 1520 1520
203430 | 2375 2375 1805 1805 1520 1520
431-624 2375 2375 1805 1805 1520 120
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RA .ES, CONT'D.

3.11 Domestic Long Distance, (cont'd.)
3.1L1 Usage Rates, (cont'd.)

A.  Residential Usage, (cont'd.)

2. Calling Card Calls
I—*
Mileage DAY EVENING NIGHT/WEEKEND
First Min. | Add'l FirstMin. | Add'l | First Min. Add’l
Min. Min. Min.
1-10 .1900 1900 1425 '425 1140 1140
11-22 2090 2090 1615 1615 1235 1235
23-55 2375 2375 .1805 .1805 1330 .1330
56-124 2565 2565 .1805 .1805 1425 1425
125-292 2660 2660 .1803 .1805 1520 1520
293-430 2660 2660 1900 1900 1520 1520
431-624 2660 2660 1995 1995 1520 1520
3. Operator Assisted Calls - See Section 3.1'.2 of this price list.
Issued: August 15, 1997 Effective:
Issuedby:  Vice President Supplier Development and Business Relations

BellSouth BSE, Inc.
1100 Peachtree Street, N.E., Suite 500
Alanta, Georgia 30309-4599




BELLSOUTH BSE, INC,

Florida Price List Number 1
Original Page 44

311 Domestic Long Distance, (cont'd.)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND .<(ATES, CONT'D.

3.11.1 Usage Rates, (cont'd.)
B. Business Usage

1. Direct Dialed Calls

Mileage DAY EVENING NIGHT/WEEKEND
FirstMin. | Add'l | FirstMin. | Addl | FirstMin. | Add'l
Min. Min. Min.
1-10 1900 1900 1425 1425 1140 1140
11-:22 1995 1995 1520 1520 1235 1235 |
23-55 2280 2280 A710 A710 1330 1330
56-124 2375 2375 .1805 .1805 1425 1425
125-292 2375 2375 1805 1805 1520 1520
293430 2375 2375 1805 1805 1520 1520
431-624 2375 2375 1805 | 1808 1520 1520
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RAT S, CONT'D.

311 Domestic Long Distance, (cont'd.)
3.11.1 Usage Rates, (cont’d.)
B.  Business Usage, (cont'd.)
2. Calling Card Calls

Mileage DAY EVENING NIGHT/WEEKEND
FirstMin. | Addl | FirstMin. | Add"l | FirstMin. | Add'l
Min, Min. Min.
1-10 1900 | .1900 1425 1425 1140 | 1140
1122 | 2000 | 209 1615 1615 1235 1235
23-55 2375 2375 1805 1205 1330 [ L1330
56-124 | 2568 2565 1805 1805 1425 1425
125-292 2660 2660 1825 1805 1520 1520
293-430 2660 .2660 1900 1900 1520 1520
431624 | 2660 2660 1995 1995 1520 1520

3. Operator Assisted Calls - See Section 3.11.2 of this price list.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONT'D.
3.11 Domestic Long Distance, (cont'd.)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONT'D.

311 Domestic Long Distance, (cont’d.)

3.11.2 Operator Assistance Service

A.  Usage Charges

Each call is billed in one minute increments. The minimum call duration for

billing purposes is one minute. Computation of charges which result in
fractional charges are rounded up to .ne next whole cent on a per call basis.

Mileage DAY EVENING NIGHT/WEEKEND
First Min, Add'l Firs: Min. Add’l First Min. Add'l
Min. Min. Min.
1-10 1900 1900 1425 1425 1140 1140
11-22 2090 2090 1615 1615 1235 1235
23.55 2375 2375 .1805 1805 1330 1330
56-124 2565 2565 1805 .1805 1425 1425
125-292 2660 2660 1805 1805 1520 1520
293430 2660 2660 1900 1900 1520 1520
431-624 2660 2660 1995 1995 1520 .1520
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONT'D.

3.11 Domestic Long Distance, (cont'd.)
3.11.2 Operator Assistance Service, (cont'd.)

B.  Operator Assistance Service Charges

Per Call
Customer Dialed Calling Card $0.76
Operator Dialed Calling Card §1.66
Collect $1.66
Billed to Third Party $1.66
Person-to-Person $3.09
Operator Dinled Surcharge $1.09
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1997

4,596
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EXHIBIT Q - 16(A)(2)
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Balance Sheet

All Numbers in $000s.
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L
Shareholders}

Shortly after taking over my new
responsibilities as your company’s CEQ in Janu-
ary, | went to Florida to meet with a group of our
marketing people. Florida is our largest market,
and | wanted to get a feel for how competition is
affecting our employees on the front lines. |
wanted to know more sbout what our customers
cxpect from BellSouth. Just as important, [ wanted
to know what our customers are hearing from
oL competitors.

1 was not surprised to scc our employees are ris-
ing to the new challenges in the marketplace.
Our people are driven to continue

13 Years ﬂf ant_”nu: Growth to earn the loyalty of our existing
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customers. And they are determined

_1,.._

‘L"‘:j“"l"“'

: 1—|— 1

to win new customers. They are telling

1T 3w]*"? the BellSouth story:
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_1 s *We have the world’s highest san-

dards of reliability and performance;
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1"« Wk have highly trained technicians

I— 11 and . L arvicenenkmonal

unnnunmﬂnnnﬁi’ * Our customers can reach us 24 hours

Chualiry of earnings sarss on the top line” with revemue grownh,
and in 1996 BellSouth grew revemues 6.5%, the bighess me since

1988, We curpassed $19 billioe for the firs time
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a day, 7 days a week:
* Our fiber optic and digital nerworks are state-
of-the-ary;
* Our financial strength ensures we'll be there
when our customers need us.

from the growing number of wireline and wire-
less competitors.
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Building value {for our Owners}by

Keeping it Simple
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Shareholders}

13 Years of Revenue Growth
Fom b

Shortly after taking over my new
responsibilities as your company’s CEO in Janu-
ary, | went to Florida to meet with a group of our
marketing people. Florida is our largest market,
and | wanted to get a feel for how comperition is
affecting our employees on the front lines. |
wanted to know more about what our customers
expect from BellSouth. Just as important, | wanted
to know what our customers are hearing from
OUF COMPETItors.

I was not surprised to see our employees are ris-
ing to the new challenges in the marketplace.
Our people are driven to continue
to earn the loyalty of our existing
~ustomers. And they are determined
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AR to in new customers. They are telling
the bellSouth story:

* We 1ave the world’s highest stan-

dan's of reliabiliry and performance;
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« Wi have highly trained technicians
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84 65 BO 67 B8 89 90 91 92 93 % 9% 9% * Our umomers can reach us 24 hours

CQualiry of carnings starts on the top line™ with revenue groweh,
and in 1996 BellSouth grewe revemuer 6.5%, the kighet nete since
1988, Wi murpasied $1 9 billion for the first time.

ada;, 7 days a week;
* Our fiber optic and digital networks are state-
of-the-ary;

* Our financial strength ensures we'll be there
when our customers need us.

These are the strengths that differentiate BellSouch
from che growing number of wircline and wite-
less competitors.
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time. We became the first telecommunications
company to grow by mote than one million U.S.
acoess lines in a single year. Our wiseless operations
around the world grew by an unprecedented
1,354,000 customers.

The President signed the Telecommunications Act
in February 1996. More than a vear later, | had

Customers buy solutions. They want
easy, practical applications.




We know the best way to meet the expectation: of our

owners is to exceed the expectati ns of our customers.

BN A ckerman
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{Dear Shareholders. )

international marketing and information firm
J. D. Power and Associates conducted its first-ever
survey of local telephone customers. BellSouth
ranked Number 1 in customer satisfaction.

Then in February 1997, Fornese magazine reported
on the American Consumer Satisfaction Index.
To determine the rankings, the University of
Michigan and the American Society for Qualicy
Control surveyed 28,000 customers of 198 com-
panies in 26 industries. | am proud that BellSouth
was again the clear winner with customers in local
telephone service.

We're keeping our focus on the customer and on
service. At the same time our marketing is gener-
ating superior growth through new services and
products. When you received your 1995 annual
report a year ago, packaged products and per-use
convenicnce features were concepts that had just
come off the drawing board. Since then, we've
sold 1.1 million packages such as our Complete
Choice™ service. For one low price, Complete
Choice bundles basic telephone service with
Caller ID, Call Waiting and as many calling fea-
tures as our customers want. Per-use calling fea-
tures such as Three-Way Calling — a great value
at 75 cents = have been enormously popular
with our customers. All told, revenues from the
array of convenience features customers use on
top of their basic phone service grew more than
30 percent i, 1996. That revenue stream totaled
an impressive §1 billion for the first ime.

Leveraging the power of our BellSouth brand is a
key element of our determination to win, As our

people in Florida made cle . - to me, with all the
competitors crowding into die markerplace, the
BellSouth brand is a beacon to busy consumers.
People tum to the company they know and trust
as a safe haven from all the hype. Our world class
performance at the 1996 Olympic Games was a
tremendous boost to our marketing initiatives.
After the 17 days of the Games, our trouble report
log showed exactly zer entries. BellSouth proved
we can execute for a customer the size of the
Olympic Games. That means people in the South
know we can handle any customer’s telecommu-
nications needs.

We're purting a lot of muscle behind making
BellSouth synonymous with ease, reliability and
value in every aspect or telecommunications -
local, long distance, wireless, video, Internet ...
residential, large business and small business.
We turnea up the heat on our advertising and
marketing programs in 1996. This annual report
is full of exampi=s of BellSouth's creative posi-
tioning in the markesnlace. | hope you will spend
some time checking ovt the dozens of innova-
tions we're bringing to s dvertising, marketing,
merchandising, promotic n and distribution.

In our booming domest: : wircless business, we're
coupling impressive custc ner growth with profic
growth. Last year we add d nearly 2,100 cus-
tomers every day in our U.u, cellular operations,
while at the same time we grew net income 24 per-
cent to $363 million. As for service, BellSouth
Mobility alzo won the ]. D. Power and Associates
Award in 1996 for top customer satisfaction in
major markets — for the second year in a row.

The Bellsouth brand is a beacon to busy consumers -
the company they know and trust as a safe haven from all the hype.




BellSouth ranked No. 1 in customer satisfaction in
J.D. Power and Associates’ 1996 sur::zy.

In our international operations, we passed the
one million customer mark in July 1996, and neardy
doubled our base in the year as a whole. With
licenses covering 62 million potential customers,
we still have lots of room to grow. When you con-
sider that half the people in the world have never
placed a phone call, you begin to realize interna-
tional markets will provide excellent growth oppor-
nnities for BellSouth well into the new century.

In his 13 years as CEO of BellSouth, my prede-
cessor, John Clendenin, instilled a dual dedica-
tion to customers and sharcholders throughout
our company. John saw the competitive future,
and he paved the way for this corporation ro
continue to prosper in the wake of last year's
sweeping new law.

From Day One in 1984, we've been building on
the foundation that John established. We con-
tinue to grow and diversify around BellSouth’s
core strength: ioday. We've taken whar many con-
sidered to be a mature telephone business and
made it a growth engine for sharcholders by marer-
scratch, we've built our domestic and international
cellular operations into businesses with a com-
bined $3.3 billion in revenues. Our financial focus
has provided competitive retums for
investors, and we've driven our

growth rate in 1996 to 12.9 percent. We expect
another good year in 1997, assuming the Federal
Comm: nications Commission deals evenhand-
edly with universal service and acorss reform.

We know the best way to meet the expecrations of
our owners is to exceed the expectations of our cus-
tomers. And we are major shareholders ourselves.
BellSouth’s management, directors and employees
are by far the largest owners of our stock. Together
we own more than 120 million shares — five times
Almost 50 percent of all our officens’ compensation
is linked directly to total sharcholder recum.

Driven by 16 consecutive quarters of improved
operating results, BellSouth enters this exciting
new era of expanded competition and opportu-
nity in a strong position. Our core businesses
arc thriving. We're strengthening these solid
feundations and deploying BellSouth's $5.9 bil-
lion ~ash flow to launch new strategic invest-
ments in one of the world’s premier growth
industries - telecommunications.

We have the right strategies. We have a strong
managem mt team that is strategically focused and
financiall » motivated. Above all, we are deter-
mined to\in in the marketplace. Winning means
keeping it « asy, reliable and a good value for our
customers. Winning means keeping it simple.

Duane Ackerman
President and Chief Executive Officer
February 1997
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Few stand taller
{A tribute to John Clenc enin}

The true measure of a CEO is what he does for shareholders, and the true measure of a person is
what he does for his family, his communiry and his country. By all these measures, few people in
business history stand taller than John Clendenin. The only CEO BellSouth had from the com-
pany's birch in 1984 through 1996, John was the compass that constantly guided BellSouth’s
future. He instilled standards of excellence, inspired high . chievement and embodicd the leader-
ship qualities that make everyone he comes in contact with p roud to be on John Clendenin’s team.

How your investment in BellSoith has grown

fom dmtlpe

10,000

BellSouth




{Financial Highlights}

BELLSOUTH CORMORATION (dollars in sillisnt, anceps por shass dass) 1996~ 1995~ 1994 1993 1992
Operating Revenues $19040  SI17886  S16845 515880 §15.202
Openating Expenses $14.261 S$145% 512787 5 4593 S12.040
Net Income (Lom) § 2,863 $(1.232) $2160 $ 880 § 1618
Earnings (Los) Per Share i 1 s$(24 35 21213 3 B9 5§ 165
Dividends Per Share 5 1M 5 14 $ 138 3§ 13 § I\»
Book Value Per Share § 1337 S 119 $ 1448 51360 5 1397
Weighted Average Shares Ourstanding imifis) M 993 /M 1 981
Total Ascta $32.568 $31.880 534397 331873 531463
Capital Expenditures § 4455 $4203 $3600 53486 53109
Return to Average Common Equiry 12.4% (9.2%) 154% 63%  119%
Dbt Ranio 43.5% 46.7% 39.5% 40.7% 39.0%
Employces fond of esc) 81,241 §7.571 92,121 95084 97,112
Telephone Employees tond of pear) 62425 68,585 73764 77958 79453
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Eammir Per Share

91 9% W1 %

Ferord armumg per share of £ 88 ox | 996
incliuded 35 conts from the ke of paging
apen. _ans. Reporsed EPS in 1955 nflecsd
spevial charrpe totaling $3. 48, including
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Winning in the Marketplace

{A discussion about the future with President and
Chief Executive Officer Duane Ackerman|

Q How is BellSouth getting ready for competition?

A We're not getting ready for competition. W are competing now. "We've been
working hard to achieve open competition for virtually the entire life of th: corpora-
tion. Now, it’s our time in history. We're focused on the customer, we have the sight
growth strategies, we're executing those strategies, and we are determined to win 0 the
competitive marketplace. We have a lot going for us - new products, a very strong biand,
proven marketing ability, excellent sales and distribution channels, a huge base o f
satished customers, and BellSouth's financial firepower. As you page through t.is
annu:! report, | think you will get a feel for the aggressive and creative actions - «'re
taking to make it casy for our customers 1o do business with BellSouth.

Q What are the key factors for success in the new markeplace?

A. One big factor is integrating our product lines — local and long distance; wirdline and
wireless; voice, data and video. One of the first actions | took as CEO was to create
a new vice president of marketing position to make this happen. We're already selling
service, with our “phone ine in a box™ concep in retail stores. Thar's been 2 big his with
customers who want to get all they need in one easy p ckage to go on-line with their
computer and surf the Weeb. Our customers see BellSouth as one company that provides
all their communications products and services in any combination they want.
Efficiency is another critical element in s competitive environment. Our costs
have to be low enough to give us the flexibility to be competitive. That's why we've

(8]
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BellSouth will provide any combination







Keeping it easy.
Keeping it reliable.
Keeping it a good value.

Whenever anyone researches what customers want today from the companies that serve them,
one word practically screams ous of the surveys: simplicity. BellSouth listens to our customers,

50 we can see our service through their eyes. We give them convenience,
dependability and value because we know for our customers,

the most important thing is

Keeping it simple.




Keeping it easy.

________________________________
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Wihenever a customer deals with BellSouth, we want them o tell their neighbors
how easy we are to do business with. We are determined to stay betser than any other
company at keeping our products and services casy and practical.



How we are keeping it easy.

{ BellSouth takes care of the details so Hour customers }
can take care of what’s important to them.

High Profile Pages
Actress Dixde Carters wit

and credibility come
throwugh in TV ads where
the popular star explains
how easy it is to get projects
accomplished wsing the
BellSouth Yellow Pages.

TV Campaigns
Promeoting packages and
bundles of services makes
it easy for customers to

get ihe exact combinations
of BellSouth calling featueres
they want - and at the

same time they save meney

Awstralia

Mere than 100 Opius
World locations make it
vy for customers to find
the full communications
solution for their hame
or business in one stare
Optus revenuei grew
36% in 1996,

Going To Customers
Distribution is the name
of the game in wireless ser-
vices. That’s why BellSouth
goes where it eary for custo-
miers — supermarkess and
thossands of other prime
dissribution channels
throughour the South



Say I My Way
BellSouzh speaks our cus-
tomery languages ~ seven
of them: English, Spanish,
French, German, Portuguese
Creole and Arabic dislects
Ay waay cussomers say
“easy, " BellSouth makes

it that way for them.

Human Faciors Lab
When it comes to becping
it simple for customers,
BellSouth has it down to

a science. Our Science &
Technology Human
Factors Lab painstakingly
rnn:rrl':ﬂ how to make our
services easy and fun to we.

Cellular Cordless™
BellSouthi strategies to

bundle services come
eether in Cetlular Cordless.

:
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How we are keeping it reliable.

' BellSouth invests billions in stat --of-the-art technology su,}
for our customers, “It’s All Here”- when they need it!

BellSouth knows our
customers are busy Tharts
extended-hour repair and
snseallation appointments
starting at 7a.m. weekdays
and on weeckends.

Germany
E-Plus tripled its customer

base in 1996, thanks te a
nerwork that covers more
than 90% of the population,
makir g the German wire-
less phone rystem sne

of the largest and most
reliable in the world

Residantinl Serviaan
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Back Up And Running
BellSouth operates one of
the maost reliable telecom-
munications networks in
the world becawse, when
narural disasters such as
hurricanes strike, our people

know how and can do

Call Waiting

Astention getting TV ads
bhelp make Call Wairing
BellSouth’s mest popular
feature, with 56% market
penerrasion. Call Waiting
puts an end to missing
important calls when
you're on the line.

1'll Take Care Of That
BellSouths Web site thows
custemers theyre mever on hol
with Right Touck® service
Their own personal code gire
CUIIIMETS OaTy ACceis [0 duto-
ma.=d billing informanior,
and le.v them order service

and aciivaie calling feature

anyr.me, Jl_)' ar mg'fﬂ'.
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Bilingual Directories

the Miami Yellow Pages
the reliable resource for all
our customers in BellSouthi
They can ind what they
want 1o buy, when they're
ready to buy

Nationwide Roaming
Ohir cellular customers can

count on quality service

! from BellSouth, even when

outside their home territory
With nationwide roaming,
all eur customers have
to do is turn on their phone,
and they're in business.

Digital Wireless

First minute free on incom-
ing calls is just one of the
many free features customers
get in markets where
m:&;MM

e a

ArgentinalUruguay
Because BellSouth and ity
peariners operate cellular
nitems in both Argentina
and Urguay owr ‘voaming”
customers rely on their
wireles phones when
traveling between the

Latin American neighbor.

NetDay In Schools
BellSouth’ initiatives in the
important education market-
place emphasize bringing
our services, including
Internet technology and
training, to some 2 million
students and teachers across
the Souzh.

Service Call Routing
Cistomers calling BellSouth
can reiy on quicker response
because, when demand is
heaviest, our new system
routes calls to the next

JIHJE‘&L’ WFWI‘I‘IJHH" - 1]



Keeping it a good value. -«




To most telecommunications customers, a good value docn't mean just a competitive price.
Value means gesting the variety of practical services customers need in today’s busy world, withous the
hassle of dealing with a bunch of different suppliers. "BellSouth . the one company I do busi::*ss with,”
we want our customers to continue saying. “To me, they're the best value. I don't need to switch.”



How we are keeping it a good value.

{ BellSouth is making sure that our br: 1d means
customers get great value at competitive prices.

Small Business VISA Internet

BellSouth™ VISA® Small With BellSouth.net ;-
Business Cand is a terrific reliable Internet access
value. It gives customers 15 just the beginning

cash back ex phone charges Attractive pricing, an
and purchases, offers higher interactive tour of the
eredis limits and provides a World Wide Web and
year-end repors for finan- alllancer with leading
cial management. Web sites add more value

Sor our customers.

Celebrity Advertising Prepaid Cellular
Convenience features such We make purchasing mobil
i Caller ID are an even phone service as simple as
greater value when custo- pouible with BellSouth
mers take advantage of Prepaid Cellular™Service.
BellSouzh promeotions Jts @ way of expanding
advertised by celebrities the market to budget
such as country music conscious customers who
superstar Naomi fudd. want flexibility
Denmark Telemedicine

In Denmark, Sonofon grew BellSoushs powerful
150% in 1996 because of data services are just the

' walue the doctor erdered
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customers not only dozens

ring lets you know whe
the call is for, and cach
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HerllSouthi innevative premanian
and pervasive dussribunen cheaned
cwnnnms 1o cxpand the marbet for
svrrien phone.

'S

will provide our customers with bundled wircless
and wireline services as regulations permit.

International BeliSouds incerns-
tional strategy is to continue to grow our existing
operations and expand into new markets and
related network services. We're raking strengths

thar are second narure to us in the U.S. and find-



BellSouth takes its expertise around the world. ‘
{Our Expanding International Operations|




{Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income}

BellBouth Corporation

For the yeans ended Decemt - 31,
(1 milliona) 1996 1995 1994

revenues: ' é.
DmuNﬂwrkumdrﬂmdmﬁ‘#“;IM, ﬁlf if

$ 7.294 $ 6,863

lnum:u: access 5.553 3.275 3,127
Intrastate access 812 BB4 o8
Tell 794 1,009 1,190
Wireless communications 2,799 2,592 2,067
Directory advertising and publishing 1,742 1,677 1,556
Other services 58 1,155 L134
Total operating revenucs
Operating expenses 14,261 14,594 12,787
Operating income 4779 3292 4,058
Interest expense 721 724 666
Gain on sale of paging business 442 - -
Other income, net 108 20 11
Income before income taxes and extraordinary losses 4,608 2,588 3,403
Provision for income taxes 1,745 1,004 1,243 :
Income before extraordinary losses W“’ 1,564 2,160 )
Extraordinary loss for discontinuance W '

of SFAS No. 71, net of tax™ » :l‘?ﬂ (2,718)
Extraordinary loss on early W :

_extinguishment of debt, net of tax (78) -
Mert income (loss) $(1.232) $ 2,160
ijﬂm“ﬁﬂi_ﬂﬂ*ﬂ mancial gatrmenss por. wied in the appendic w the
proxy patrment.
{a) During 1995, BellSouth recognised a charge of § 1,082 for work force redusctions in o relephone perations. The charge
reduced net income by $663.

(b} In 1995, BellSouth recognized & one-time noncask charge of $2.718 for the discontinuance of S+ sement of Financial
Accounting Sandards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effecn of Ceruin Types of Regulano: ©
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{Report of Independent Accountants)

To the Sharcholders of
BellSouth Corporation
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{The Board Df Directors}

BellSouth Corporation
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{BellSouth C

Keith O. Cowan
Vice Presidens -

Corporate Development

Mark E. Droege
Vice President -

Financial Management
and Tressurer
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orporation|
Executive Vice Presid  tand ~ Vice President

Chief Financial Offic and Coatroller

H.C. Henry, Js. Arlen G. Yokley
mmm- Senior Vice Presiden:t -
Corporate Relations Executive Sealf Officer

Vice Presiden: -
Governmental Affain



SHARE . R

You can share an experience. Share a secret.Or you can have a share in someon /s success. That's exact:y what
BellSouth invites you to do. For the first time ever, you can buy shares directly from BellSouth. It's your chance
to invest simply and easily, with lower trading fees. Not only is BzlISouth the teleccommunicartions leader in the
fastest-growing region in the nation, but we've also excelled with steady expansion both domestically and
internationally. Call anytime for your “plain English™ prospectus and enroliment form. Or write to BellSouth
Shareholder Services at Washington Bridge Station, PO. Box 465, NY, NY 10033-0465. The company that helps
you share your words wants you to share in our growth, too.




1996 the year in simple terms

{Major successes in * 996

Record Earnings

BellSouth boossed it financral sremgeh in 1996 wish record earmings per share
#of $2.53, before & one-time puin of 35 conts en the sale of paging operasions
This was 4 12.9% imcroase compared 10 exrmings per share in 1995 of $2.24
bfore special charges.

b
apgreuively communicasing that mssage 19 cussemens in the South with
and iporis ipamsoribips

International Expansion
BellSoush continues 1o hit sts twe main srrasegic targets in the insernational
In 1996, we so_red past the | millsom mark in cellular customers everseas,
inaupuraied services in Punama, and increased our ewnenship percensage in
Denmark. Alrezdy ‘n 1997, BeliSouth has acquired majority ewnership of
FPerwvian telecommunicetions company Tele 2000

No. 1 in Customer atisfaction

J-D. Power and Associate first-. ser survey of cussomer satisfaction in the local

telecommunicasicns industry ca we up with a clear winner in 1995 - BellSouth
Then im February 1997, the U siversity of Michigun and the American Seciery

Jor Quality Control reported ts at BellSoush topped all ochers in local telepbone
services on the American Conss wer Satisfaction Index. RellSouth Mobility abio
won the J.1D. Fower and Avocias » Award for the second year in a row

t Internet Access

Ly et BellSouth) mew service. BellSouth.met ™= breaks down the barriens betwern you
L and the Interner Within weeks of its launch in Awgust | 996, BellSouth ner won

' = st kopalry of e of thousands of Wb serfers wizh i high queality, relaable commection

- 20 the Internet and fearures iuch as local bore pages thai can be cusiomized,

- Imternet tutwrial. 2 Rapid Response Help Desk and flexible pricing,

Mlvmnis Camae
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Wmﬂmﬁﬂmmhmhmm“pmﬁduhd
mmmmmmummmmmmbmuam
market a full array of telecommunications services to businesses and consumers, indu ‘ng private
neeworks, advanced data services, MemoryCall*voice mail service, Caller 1D, TouchScar* - vices, and
other Custom Calling features. BellSouth is one of the world's largest wireless comi wunications
mmuhumﬂmhwmmhmm
12 other countries. BellSouth leads the industry in Yellow Pages advertising and directory publish-
h}ﬂwhpuﬁhuhﬁh;mpnhmhuwwﬂm&m $19 billion and
assets of over $32 billion. BellSouth is headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia, and employs some
81,000 men and women in 18 countries.}

Just call BellSouth's Sharcholder Services toll-free for answers to questions regarding stock transactions.

1-800-631-6001

8 a.m.-8 p.m. Eastern Time
&rfmm&rpumquﬂﬂﬂﬂhﬁqm-pu&hm—ﬂmfﬂsm or5to8p.m.
Ynumﬂamﬂpﬂiﬁnﬂbuﬂh‘dﬁrﬂtmmﬁyﬁ&dqﬁw
payments. If you're outside the United States, call collect 212-946-7440.

Our FAX number is 201-329-8990.

Visit BellSouth's home page on the Internet’s World Wide Web at
huep://www.bellsouth.com

{Shareholder Information]}

Corporate Headquarten Investor Relations Annual Meeting
BellSouth Corporation Inquiries from individual of BeliSour. Corporation’s Annusl
1155 Peachtree Street, N.E. institutional investors, Mecting ¢ Shaseholders will be
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

BeliSouth Corporation (BeliSouth) is a holding company providing telecomn unications services,
systems and products primarily through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, BeliSouth Telecommunica-
tions, Inc. (BeliSouth Telecommunications) and BeliSouth Enterprises, Inc. (BelSouth Enterprises).
BeliSouth Telecommunications provides pradominantly tariffed wireline telscommunications senvices to
approximately two-thirds of the population and one-half of the territory within Alabama. Florida, Georpia,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippl, North Carolina, South Caroling and Tennessee. BellSouth's other
businesses (predominantly wireless and intemational communications services and advertising and
publishing products) are conducted primarily through subsidiaries of BeliSouth Enterprises. BellSouth
has its principal executive offices at 1155 Peachtree Street, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 303083610 (tele-
phone number 404-248-2000).

muwmmwww.mnnmem.m
seven holding companies including BellSouth (the Hoiding Companies), and transierred 10 them one or
more of the operating telephone companies (the Operating Telephone Companies) that were formerly
part of the Bell System. As a result, ATAT transferred to BeliSouth its 100% ownership of South Central
Bell Telephone Company (South Central Bell) and Southem Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company
(Southemn Bell). On January 1, 1884, ownership of the Holding Companies was transierred by AT&T lo
its shareholders. As a result, BeliSouth became a publicly traded company. BeltSouth Telecommunica-
tions is the surviving corporation from the merger of South Central Bell and Southem Bell, effective at
midnight December 31, 1881,

Under the MFJ, the Operating Telephone Companies co.id provide local exchange, exchange
access, information access and 1ol telecommunications service. within their assigned geographical
territories, termed “Local Access and Transport Areas™ (LATAs). Ahough prohibited from providing
service between LATAs, the Operating Telephone Companies providec' exchange access services that
linked a subscriber's telephone or other equipment in one of their LATA.: to the transmission facliities of
carriers (the Interexchange Carriers), which provided toll telecommunica jons services between different
LATAs.

In February 1996, the President signed into law the Telecommunic ations Act of 1996 (the 1996 Act).
This legisiation provides for the development of competitive local tele communications markets; termi-
mum.wmmwumhmwmopmtmmd
inlerLATA telecommunications and other services; and repeals the .iws prohibiting the Operating
Telephone Companies and their affiliates from providing video serviced within their service areas. The
ability of the Operating Telephone Companies o enter businesses previously proscribed to them by the
MFJ is, however, generally subject to numerous criteria and the development of and compiliance with
newly mandated federal iegulations,

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

70%, 70% and 72% of BellSouth's operating revenues for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 1896, 1995 and 1994, respectively, were from wireline telecommunications services provided by
BeliSouth Tels communications. The remainder was principally derived from wireless operations, direc-
mmwmmmmmmmmmm
services provided to ATAT, BeliSouth's la ‘gest customer, comprised approximately 8%, 10% and 11% of
1996, 1995 and 1994 operating revenues, respactively.
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TELEPHONE COMPANY OPERATIONS

BellSouth Telecommunications provides, predominantly, local exchange, exchange access and
intralATA toll services within each of the 38 LATAs in its coml 1ed nine-state wireline operating area.
BeliSouth Telecommunications provided approximately 22,13! 700 customer access ines at Decem-
ber 31, 1686, an overall increase of 4.7% since December "1, 1985. The increaso was primarily
attributable to continued economic growth in BeliSouth Telecommunications® nine-state service region,
Growth in second residential lines accounted for approximately 28% of the overall increese In total
access lines since December 31, 1985. (Soe “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition — Volumes of Business.")

At December 31, 1896, approximately 74% of access lines were in 44 metropolitan areas, each
having a population of 125,000 or more. Many localities and some sizable areas in the states in which
BellSouth Telecommunications operates are served primarily by non-affiliated telephone companies,
which had approximataly 29% of the network access lines in such states on December 31, 1986.
BeliSouth Telecommunications does not furish, on a significant scale, local exchange, access or toll
services in the areas served by such companies.

Local And intralLATA Toll Services

Charges for local services for each of the years ended December 31, 1096, 1885 and 1904
accounted for approximately 42%, 41% and 41% of BellSouth's operating revenues, respectively. Local
services operations provide lines from telephone exchange offices to subscribers’ premises for the
origination and termination of telecommunications, including the following: basic local telephone ser-
vice provided through the regular switched network; dedicated private line facilities for voice and special
services, such as transport of data, radio and video, and foreign exchange services; switching services
for customers' internal communications through facilities owned by BeliSouth Telecommunications;
services for data transport that include managing and configuring special service networks; and dedi-
cated low or high capacity public or private digital networks. Other local services revenue is derived from
intercept and directory assistance, public telenhones and various optional central office features, such
as Caller ID service, Call Walting, Cali Return and 3-Way Calling. As other telecommunications compa-
ﬁummmwmwmmhmwﬂwm.m
Telecommunications will increasingly sell to such cariers unbundied local service elements and dis-
counted wholesale local service for resale.

BeliSouth Telecommunications offers certain enhancad services, such as MemoryCall™ voice
maessaging service, through s network. These services difi.ir from basic services in that they employ
computer processing applications to alter the subscriber's ransmifted information; provide the sub-
scriber additional, different or restructured information; or avoive subscriber interaction with stored
information. The terms of many of these service offerings are not reguiated under the rules of the Fedaral
Communications Commission (FCC), but the FCC prescribe s the method by which such services may
be provided (for exampie, through structurally separated subs 'diaries or arrangements providing access
to competitive providers). During 1996, total revenue from en“anced and other optional services was
approximately $1 billion.

BellSouth Telecommunications provides intralATA toll services within (but not between) is 38
LATAs. Such toll services provided approximately 4%, 6% and 7% of BellSouth's operating revenues for
the years ended December 31, 1896, 1905 and 1984, respectively. These services include the lollowing:
intralLATA service beyond the local calling ares; Wide Area Telecommunications Service (WATS or 800
gervices) for customers with highly concentrated demand; and special services, such as transport of
data, radio and video. In recent years, these toll revenues have decreased as local calling areas have
mwwummﬂmmw,mmuwum.

Regulation of Local and Toll Services
mwumuwmnmmwmm
in each state where It provides intrastate teiscommunications services; such regulation covers rates,




services, competition and other issues. Traditic
oach state in its senvice area at levels which wer
aliowed expenses and 10 provide an opportuni
Such a regulatory structure was satistaciory in 2
regulatory processes have changed in respon
environment.

Rate Regulstion
Under one form of alternative reguiation, gt
tives are provided to lower costs and increase |

prices that can be charged for certain telecom
of increases in prices for specified services, |
service oplions 1o more effectively respond 1o
vides an opportunity to more fully benefit from p
Telecommunications has focused its regulaton
Such plans have been approved or authorized |
stales in BellSouth Telecommunications’ wirel
states excepl Tennessee, where judicial appe

The following section contains a brief det
Telecommunications’ nine-state wireline termito

Alabama

From December 1888 to September 1895,
response to & law enacted in 1995 permitting
altemnative methods of regulation that are not
Alabama Commission approved a price regu
prices for basic services, including local excha
capped for five years, after which prices may b
prices for non-basic servicas are capped for or
to 10% annually; and intrastate switched accet
rates. Additional terms of the price regulation |
lion through 1899, exclucling intrastate switct
swilched access are estinated 1o be §25 mill

Fiorida

From 1868 through 1882, an incentive re(
Public Service Commission extended the plan’
approximately $300 million over a three-year

In 1995, a iaw was enacted which allowed
price regulation, prices for basic services (wi
local exchange services) are capped for five )
with an inflation-pased formula. Prices for ©
service, are capped for three years at the rates
may be adjusted annually subject to defined lin
intrastate switched access prices will decreas
interstalo swilched access rates. In Noveml




From 1990 to August 1605, BaliSouth H under an incentive regulation
mhwhw1m.:mm¢mm- sctive In July 1895, allowed BeliSouth
Wumnmw s oribed In the legisiation. In July 1985,
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accoss services.
Kentucky
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In order to implement the price mmemﬁﬂcEwmw
rmmmmmmmwwmmnﬁmmmm
basis. BeliSouth Telecommunications has 10 the Tennessee Court of Appeals. This Court has

Local Service Competition
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universal service, mnmmmﬁm.nwnmuww
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avoided. BeliSouth Telecommunications has executed over 40 interconnection or resale agreements
with such carriers and is currently involved in arbitration proceedings with a number of other camiers,
including ATAT, MCl Communications Corporation (MCl) and Sprint Corporation (Sprint). :

In connection with the requirements of the 1886 Act, in August 189€. the FCC released an order
adopting rules goveming interconnection and open competition in the loc ' telephone service industry
(the Order). Among the issues specifically addressed by the Order are the ytwork elements that ILECs
must make avallable; pricing standards to be foliowed by states in settl ; rates for interconnection,
access to network elements on an unbundied basis and resold services. SeliSouth and several other
ILECs joined in an appeal of the Order to the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Clrcuit (the
Court). Upon request of several state commissions and ILECs, the Court stayed the Order in pan,
pending appeal. Such stay relates to pricing prescriptions and certain other terms. The Court heard oral
arguments in January 1887, and a decision is pending. Notwithstanding these developments, however,
as discussed above, BellSouth Telecommunications and a number of carriers have negotiated intercon-
nection agreements and state regulatory commissions are arbitrating or have approved various terms of
interconnection between BeliSouth and other carriers. These terms may be revised, depending on,
among other things, the oulcome of the appeal of the Order. The arbitration results for the wholesale
discount rates vary by state from approximately 156% to 21%.

In attempting 1o comply with the technical requirements of interconnection, BellSouth expects to
incur significant costs associated with the development or modification of systems necessary 1o make
interconnaction possible. For example, BellSouth Telecommunications will be required to provide for
long-term number portability whereby customers switching to competing local carriers will be able to
retain their telephone numbers without interruption or charge. It is unciear as 1o what degree BellSouth
will be able to recover these costs.

Regulation of Access Services

BeliSouth Telecommunications provides access services by connecting the equipment and facil-
ties of its subscribers with the communications networks of interexchange Carriers. These connections
are provided by linking these carriers and subscribers through the public switched network of BellSouth
Telecommunications or through dedicated private lines fumnished by BeliSouth Telecommunications.
Rates and other aspects of interstate access services are regulated by the FCC, and state regulatory
commissions have jurisdiction over the provision of s cess to the interexchange Carriers to complete
intrastate telecommunications.

Access charges, which are payable both by Interexct.wnge Cariers and subscribers, provided
23%, 23% and 24% of BeliSouth’s operating ren snues for the years ended December 31,
1996, 1995 and 1094, respectively. These charges are designe: 10 recover the costs of the common and
dedicaled facilities and switching equipment used to connect networks of interexchange Carriers with
the telephone company’s local network and to subsidize the ¢ ast of providing local service to rural and
other high-cost areas. in addition, an interstate subscriber line access charge of $3.50 per line per month
applies 1o single-line business and residential customers. T ¢ interstate subscriber access charge for
muiti-line business customers varies by state but cannot ex sed $6.00 per line per month. The state
commissions have authorized BellSouth Telecommunications | 7 collect from the interexchange Carriers
and, in several states, from customers charges for providing 'atrastate access services.

The FCC regulates the level of access charges through a price cap plan. The price cap ['an limits
aggregate price changes 1o the rate of inflation minus an ILEC-selected productivity offset, plus or minus
exogenous cost changes recognized by the FCC. Two of the productivity options in the current plan,
4.0% and 4.7%, provide defined eamings limitations with a sharing mechaniam. A third option in the
plan, 5.9%, femoves both samings limitations and sharing requirements. Consistent with & pricing
strategy that BaliSouth Telecommunications considered compatible with an increasingly competitive
business environment, i selected a 5.3% productivity factor, which, together with other adjustments, has




decreased interstate access revenues below what would have been produced under the other alterna-
tives by approximately $220 million on an annual basis at 1994 access volume levels. The FCC has
under consideration the issue of whether further modification of this plan is warranted.

The 1896 Act requires the FCC to identily the local service subsidy provided by acress charges; to
provide for the removal of such subsidy from access rates in order that access charges r ‘ect underlying
costs; to arrange for a universal service fund to ensure the continuation of universa’ ‘ervice; and to
develop the arrangements for payments into that fund by all cariers. The FCC s curr “tly engaged in
this proceeding. In addition, the FCC has commenced a proceeding 10 revise its access charge rules.

InterLATA Toll Service

As a result of the 1996 Act, BeliSouth and the other Holding Companies are freed from the judicial
restrictions of the MFJ that constrained the provision of interLATA communications throughout their
wireline senvice lemitories and elsewhere; the 1898 Act establishes in its place a new restriction and a
procedure for its removal, These companies or their affiliates may apply to the FCC on a state-by-stale
basis to offer in-region interLATA wirsline services, and the FCC must act on such appilication within 80
days. The FCC must grant such application If it determines that the applicant (a) has met a competitive
checklist; (b) has shown (f) the presence of a facilities-based provider offering both residential and
business services or (i) If there is no such provider, a statement that has been approved or permitted to
take effect by state reguiatory authorities, of the terms under which it would be willing to interconnect
with a competitive local carrier; (¢) will operate consistently with the separate subsidiary requirement;
and (d) has presented an application consistent with the public interest. The FCC is required to consult
with state regulatory authorities and the Justice Department when reviewing the application.

BeliSouth plans to begin offering interLATA wireline service in each of its in-region states as soon as
the FCC approves its application for each state. BeliSouth has filed documents with the Georgia Public
Service Commission requesting that the Georgia Commission approve a rtatement of generally avail-
able terms and conditions as provided for in the 1996 Act and to establish that such terms and conditions
meet the competitive checidist referred to above. BeliSouth will file an application for sach state as scon
as it belisves the conditions described above are mel. Because of the proceedings required to obtain
approval and the potential challenges of competitors and others, it is uncertain when BellSouth will be
authorized 1o commence interLATA service in any of its in-region states. The 1996 Act requires that in-
region interLATA service be provided through a subsidiary separe*e from BeliSouth Telecommunications.

in addition to the above matters, BeliSouth Telecommunications is 1 party or is subject to numerous
proceedings pending before federal and state regulatory and judicial Yodies. These maiters invoive,
among other things, terms and conditions of services provided by BellSc uth Telecommunications, rates
charged lor such services, access reform, universal service, number purtablity and relationships with
compelitive service providers and affillates. No assurance can be giver as 1o the outcome of any such
matiers

Public Telephones

In September 189€, the FCC issued an order which requires ILECs to reassign their payphone
assels from regulatad telephone company accounts to separate unrerulated accounts or o Tansler
assets 10 a separate subsidiary. They must also remove any subsidy of payphone operations from their
regulated rates no later than April 15, 1897 and meet certain other requirements. In return, ILECs the*
own payphone units are given the freedom 1o pursue new business opportunities. BeliSouth Telecom-
munications ks currently taking action 1o comply with these requirements.




Consequently, on April 1, 1897, BeliSouth Telecommunications plans to transfer its payphone
assets (o a separate subsidiary, BeliSouth Public Communications, Inc. (BPC). BPC has filed for certifi-
cation as an independent payphone provider in #ach of the nine stales where BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations provides wireline telephone service. It plans to continue 10 pru.ide independent payphone
services throughout BeliSouth Telecommunications terrtory and will s ‘ectively provide payphone
services in areas served by independent telephone companies.

Bliling And Collection Services

BeliSouth Telecommunications provides, under contract and/or tarift, billing and collection services
for certain long distance services ol ATAT and several other Interexchange Carriers. The agreement with
ATAT extends through the year 2000, subject 10 the right of ATAT to assume billing and collection for
certain of its services prior to the expiration of the agreement. Revenues from such services have been
decreasing and this trend s expected to continue as ATAT and other carriers assume more direct billing
for their own services. BeliSouth Enterprises also provides limited billing and collection services in
foreign countries.

Operator Services

Directory assistance and local and toil operator services are provided by BellSouth Telecommunica-
tions in its service areas. Toll operator services include alternate billing arrangements, such as collect
calls, third number billing, person-to-person and calling card calls; dialing instructions; pre-bilied credit;
and rate information. In addition, directory assistance is provided for some other carriers which do not
directly provide such services for their own customers.

OTHER TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Directory Advertising and Publishing
BeliSouth Ente, prises owns a group of companies which publish, mmmmnm

published approximately
Mnnwmmmmm.mhwmumm
Wireless Communications
BeliSouth Enterprises provides wireless communicatior 1 services, which have consisted mainly of

mm.hmmwmmmmmum-uh-md

The 1896 Act aliows BeliSouth to market wireless services jointly with wireline local exchange
services; previously, separate marketing was required. This change has enabied BeliSouth to more
eff iently offer and provide integrated (c'scommunications. In March 1996, BeliSouth began joint
murketing of wireless and wireline services in selected markets.




Domestic Celiular Operstions

. The predominant par of the wireless communications business operations is cellular
service. Cellular radio telephone systems provide customers with high-quality and readily avi
way communications services that interconnect with the wireline and oth: -~ celiular telephon

The domestic celiular teiephone business has become a signific. @ contributor 1o |
operations, primarily due 10 the continued expansion of the customer ba -« for moblle comn
services. BellSouth maintains and operates cellular systems through w.iolly-owned subsk
business arrangements with other entities. Cellular service and related equipment are
consumers, directly and through authorized agents and to businesses that resell the servi

The rates charged by celiular carriers are not reguiated by the FCC nor the state
BeliSouth's celiular operations are located. Pursuant to a federal statute enacted into law in
governments are generally preempled from regulating the rates charged by celluler carrie

Al December 31, 1996, businesses in which BeliSouth had an equity interest provid
service to a total of approximately 4,880,000 domestic customers in 17 states. BellSouth's pn
share of such total customers, based on iis percentage ownership interests of such busin

aggregate population (POPs) served by its domestic celiular systems was approximately
persons al December 31, 1896, and its penstration rale was approasimately 8%. Within its
wireline service territory, BeliSouth and its partiners offer cellular service in cities including Atls
New Orleans, Memphis, Loulsville, Birmingham and Orlando, while outside its wireline servic
offers cellular service in cities including Los Angeles, Houston, indanapolis, Honolulu and
Virginia.

in February 1987, BeliSouth signed a definitiva agreement with United States Celiular (
to exchange cellular properties. BeliSouth would trade its ownership interests in celiular pr
Wisconsin and linois for new or increased equity ownership of cellular properties localed in
to BeliSouth's nine-state wireline service territory. The exchange is subject to regulatory a

Personal Communications Service

In 1885, the FCC began auctioning available radio s)ectrum for providing digital mobils
cations service, commonly referred to as personal comn.nications service, or PCS. Be
service is digital, it provides greater security and clarity tha~ existing analog cellular sys
South's PCS systam has been constructed utiiizing a techno'ogy standard known as G!
Systems for Mobile communications). GSM is widely used by \ flemational sysiems. Som
PCS systems utilize different, non-compatible technologles. As & result, cellular services cu
greater seamiess roaming characteristics across systems than ''CS. However, as more PC
are deployed across the United States utilizing GSM technolo Jy, and as analog cellular ¢
augmented with digital capability, PCS systems will be able to ¢ ffer roaming capabilities cor
existing cellular services.

BellSouth owns interests in two PCS licenses, one thal cove rs mos! of North Carolina
Carolina and another that covers eastern Tennesses. A BeliSouth consortium Is buliding an
the network in the Carolinas while BeltSouth alone is building and operating the network
Tennessee. BellSouth's proportionate POPs coversd by these licensed territories is 7,60
systems became ooerational in the summer of 1996,

In January 1887, BellSouth won an additional 38 licenses in 37 markets in the FCC's D-4
auctions. These markets cover 11,800,000 POPs in smaller areas within or adjacent o
wireling service teritory.
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International Wireless Operations

Outside the Unfied States, BeliSouth owns interests in consortia that hold licenses for, and are
bullding and/or operating, wireless telephone systems in Argentina, Australia, Denmark, Germany, indis,
Israel, New Zealand, Panama, Peru, Uruguay and Venezuela. Through a who' -owned subsidiary,
BeliSouth holds a license for a wireless telephone system in Chile. At December 31 996, these systems
provided celiular or PCS service 1o a total of approximately 3,603,000 intemnati “al customers. Bel-
South's proportionate share of such customers, based on its percentage ownenhip interests in such
systems, was approximately 1,244,000 customers. BeliSouth's proportionate interest in the aggregate
POPs covered by its international wireless systems was approximately 57,641,000 persons at Decem-
ber 31, 1996, and its penetration rate was approximately 2%. BeliSouth offers wireless =ervice under

liconses to areas within Argentina, India, Peru, Uruguay and Chile and offers wireless service

under nationwide licenses in Australia, Denmark, Germany, lsrael, New Zealand, Panama and Vene-
zuela. Service in Australia is also curently being provided by reselling service obtained from the
government-owned carrier. (See "Other Intemational Operations.”)

Mobile Data

BeliSouth, through its subsidiary BeliSouth Mobile Data (BSMD), is an equity investor in five wireless
data communications networks woridwide utilizing L.M. Ericsson's Mobitex technology. The countries in
which BSMD currently provides service consist of the United States, the United Kingdom, The Nether-
lands, Belgium and Singapore. These networks enable wirsless data applications such as computer-
aided dispatch, electronic mail, transaction processing and remote data entry and retrieval. They are
also well-suited for fixed applications such as credit card validation and telemetry.

Cther International Operations

BellSouth holds a 24.5% interest in Optus Communications Pty. Lid (Optus), which is building and
operating Australia's second telecommunications networi. In addition 10 its wireline and wireless net-
works, Optus operates four sateliites which were purchased from AUSSAT, Australia’s national satellite
communications carrier. Optus offers a range of telecommunications services, including national and
imwm.mmmmmmmmmww
Ine-based services.

In July 1994, Optus formed a business (Optus Vision) wib. Australian and United States companies
to develop a high capacity broadband network in Austraila. Opi.s and U § West, Inc. (U § Wes?) each
own 46.5% of Optus Vision. Two television stations now hoid 2% wnd 5%, respectively, and have the
option 1o increase their respective ownarship interests 1o 15% and 20%. Local telephone service, which
is marketed under the Optus brand name, was only recently launct ed.

BellSouth holds a concession to cperate a competing domes? ¢ and international long distance
business in Chile. In addition, in January 1897, BeliSouth purchased an interes! in a company thai offers
wired and wireless cable television and paging services in Peru.

Domestic Broadband Services

The 1896 Act eliminates previous prohibitions on telephone cor panies’ providing cable television
services in their service territories, although many federal courts had already held such prohibitions
unconstitutional. Although ILECs may not acquire or joint venture with established cable television
mmmmmmmymnﬂwmmmmm,

BellSouth has constructed several networks, and provided cable television service 1o a limited
degree, in several areas within its wireiine lelecommunications service areas 1o assess the exient o
which it wishes 10 enter this business, It has obtained and is negotiating to acquire franchises and
licenses in 3everal metropolitan areas, including New Orleans, Atlanta and Miami, that would enabie it to
provide vi- 80 services over wired and wireless networks.

10
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acquisitions that are expected to provide voice and video competition in BeliSouth Telecommunications’
service areas. U S§ West has acquired Atlanta’s two largest cable operators and, in November 1996,
acquired Continental Cablevision, Inc., a provider with a major preseri*» in Florida. In addition, the 1996
acquisition by Time Wamer of Tumer Broadcasting Corporation will ir - rease concentration in the cable
and programming industries.
Joint ventures and mergers between major telecommunications companies will result in large, 'ell-
carriers that will provide formidable competition to BellSouth across a number of markets,
including local and long distance telephone service. Such transactions include the proposed mergers of
SBC Communications inc. and Pacific Telesis Group and NYNEX and Bell Atlantic Corporation (Bell
Atlantic) anc the proposed acquisition by British Telecommunications pic of MCL

Competition for local service revenues could adversely affect BeliSouth's results of operations.
However, the existence of compatitive local service, among other things, can allow BeliSouth to qualify to
offer in-region inlerLATA service, as conlemplated in the 1896 Act. (See “BeliSouth Competitive
Strategy.”)

Access Service

mmmmmmmhmwmmmm
and svitched transporl. As a result, BeliSouth Telecommunications is required to permit competitive
carmiers and customers 1o terminate their transmission lines on BeliSouth's faciiities through coliocation
arrangements. The effects of the rules are to increase competition for access transport.

Toll Service

Awummmmmmummumm
toll business by reselling toll services obtained at bulk ralus from BeliSouth Telecommunications or.
mnhmanﬂMMMMﬂmMm
own faciliies. Commissions in the states in BeliSouth Telecommunications’ operating temitory have
mmmwummuuﬁumnw-mMuumn

mmmmmnummm-mwmmuﬂ.
mmmmmntﬁhm“:ﬂnﬁimuhmmm“m
mmmmmmumimummmmmm
ordering the implementation of new toll dialing parity miil the earfier of (a) three years from the
enactment of the lMAﬂtummmﬂmmmmwmdedm
provide in-region interLATA services.

m1mumnmmw;huﬁrmﬂnﬁwmﬂm
muum.mmmucmmmmmumum
muuummw.mmmmnmmmuwwuhmm
jocal service customers and other Holding Companies may’ do likewise. ATAT, MCI, Sprint and a number
of other cariers currently provide toll services 10 BeltSoutt ‘s local service customers.




qummwhmmmmmmm
mmmmmmmw.mm

mmmmmmmmmhm uth's businesses.

mmmmmmwummmmmwm.
mmwmumduﬂmmumwum
mmmmmmmmm“mmnm.m
MSA and RSA in which BeliSouth participates in the provision of cellular moblle communications has a
mmmhmmmmumupmww
m«mw:mﬂcﬁw.ﬂnunmmm.hmw
mwmmmmmmmusmmmmm
tions have announced that they planto mm“mmm companies have also
m-mmummmmmm

m&mmwwmmmaammm
m.mmmmmmmmmwwum
mmmmm.mummmumm Mobitex technology
which is flexible for targeting both specialized and general market segments.

MMMHMdm':MMrummmm-
m.wﬁdmuynﬂvmmmpﬂﬂmmmnu1dmmnhm.
mummmmmmwu“mummmwmw

Mmewmdmmmimm}mmh
m%Mhmﬁ.MWWMWMHWNM
mwmhmwm,mmb-m-mmwﬁmdwmmm
mmmm.wmmdeHWHhmdsh
mmm.mmmmmmmmmmmmm
mMMMMMhMMWMWwd 1884 in
mmmmm—m.

BellSouth Competitive Strategy
mmmmmnwumummhnm
mmwmm.mmnmhwpm
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throughout its nine-state wireline territory by (a) enhancing and building its brand strength and distribu-
tion channes; (b) providing full-service offerings inciuding wireline anc wireless, local and long-dis-
tance, and video and electronic commerce services; and (c) controling osts. Second, BellSouth will

grow end develop its Latin American and other international operations.

Marksting

A substantial portion of the growth in BeliSouth Telecommunications’ revenues from. local services
is derived from the sale of second residential lines and optional calling services. These oflerings are
marketed in a variety of packages with varying pricing features that are designed to appeal 10 a wide
variety of the Company’s cusiomer base. A substantial number of these sales are made by customer
service representatives who are on call 24 hours a day, seven days a week, as they are contacted by
subscribers on other matters.

Many of DeliSouth's other services and products, such as cellular and PCS senvices and including
the long distance component of these wireless services, intemet service and video services, are sold by
BellSouth Telecommunications’ service representatives. The marketing of many of these services is
enhanced by alllances with othar service providers and suppliers. For instance, Netscape Communica-
tions Corporation provides BellSouth's internet users with its Web browser, and persons who visit the
Netscape Web site are offered a convenient way 1o sign up for BeliSouth's Internet service, Additional
arrangements with Yahoo! Inc and Wired Ventures Limited further enhance BellSouth's Internet service
marketing strategy.

In addition to utilizing BellSouth Telecommunications' distribution channels, BellSouth's wireless
offerings are sold through approxdmately 275 company-owned stores, 300 kiosks located in retail stores
and shopping centers, and non-affiliated retall outiets such as Radio Shack and Circuit City stores. In
addition, BeliSouth's services are made available through BeliSouth's home page on the worldwide
web, through a telemarketing organization which contacts over 1 million potential customers each
month and through a direct sales force of nearly 4,000 percons. BellSouth's PCS service in the Carolinas
hmmmm-mhmm including Duke Power Company, when its

service representatives receive Inquiries and other calls for slectric service. BellSouth was the first
operational PCS provider in this market, giving it a marketing ad: antage over other rivais who purchased
PCS licenses covering the same territory. BellSouth's PCS s« rvice offers a number of packages of
optional features with pricing enhancements intended 1o aftrac’ celiular customers from the incumbent
wireless carriers in that teritory.

BellSouth Telecommunications' business services are mirketed by customer service representa-
tives through varied pricing and service options. BeliSouth’s products and services, such as video
, ISDN senvice and lelecommunications equipmet t and systems, are also demonstrated
and sold through marketing arrangements with other retallers o office products, such as Office Depot.
BeliSouth Teiecommunications markets its services and products to large and complex busin~ss cus-
tomers through highly speclalized applications and, where appropriate, through pricing enhancements
varying according to business volumes and lengti of service. In addition to telephone lines, product and
service offerings 10 these customers include Iniemnet access, special networks, high-speed dala trans-
mission, business teleconferencing and Industry-specific communications configurations.

Advertising and publishing products are marketed to organizations and companies with unique
directory needs. Export directories, a home improvement guide, a health and medical guide, consumaer
tips an4 a restaurant and entertainment guide are examples of such directories. Directonies are aiso
marks: #d to non-affilicied telephone companies.

14




While BeliSouth Telecommunications continues to use the names South Central Bell and Southermn
Bell for various purposes, its services were unified under the BeliSouth brand name in October 1995 to
give BeliSouth Telecommunications & clear, consistent identity in the marketplace. BeliSouth believes
that Its brand name is widely recognized and held in high esteem by s customery A primary marketing
strategy is to enhance the recognition and reputation of this mark throughout ks se {cn territory, thereby
facilitating the joint marketing efforts described above. Accordingly, significant ik - reases in marketing
wmmmmmuummmnmm«-ﬁhm
territory and in connection with major events, such as the Olympics, the Super Bowl and its sponsored
mmnmmmm-mmumumwm

With a few exceptions, BeliSouth's international services are not marketed under its brand name, in
mmmmmhmmmmmm.hwdm
wireless offerings is significant because the wireline service in many international markets, especially in
Latin America, is less reliable or available.

Reguiatory and Legisiative Changes

BellSouth's primary reguiatory focus has been directed toward modifying the regulatory process 10
one that is more closely aligned with changing market conditions and overall public policy objectives. As
an alternative to regulation of intrastate samings, BeliSouth has sought price regulation, whereby prices
of basic service are regulated and the pricing of other products and services are based on market
m.mmmmmmmhnmmmmm“a
cost increases or extraordinary expenses, they generally provide more fiexiblity to meet competitive
MW.MWMWWMWNMHﬂ
mhumm.mhhmdnrmmmmmw-
court pending resolution of a number of issues.

New Sarvices

anmuwmmmmmmm
hmmamm“mwwwmmmmmm
mhw.hmdm.mmwmmmmm
1o offer interLATA wireline service under provisions contained in the 1896 Act. BeliSouth believes that in
order 1o remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively L. rsue a corporate strategy of expanding
hmwnwwmmmmmmmm
information services and video and electronic commerce services. B¢"South has entered some of these
mwwnmﬂmmwmmmmh
mmmwmmdmdmmmww.m
example, among other initiatives, BellSouth has acquired several cable 1 / rights, is conducting a trial of
HHQWWNEMMMWMMLMWNWM
foreign telecommunications licenses as they are offered.

Work Force Reduction

In 1995, BellSouth Telecommunications completed the restructuring of its 1elephone operations that
was announced in 1963, Also, BellSouth Telecommunications announcy d in 1895 a plan to reduce its
mmmwnmmwwhwmm.mamdm
work force reduction, see “MD&A — Results of Operations — Operating Expenses — Work Force
Reduction Charge.”

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
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in November 1996, Science Applications Intemational Corporation agreed to purchase Belicore.
mmmmmhmmummmhm,m
Holding Companies formed the National Telscommunications
national security and emergency preparedness.

LICENSES AND FRANCHIBES

WWWMMHMMMHMﬂ
mmwmwmhmmmmmmum
mmmmdnmhmmm-mmmmw.
These certificates provide for a franchise of indefinite duration, subject 1o the maintenance of satisfactory
service at reasonable rates.

mmmm.mmmmmmhmmnnm
mm“wmmwwhm.nwmummmm
service in a termitory is mmhlmmmﬁ'UMmm.MWuthm
umﬁmmu-hn-anmdmd-m.mmum

International systems also operate under licenses anmhhmm
mmnmmw“nm-ummmnmmu
nmdmrﬁmmnhnmmaﬂsmhmmm.nm
licenses may be revoked and license renewal applications may be denied for cause.

mmrnlmwmmumumw.wmm
wmmumwnmammnhmmm
wummﬂummmamwummmmmm
adversely affect BeliSouth or its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEE:

Al December 31, 1806, 1mmtmmmnmwww
81,200, 87,600 and 92,100 persons, w.mmmumm.w
umnm.mmmmmwummmm
mmnm‘-wummAmmmwmm
mummm.mumwnmnwms.mam
MﬂdmwmmmmuuMmMnhmpnnﬂ.
The contracts include basic wage increases of 10.9% (compounded) over thres years. In addition, the
WMIMWn'HJmhIﬂmemmm
mwalmmwmwmmu:umhmm-umd
mw.mmim-ﬂiﬁ?mmuuMdemm
MmﬂMﬂlmbﬂﬂmdeWNWd
annual incentive payments.
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During 1995, BeliSouth Telecommunications completed the 1883 plan 1o reduce its work foroe by
10,200 employees. Also during 1995, BeliSouth Telecommunications announcesd a pian
1o further reduce its work force by approxdmately 11,300 employees by the end of 1967. Including a
reduction of appraximately 800 employees which occured in December 180 °, BeliSouth Telecommuni-
cations has reduced its work force by approximately 7,000 employees ur er the 1885 plan through
December 31, 1996. (See "MD&A — Results of Operations — Operatin; Expenses — Work Force
Reduction Charge.")
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
GENERAL
BeliSouth's properties do not lend themselves 1o description by character and location of principal

units, BellSouth's invastment In property, plant and equipment, 91% of which is held by BeliSouth
Telecommunications, consisted of the following at December 31:

16 1098
mmlildiiitt llllllllllllllllllllllllllllll ‘H m
Centralofficeequipment ..............ccoocevsssssnsnss 35 34
Operaling and otherequipment ...........cocoeeeessanss B 8
Land and bulldings . ......... e e s A A R 8 7
Fumiture and foaures . . . . .- - --sessss0as S TP e 1] (]
Plant Under CONSMUCHON . ..ccsssrrsrsssssnssnrsssssnss = § Nl
100% 100%

WMWdMMMWNWMMMM
prermises, the majority of which are on or under public roads, highwa, s of streets, while the remainder is on
or under private property. BeliSouth curmently seli-nsures all of ks outside plant against casualty losses.
Central office equipment substantially consists of digital electronic switching equipment and circult equip-
mmmmmmummmmwwmﬁd
mmmmmmmudmumnmd
m,mmmﬁmwmmmmmm
mmm-ﬂﬂuWHMmﬁlmmmmm
MMMMdmw'ﬂuﬁrdh—mnuhmm
mmﬁﬁmmmwunuunm

Mﬂdhmdmﬂumtmﬂmm“mﬂ
hm-ﬂmwmwmw;mmwmm
telephone service centers are in leased quarters.

BeliSouth Telecommunications’ customers are now serve d by electronic switching systems. The
memmmmmtwmmmwmm
mwthmmmmﬂmmm
wmmmmmnmmmmm
wmmmmﬂmmmmwmuumm.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

wmmummum.mmmmmw
wmmummummnwmmummmmnmm
Use.

mwmhm.mmwmwumnf.mm-
wunmummm:mm.!m.mm\gm;uuu-dm
depre ation. Significant additions to property, plant and equipment will be required to meel the demand
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for telecommunications services and 1o further modemize and improve such services 1o meat compet-
tive demands. Population and economic expansion is projected by Bell!:>uth in cenain growth centers
within its nine-state area during the next five 1o ten ysars. Expansion ol he network will be needed to
accommodate such projected growth,

BellSouth's capital expenditures for 1962 through 1696 were as h.dows:

o
1008 . ..ourvronnreca $4.455
SOIB s ceeninsannine 4,203
T ET R R R 3,600
SR 3,486
IR cccnnsinennns 3,189

BeliSouth projects capital expenditures of approximately $4.7 billion to §5.2 billion for 1867, consist-
ing i $3.4 billion for BeliSouth Telecommunications’ and §1.3 billion to §1.8 billion primarily for Beli-
South's wireless and intemational businesses. A majority of the expenditures will be to expand, enhance
and modemize its cument wireline and domestic cellular operating systems, 10 develop intemnational
mwduﬁﬂ:nmwhmmuwmmummh
the

In 1896, BeliSouth generated substantially all of its funds for capiial expenditures internally. in 1897,
such capital expenditures are axpected to be financed primarily through internally generated funds and,
10 the extent nacessary, from extemnal sources.

BeliSouth is subject to a number of environmental matiers as a result of its operations and the
shared liabllity provisions related 1o the divestiure from ATAT. As a result, BellSouth expects that it will be
required to expend funds to remedy certain faciiities, including those Superfund sites for which Bell-
South has been named as a potentially responsiie party, for the remediation of sites with underground
fuel storage tanks and other expenses associated with environmental compliance. At December 31,
1996, BeliSouth's recorded liability related primarily ‘o remediation of these sites was approximately
$35 milllon.

BellSouth monitors s operations with respect to pot ntial environmental issues, including changes
in legally mandated standards and remediation technc ogies. BeliSouth's recorded lability reflects
those specific issues where remediation activities are cv rently deemed to be probable and where the
cos! of remediation is estimable. BeliSouth continues 1) befieve that expenditures in connection with
additional remedial actions under the current environme tal protection laws or related matters would not
be material 1o its financial position or annual operating results or cash flows.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

BeliSouth and its subsidiaries are subject 1o claim.s arising in the ordinary course of business
involving allegations of personal injury, breach of contract, anti-competitive conduct, employment law
issues, reguiatory matters and other actions. While complete assurance cannct be given as o the
outcome of any lega! claims, BellSouth believes that any financial impact would not be material to its
financial position or annual operating results or cash flows. See Note O to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SHAREHOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of sharehoiders in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1906, ;

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

DESCRIPTION OF BELLSOUTH STOCK
General

The Articles of Incorporation of BellSouth authorize the issuance of 2,200,000,000 shares of com-
mon stock, par value $1 per share (the Common Stock), and 100,000,000 shares of cumulstive, first
prefermed stock, par value $1 per share (the Preferred Stock). BeliSouth's Board of Directors (the Board)
is authorized to provide for the issuance, from time to time, of the Preferred Stock in series and, as to
each series, to fix the number of shares in such series and the voting, dividend, redemption, liquidation,
retirement and conversion provisions applicable 10 the shares of such series. No shases of Preferred
Stock are outstanding. The Board has crealed Series A First Preferred Stock consisting of 30 million
shares (the Series A Preferred Stock) for possible issuance under BellSouth's Shareholder Rights Plan.
(See "Preferred Stock Purchase Rights™ and “Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related
Stockholder Matters.™)

Dividend Rights

The hoiders of Common Stock are entitied 1o receive, from funds legally available for the payment
thereol, dividends when and as declared by resolution of the Board. Whils any series of Preferred Stock
is outstanding, no dividends (other than dividends payable sclely in Common Stock) may be declared or
paid on Common Stock, and no Common Stock may be purchased, redesmed or otherwise acquired
for value, (a) uniess dividends on all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock for the current and all past
dividend periods have been paid or declared and provision made for payment thereof and () uniess an
requirements with respect to any purchase, retirement or sinking fund or funds applicable to all out
standing seties of Preferred Stock have been satisfied. Divicends on the Preferred Stock would be
cumulative.

Voting Rights

Except in connection with the “business combinations™ and " ‘vir price” provisions discussed
below, holders of shares of Common Stock are entitied 10 one vote, in per. on of by proxy, for each share
Mmhmh&mﬂﬂnﬁmﬂhmmmrﬂﬂdhnmlnnﬂmd
shareholders, but such holders do not have cumulative voting rights. Te holders of any series of
Preferred Stock, when issued, may receive the right to vote as a class on certain amendments (o the
Articies of incorporation and on certain other matters, including the electi n of directors in the event of
certain defaults, which may include non-payment of Preferred Stock div dends.

Liquidation Rights

Ir: the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation of BellSouth, holders of the Common Stock will be
entitied to receive, after creditors have been pald and the holders of the | referred Stock, ¥ any, have
received their liquidation preferences and accumulated and unpaid dividends, all the remaining assels
of BeliSouth.

Pre-emptive Rights; Conversion Rights; Redemption

No shareholders of any class shall be entitied to any pre-emptive rights to subscribe for or purchase
any shares or other securities issued by BeliSouth. The Common Stock has no conversion rights and is
not subject 1o redemption,
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights ;

The Board 1.1 declared a cividend of one preferred stock purchase right (Right) for each share of
Common Stock from time 10 time outstanding. Under certain circumstances, each Right will entitie the
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holder to mmmmmdmkmm $1.00 par value (Common

Pmm.m;uumwhmmm rights to one
mmunmmmmdmﬂpﬂmmum Price). The Rights
nmmmﬂwhmuwllmumm 10% of the
MMMHWMNW sproval of the Board (Acquiring Person) or
mnmummmmmr ownership of 25% or more of the Common
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ﬂmh-mmm.mmmummm
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directors from office, with or without cause, amend the By-laws With respect 10 the numbsr of directors or
amend the board ciassification provisions only by the afmative vote of the holders of at least 75% of the
outstanding shares entitied 10 vole for the election of directors.

Removal of Directors

BeliSouth's Articles of Incorporation provide that the shareh mummmn
director, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of the hoiders o1 at least 75% of the voting power of
all shares of stock entitied to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class.

Limitation on Shareholders' Proceedings

BeliSouth's By-laws require 60 days advance notice of shareholder nominations for directors and of
other matters to be brought before annual shareholders’ meetings. Such By-laws also provide that a
special sharshoiders’ meeting may not be cailled by fewer than two-thirds of the outstanding shares
entitied to vote at the meeting.

The provisions discussed under the six preceding sub-headings and the abiiity to lssue Preferred
Stock, such as the Serles A Preferred Slock described above, with characteristics established by the
Board and without the consent of the holders of Common Stock and the abiiity to issue additional shares
of Common Stock may have the effect of discouraging takeover attempts and may also have the effect of
maintaining the position of Incumbent management. in addition, these provisions may have a significant
effect on the ability of shareholders of BeliSouth to benefit from certain kinds of transactions thal may be
opposed by the incumbent Board,
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This
Offosr . OMce
Hena & Offic — [ Since
F. Duane Ackerman® President and Chief Exscutive Office ' 1983 1896
Walter H. Alford 58 Exscutive Vice President and Gener | Counsel 1963 1088
C. Sidney Boren 53 Senior Vice President — Corporate i’lanning and 1984 1996
Development '
Kelth O. Cowan 40 Vice President — Corporate Development 1996 1906
Mark E. Droege 43 mw—mww 1996 1996
Treasurer
Ronald M. Dykes 50 Exscutive Vice President and Chiel Financial 1988 1995
H. C. Henry, Jr. 53 wmw—cﬂmm 1984 1883
David J. Markey 58 Vice President — Govemmental Afairs 1686 1993
Charles C. Miller, Ill 44 President — Intemational 1900 1895
\W. Palrick Shannon 34 Vice President and Controller 1997 1997
Arten G. Yoldey 59 Senior Vice President, Exscutive Stall Officer and 1984 1996
- Corporate Secretary

mmmunmwmmmummm
BeliSouth Corporation:
Jere A. Drummand 57 mmwnmm-—m 1082 1995
Telecommunications, Inc.

Earle Mauidin &6 mmmﬂwm—m 1987 1905
Enterprises, Inc.

udnmmdmmmmmmwmwuumn

past five years heid Jevel management or cxecutive with BeliSouth of its subsidiaries. Prior




PART Ul

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

The principal market for trading In BellSouth common stock is the  ew York Stock Exchange, Inc.
(NYSE). BeliSouth common stock Is also listed on the Boston, Ch igo, Pacific and Philadeiphia
exchanges in the United States and the London, Franifurl. Amsterdam ¢ «d Swiss exchanges. The ticker
symbol for BellSouth common stock is BLS. At February 1, 1897, there were 1,084,146 holders of record
of BeliSouth common stock. The market price and dividend information listed below has been adjusted
for the two-for-one stock spilt effective in November 1995. Market price data were obtained from the
NYSE Composite Tape, which encompasses trading on the principal United States stock exchanges as
well as ofi-board trading. High and low prices represent the highest and lowest sales prices for the

periods indicated.
Market Prices D% Share
High Low  Declared
1996
FirstQuaner ........c.oo00000es O o s T i R B $45%% 338 $36
Second Quarter, . .... e e v o T T 11 38
Thind e . e e T A SR i R R AN 43% 5% 36
Fourth Quarter ........ T it R 44 b 17 36
1895
First Quarter ...... Bt e B e B $30% 5264 §5345
e e 1 A s el S N RSP S P . a2V 294 345
[y R TR e e A M e Y WA M a8
Y I o a o e s is o n w9 B 0o B 43 3IM 36
1694
T e T e e < O U PN $30%. S268% S48
T R A S MY 2% 345
B L o Ty i T Y e R R 3% ZT™ A45
FOUT CNRIEIT . xs oo s 0 n s 6o mm o as s e o0 aon b ow v 28 25\ 345
Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, LLC. is BeliSouth’s stock transler agent and registrar.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA -
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Opersling Revenuss . . .. ..ccuvis vesessstranEs $19 0 $17880 §10848 15880 §i5202
Operating Expenaes (1) . . . .. e shE A RSN, 14,01 14,504 12787 13,569 12.041
nooms . .. .. RN 4 ¥y P 47 3 4,088 287 3,161
e R i 1) T24 064 [ TéE
Gain on Sale of Paging Business () .......:-:s02» 44 — - - —
_lctat ||||||||||||||||| R ‘u H 1‘ ‘ ‘“
incoma Belore Income Taxes, Extreordinary Losses and
ACCOUNBNG CBNG® . .« s v crrrrnnesnasssssnss 4,000 2508 2,403 1,608 255
Provision for Income Taees . . ... ......- et 1,748 1,024 1,243 ET2 4
income Belors Extracrdinary Losses and Accounting
CIMIDD . o i ssosesssosseassssnssnssntornes 2063 1584 2,180 1,054 1850
w::uum ............... - (2.798) - :'?1 41)
Aocouniing MO ,....occcsnensunns — — - -
Nt ICOMS (LOBE) . oo v vovvsssrsnsannnsasnns $zoe S s21e0 § 80 31810
——— e ——— ———— EsE e
Eamings (Loss) Per Share:
income Belors Extraordnary Losses end Accountng
OMBAQD ...coisnsssssssssnssssansnsnss s 208 § 157 § 20 § 104§ 180
Wmd-m .............. - @) - [F: ] (04)
Ascounting AL OB .\ vvoevsnannnnnas - - - (.08} -
Nat incomas (Loes) . ... . T § 20 8§ N24) § 218 1 B § 18
Dividends Declared Per Common Share . ... .- -..... $ 144 5 141 § 138 3 138 $ 1.8
Book Valus Por Bham .. ... ..oiresssssrsannsns $1337 21190 § 1448 § 1280 § 13w
Return 1o Average Common Equity . ........ P ZZa% %)  154% 0.3% 1NN
memm ...... ] [ -] w91 a1
Retum on Average Total Capltal . , .« v ceccrencess 15.0% ﬁ:‘l 11.5% a1 o8%
Total ASSalS . . v v isasaansananssanarssnanes =] $34.307 24873 82148
Cophal EXPONRUNSS , . . - osssvrrresiennnres § 4485 § 4200 § 3000 $3488 $ 2109
w’hﬂm..” ....................... so18 § 704 §743 S$7301 §7W
Ratio sl End of Porod (4) . . oecvccnsresssans 43.5% 40.T% 39.5% 40.2% 39.0%
Aatio of Eamings fo Feed Charmges . ... .......x0s 6.55 424 534 298 4.00
Total % ....................... 81241 87571 g2z 95,004 #7112
Telephone T e Y 62425 63,585 73,784 77958 79,453
m—mu1mm—u-. 20.2 azs 3.5 403 428
Hatwork Access n Service (thousands) . ... . .. 2138 .13 20220 1.3 18,050
Access Minuiss of Use imiions).
WRREREEIE . . oo cevssuasasntanannas A ., 6TEe0 &4 57,770 53345 50,548
WATROAEID . . oo vsocssnsssnassnansnarnss . nm 19,187 18,888 15,281 13,984
Toll Messages (MBNONE) . . . ... cooaranarins . 1o 1374 1,558 1.51 1,462
Celiuter Customers (thousands): (7}
DOMBINIC. . - csrsosassnssssssssnaaans oo amz2 2847 2.158 1559 1,118
NARTBONS . . o s s snssraannassrrranens el _1am [ X 381 192 T
Total Coluter CUBOMBE . . ... .cca-osrsoncs 4,858 3502 2517 1,751 1,108
——— B ——— b e ammm—— msEETELTEY

)] wmhiﬂhﬁd-nmtmmmmﬂhmmm_mwm

um;unmmwmwuumw-mhm
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYBIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
AND FINANCIAL CONDITION
(Doliars in Millons, Except Per Share Amounts)

BeliSouth Corporation (BeliSouth) is a holding company headqus 1red in Atlanta, Georgla whose
operating telephone company subsidiary, BeliSouth Telecommunicatio. ¢, inc. (BeliSouth Telecommuni-
cations) serves, in the aggregate, approximately two-thirds of the population and one-half of the territory
within Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and
Tennessee. BellSouth Telecommunications primarily provides local exchange senvics and toll communi-
cations services within geographic areas, called Local Access and Transport Areas (LATAs), and pro-
vides network access services 1o enable interLATA communications using the long-distance faciiities of
interexchange carriers. Through subsidiaries, other telecommunications services and products are
provided primarily within the nine-state BeliSouth Telecommunications region. BellSouth Enter-
prises, Inc. (BeliSouth Enterprises), another wholly-owned subsidiary, owns businesses providing wire-
less and international communications services and advertising and publishing products.

Approximately 70%, 70% and 72% of BellSouth's Total Operating Revenues for the years ended
December 31, 1896, 1985 and 1994, respectively, were from wirsline services provided by BellSouth
Telscommunications. Charges for local, access and toll services for the year ended December 31, 1996
accounited for approximalsly 61%, 33% and 6%, respectively, of the wireline revenues discussed above.
Revenues from consolidated wireless communications services and from directory advertising and
publishing services accounted for approxdmately 15% and 8%, respectively, of Total Operating Revenues
for the year ended December 31, 1886. The remainder of such revenues was derived principally from
mmmummmmmwmmw

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
All per share amounts herein reflect a two-for-one stock split effective In November 1895. See
muunwmm
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income Belore Extraordinary
LOBIOE . i sl Vaarnion s $2883 § 1,564 § .60 83.1% (27.6%)
Extraordinary Loss for
Disconminuance of SFAS
No. 71, netoftax ........ - (2,718) .- - -
Extraordinary Loss on Early
Extinguishment of Debt, net
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1990 va. 1653 va.
1008 1908 1054 1995 1994

income Betfore Extraordinary .
LD . o e anensrsnnnss $ 288 § 157 § 218 B3A% (28.0%)
Exraordinary Loss for
Discontinuance of SFAS
mn.mﬂ‘ﬁu“ e e ﬂ-m s — —
Extraordinary Loss on Early
Extinguishment of Debt, net
OHIR, s e siacesacscnn — (.08) — — —
Eamings (Loss) PerShare .. § 288 § (1.24) § 218 — -

For a discussion of the extraordinary losses in 1965, see "Extraordinary Losses™ below.

income Before Extracrdinary Losses for 1996 incrsased $1,299 (83.1%) and §1.31 per shars |
(83.4%), respectively, compared to 1885. The increases were primarily attributable to the effect of an |
after-tax work force reduction charge in 1895 of $883 (5.67 per share). For a discussion of such charge, |
see "Operating Expenses — Work Force Reduction Charge” below. Also contributing o the increases
were the $344 ($.35 per share) after-tax gain on sale of BeliSouth's paging business (see Note Blothe |
Consolidated Financial Statements) as well as growth in key business volumes, driven by continued
growth of access lines and the cellular customer base, and cost control measures at BeliSouth Telecom-
munications, including salary and wage savings aftributable to the work force reduction and restructur-
ing plans initiated in 1895 and 1993, respectively.

income Belore Extraordinary Losses for 1995 decreased $586 (27.6%) and §.61 per share (28.0%),
respectively, to 1994, The decreases were primarily due to the after-tax work force reduction
charge of $863 ($.67 per share). Also contributing to the decreases were the effects of gains in 1964
aggregating $108 ($.11 per share) releied 10 the sale of two international celiular investments. The
decreases were partially offset by revenue growth, driven by continued growth of access lines and the
cellular customer base, and cost control moasures at BeliSouth Telecommunications, including salary
and wage savings attributable 1o a restructun~q plan initiated in 1983 and completed in 1895.
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By Type: :
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The total number of access lines in senvice increased by approximately 1,002,000 (4.7%) to
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improvement in the Southeast and successtul marketing programs.

Access Minutes of Use (millions):
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Toll Messages {milions) ......... T . )23 1374 1559 (25.5%) (11.9%)

Hwnmuwmmmmmm
nications Service. Toll messages decreased by 351 million (25.5%) in 1996 compared 10 a decrease
11.9% in 1895, The decrease in 1996 was primarily aftributable to the expansion of local area call
mmhmwwmmmmmmmmh

Cellular and Paging Customers — Equity Basis (thousands):

Percent
W0t ve. 1008 .
: 188 1905 1984 1998 1804
DomesticCellutar .................0. .. 3612 2847 2156 . 260% . 32.1%
international Calluler . .. .... SR PR L weas 1,244 655 361 899 B1.4
Paging Customers (all domestic) ......... e = LTI 1814 — 10.1

Domestic celiular customers increased by 765,000 (26.9%) since Decembe, 1, 1695, While 8
mdwmwm1m.mmmm{wum-
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minutes of use per cellular customar have remained relatively flat in 1996,
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(89.9%) 10 1,244,000. Growth In total minutes of 1se for international celiular propeiiles remained stror
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service.

In January 1996, BelSouth sold its pagir 3 business to Mobile Media Communications Inc. Se
Note B to the Consolidated Financial Stateme ats.

Operating Revenues

For a discussion of the impact of impending \ocal service competition on revenues and volumes «
business, see “Operating Environment and Trends of the Business.”

Total Operating Revenues increased §1,154 (6.5%) in 1996 comparec to an Increase of $1,04
lﬂi]Wiﬂ.hMmMMMhmmm‘tmm
Mmmmm-mhmmmmmm
The increase In 1996 was partially offset by the effect of the January 1996 sale ! BellSouth's pagin
mmmmmm.wmmmmnm (8.6%) i
1896
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Local Service . ...... v $§8082 §$7204 §$63 108% 63%
Intorstate ACCBSS . .....cossersvsns 3553 3215 3, 85 47
Intrastate ACCOSS ... .....o000ees & 812 884 508 ®.1) (26
D AP T U T A ] T84 1,008 1,180 (21.3) (152)
Wireless Communications . . . ... 4+ 2,790 2502 2,067 8.0 254
Directory Advertising and Publishing . . . 1,742 1,677 1,556 a9 78
Other Services .. .... T SN A 1.258 1,155 1,134 89 18
Total Operating Revenues ......... $10040 $17.886 $16.845 65 6.2
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$431 (6.9%) In 18885,

The increase in 1“*#Mhmhmdl.ﬂ.@mmm December 31,
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net of benefits related to the effects of expanded LACPs.
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an incroase of $148 (4.7%) in 1905,
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December 31, 1995 of §25.
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mmmhwmm.m1m in¢ rease was partially offset by net rate
reductions s‘nce December 31, 16984 of approximately $58.

mmemmmpmﬁmﬁmﬂmmmmm
mmwmmum-mn-m.M1m.mm
wﬁnrmdiﬂﬂﬁ}mwﬂulmﬂmmﬁjhim.

mmh1mm1mmmmmmmmdhmwnm.
mm.mmwmthmunmmmn.M.

mmmmumm}ummmmmwmw
mm-wmm.mmm.m“u-mmum.u;mm
compard 10 a decrease of §181 (15.2%) in 1995,
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The decrease lor 1686 was primarily attributabile to the expansion of LACPs and increased cor
ton from interexchange carriers, the effects of which reduced toll messages by 25.5%. The dec
was partially offset by a retroactive independent company settiement in 1885 which reduced rewt
by $31 in that period.

In 1996, the decrease was due primarily to a decline in t | messages of 11.9%. The dediine
messages reflects the expansion of LACPs and increased co  efition from interexchange carrien
decrease also includes the effect of the retroactive indepen snt company settiement.

The overall deciine in intralATA toll revenues is expected 1o continue over the long lerm.

Wireiess Communications revenues include revenues from consolidaled wireless commu
tions businesses (primarily domestic cellular and, prior 1o 1996, paging within BsliSouth Enterpris-
well as revenues from interconnections by unaffiliated celiular carmiers with BellSouth Telecommu
tions’ network. (BeliSouth's interests in the net income or loss of the unconsolidated wireless busin
within BeliSouth Enterprises, which are accounted for under the equity method of accountin
recordad in Other Income, net)

Wireless Communications revenues increased $207 (8.0%) in 1896 compared 10 an incre
$525 (25.4%) in 1895. The increases for both years resulled primarily from continued growth
customer base for wireless services in domestic and intermational marksts. The 1686 increas
partinily offset by the effect of the January 1896 sale of BeliSouth's paging business. Revenues:
such paging services were 5348 and $276, respectively, in 1985 and 1894, Excluding such
revenues in 1895, Wireless Communications revenues increased 24.8% in 1996,

Consistent with anticipated growth in the overall wireless industry, BeliSouth's revenues
wireless services are expected 1o continue 10 increase. However, the rate of growth of revenuer
BeliSouth's existing celiular businesses could be ~dversely affected by competitive pressures ons
pricing, the continuing eflect of an increasingly diversified customer base with lower average usa(
the emergence of new wireless service providers offering personal communications service (P

Directory Advertising and Fublishing revenues include revenues derived from publishing
ing and selling advertising in, and performing related services concerning, alphabatical and cla
telephone directories. Directory Advartising and Publishing revenues increased $65 (3.9%) i
compared to a $121 (7.8%) increase k. 1995.

The increase for 1996 was primarily du« 10 increases in the volume and prices of advertising
The increase was partially offset by the effect of BeliSouth Telecommunications’ adoption of issue
accounting for directory revenues, which inc reased revenues in 1995 by 841, in connection w
discontinuance of Statement of Financial Ac sounting Standards (SFAS) No. T1, "Accounting !
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Ser Note L 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The 1995 increase was due primarily 1o ncreases in the volume of advertising sold and the Im
BeliSouth Telecommunications’ adoption c! issue basis accounting for direclory revenues.

Other Services revenues are principaly comprised of reveni»s from customer premises
ment (CPE) sales and maintenance service s and other nonregulated services (primarily insid
billing and collection and voice messaging services) offered by BeiiSouth Telecommunications
Saervices revenues increased $103 (8.9%) in 1996 compared 10 an incresse of $21 (1.9%) in 1

The 1996 increase wes primarily atiributable to higher demand and prices for nonregulal
vices, product sales and fees totalling $132. In addition, the increase was also due to incremen
impacts related to potential sharing under cerain state reguiatory plans. The increase was partiall
by the sale in 1986 of a subsidiary which performed compuler maintenance.

The increase in 1925 was due primarily 10 reduced levels of revenus reduction accruals rel

potential sharing under certain state regulatory plans coupled with the reciassification of cerna
accruals 1o Local Service revenues, the combined effect of which increased Other Services rever

30
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approximately $76. The increase was also due to approximately $41 resuliing from higher demand for
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BeliSouth Telecommunications' out-ol-region CPE sales and service oper‘ions.

Percanl
1996 ve. 1988 va.
1984 1095 1994 1994 1904
Depreciation and Amonization . .. ..... $3710 § 3455 § 3250 76% 6.0%
Other Operating Expenses:
Cost of Services and Products . . . ... 6072 6184 604 (1.8) 23
Selling, General and Administrative .. _ 4470 _ 3873 3,485 154 1.1
’ 10,542 10057 9,528 4.8 56
Bubtotll .....00000n0n00 Lee.s 14281 13512 12787 55 5.7
Work Force Reduction Charge . ...... - 1,082 —_ - —
Total Operating Expenses . .. ..... $14,261 $14,504 $12,787 (23 1441
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crease in 1983,
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services and continued modemization of the networks.
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sold and other expenses associated with providing service: Selling, General and Administrative in-
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advertising expenses and administrative expenses.
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in employee-related costs reflects employee reductions attributable 10 the restruciuring and work
reduction plans, partially offset by annual compenss*'on increases for mansgement and repres
empioyees. The 1696 increase in Other Operaling e - :nses also included an increase of approxi
$50 in expenses related 1o the directory advertising - 7d publishing business.

The 1685 increase was dus primarily 10 increased expenses of approximately $310 rels
sustained growth in the celiular customer base, reflecting additional marketing and operational
associated with higher levels of sales and expanded operations. Al BellSouth Telecommunics
Other Operating Expenses increased §114, which reflected volume growth that was partially offse
decrease of approximately $130 for employee-related costs. Such decrease was attributable
restructuring plan begun in 1983, partially offset by annual compensation increases for manag:
and represanted employees. The 1885 increase in Other Operating Expenses was also attributs
approxdmately $55 related to growth in the volume of directory advertising sold.

Work Foree Reduction Charge. In the fourth quarter of 1895, BellSouth recognized a |
charge of §$1,082 ($663 after tax), comprised of §842 ($577 sher tax) related to planned work
reductions by the end of 1997, $85 ($52 after tax) for expected severance benefit payments after
and $55 ($34 after tax) for additional net curtaliment losses related to empioyee reductions ur
restructuring plan initiated in 1993 and completed in 1855,

1085 Work Force Reduction. mmmmmmumml
the provisions of BFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” rels
WWHMMMMMMM“.:
mately $381 for curtailment losses under the provisions of SFAS No. B8, “Employers’ Accounti
Settlements and Curtaliments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits,” and
No. 108, “Empiloyers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Tnan Pensions.” Substantially
the curtaiiment losses relate 1o postretirement benefits other than pensions.

Under this plan, BeliSouth Telecommunications expects to reduce the work force of the w
telephone operations by approximately 11,300 smployees by the end of 1897. The work force reds
will be accomplished through the ceparation of approsdmately 13,200 employees, partially offset |
mmdmmmwummwwmnmnhm

the consolidation of work locations. h:+luding a reduction of approximately 800 empioyses
occurred in December 1895, BelfSouth hmmm-mmmummbup
mately 7,000 employees under the 1885 ,lan through December 31, 1996,

Once tha plan to reduce 11,300 emp oyees is completed, annual nel employes cost savin
estimated to be approximately $500 after considering increased costs for outsourced services.

Postemployment Benelfts and Othe: Charges. The pretax charge of $85 represented esth
future postemployment severance benefiL 1 1o be paid after 1997, aiso In accordance with the prow
of SFAS No. 112. This component was l'ased on BellSouth's beliel that work force reduoctios
continue under existing separation plans, Whough at reduced separation benefit levels.

A pretax charge of §55 was also recorded related to additional net cu-*=liment losses in conn
with a restructuring plan initiated in 1883 and compieted in 1285. This charge resulted primarily |
greater number of retirement-sligible employees separating under the plan than was ork
expecied.
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i '; Pevrcad Change
1984 va 1994 va

- : W 1998 1004 1995 1994
INterost EXPONSO . . .. .ococvassannnns $ 721 § 724 § 666 04% B7%

" Gain on Sale of Paging Business .. ... .. “M2 - —_ - -
T Otherincome, L. . L. sssrssssans 108 20 11 4400 e
Provision for Income Taxes ........... 1746 1024 1242 704 (17.6)

Interest Expense includes interest on debt, certain other accrued liabilities and capltal leases,
Mﬂwmw--uumwmmmm
expense decreased $3 (0.4%) in 1996 compared to an increase of §58 (8.7%) In 1995,

The decrease for 1996 was primarily attributable to lower average interest rates on borrowings due
in part to refinancings during 1995, partially offset by higher average debt balances in 16996,

hnimrmmMMtnmwmwmwm
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bofrowings was slightly lower in 1885 compared to 1994, reflecting the initial impact of 1095 debt
refinancirgs st more favorable interest rales.

Gain on Sale of Paging Business represents the pre-tax gain on the sale of BeliSouth's paging
business in January 1996,

Other Incomse, net includes eamings and losses from unconsolidated subsidiaries, businesses and
Mhﬂuﬂmmumummmmmm
interests; and other nonoperating llems. Other Income, net increased $88 in 1996 compared 0 an
increase of $9 in 1995. '

n-jﬂrmmhﬁMMImWhmmwmmm
interest deductions of $35. Equity In losses was (§76) In 1996, an improvement of $10 since 1995. The
lower 1996 losses were primarily attributable to improved operating results at unconsolidated domestic
wmmwmmmmhmwm
mwmﬂmmmmmhmwnmm
of German oceliular operations.

The increase in Other Income, net in 1995 included a $43 increase in interest income, an improve-
mumhmhmmmhh-wnum.wm.mmhm
mmmmmnmum-mmhmmmmuuw
business activities. The increases in Other Income were parti dly offset by the effect of a gain of $108 in
1894 from the sale of two international cellular investmenits

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates was §(86) n 1995 compared 10 §(110) in 1884, The
mmnshuuuﬁn-mhhuuhmm:mmmﬂwm
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Provision for income Taxes Increased $721 (70.4%) in 1998 compared to a decrease of $219
(17.6%) In 1996, BeliSouth's effective tax rates were 37.9%, 39.6% and 36.5% In 1096, 1905 and 1964,
m.mmmumhimmﬂm1mmmmmnmm
mmmhhmmmmm-mwmmhmm
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in Note K to the Consolidated Financial Statements. ’

Extraordinary Losses

D scontinuance of BFAS No. T1. In 1995, as a result of its continuing regulatory and marketplace
mmwmmnmmmmmm.n
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for financial repocting purposes. Accordingly, BeliSouth Telecommunications recorded a non
traordinary charge of $2.718 (net of a deferred tax banefit of $1,731). The extracrdinary charge
n.mawmumnmu-uuhndwmwmmmmmntu
Was within the regulatory frameworlk, 10 U') level appropriate for nonregulated enterprises. Th.
charge was partially offset by $154 relat | to the method by which BeliSouth Telecommur
reported its directory publishing revenue . §71 related to the eimination of reguiatory ass
labiiities and $18 for the partial acceleratic . of unamortized investment tax credits associaled
reductions In asset camrying values and in asset lives.

See Note L to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Early Extinguishment of Debt. During 1905, BeliSouth Telecommunications recogni
traordinary losses of $78 (net of a cument tax benefit of $49) related (o the 2arly extinguish
oulstanding debt issues. See Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

BeliSouth uses the net cash generated from its operations and external financing to inves
operale its existing and new businesses and o pay dividends. While current liabilities exceeded
assets at both December 31, 1996 and 1905, BeliSouth's sources of funds — primarily from op
and, to the extent necessary, from readily available exdernal financing arrangements — are suf!
meel all current obligations on a timely basis. BellSouth believes that such sources of funds
sufficient to meet the needs of its business for the foresesable future.

Paroent Chary

1Neve. 1008

L S s

Met Cash Provided by Operaing Activilies ... 35883 $544) S$5172 77% 5.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities increased $420 (7.7%)
compared to an increase of $271 (5.2%) in 189S5, The increase in 1906 was primarily altributa
$669 increase in operating income excluding depreciation, amortization and the work force re
charge. The 1996 increase was partially offset by higher cash expenditures for reductions of &
payable.

The increase in 1885 was primar. atiributable to a $512 increase in operating income e
depreciation, amortization and the work i.ce reduction charge. The 1895 increase was partial
by higher cash expenditures of $258 relatec '0 a restructuring plan begun in 1893.

Percent
1 v 1998
e 1004 1 1993 mw

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities . . .  ${4,199) $(4.384) §(3.,805) (4.2%) 11

investing Activities. BellSouth's primary use of capital resources continues to be for
expenditures to support development of the wireli. s and wireless networks. Net cash used for ir
activities decreased $185 (4.2%) in 1896 compaid to an increase of $449 (1.:.4%) in 18
decrease in 1996 was primarily due to $830 in cash .eceived from the sale of the paging busine
decrease was partially offset by higher capital expenditures of $252 related substantially to wire
wireless network development and a decrease of $324 in proceeds from other investmant disp
and repayment of advances.

Capital expenditures were $4,45E in 1896 and are projected 10 be approximately $4,70010 §
1897. Such capital expenditures for 1996 were financed intemally and, for 1997, are expecte
financed primarily through intemally generated funds and, 10 the extent necessary, from

SoUTCES.
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The increase in 1885 was primarily attributable to higher capital expenditures of 5603 related
mnmmmm%mmwuﬁ.mmu
§188 from investment dispositions and repayment of advances. Sut tantially all cash required for
capital expenditures in 1995 was provided internally.

Peroent
199 s e e e
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing
. Actvites., . ............ Gearsr 0 .. S@RAOT) $46 S(1,132) — @ —

Financing Activities. During 1996, financing activities used cash of $(2,197) while in 1995 financ-
mmmmum.mmmdmwmmmmﬂnmm
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to & total of $.36 per share and deciered the same $.36 per share dividend again in November 1995 and

The change in cash used for financing activities from 1994 to 1985 was primarily afiributable to
higher levels of net proceeds from all borrowing activities in 1895 compared to 1994,

Dedt Activities. During 1896, BellSouth issued $300 of long term debt and, with net proceeds as
mummmmmmmwwmmumrm

During 1995, BeliSouth issued $500 of long-term debt and, with net proceeds, refinanced outstand-
ing short4erm debL Also during 1095, BeliSouth lssued approximarsly $1,00 of long-term debt 1o

refinance $1,885 of outstanding long-term debentures, including $485 of debentures redeemed in.

January 1896. The funds to redeem the $485 of debentures in January 1996 are included in Cash and
Cash Equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 1995, In addition, Cash and Cash
Equivalents at December 31, 1885 Includes $500 which was used to reduce commercial paper on
January 2, 1996.

BallSouth has commitied credit ines aggregating §1,951 wil various banks. Borrowings under the
commitied credit lines lotaled $82 at Decenber 31, 1996, BellSouth ~'so maintains uncommitted lines of
credit of $650. At December 31, 1896, there were no borrowings undler the uncommitted Enes. As of
February 14, 1997, shelf registration statements were on file with the Se 'writies and Exchange Commis-
sion under which $1,827 of debt securities could be publicly offered.

BeliSouth's debt to total capitalization ratio, adjusted in 1885 to e.clude the $485 of debentures
redeemed in January 1996, decreased to 43.5% at December 31, 19¢ 8 from 46.7% at December 31,
1985. The decrease was primarily caused by a reduction in short-term borrowings and an increase in
shareholders’ equity due to samings during 1996,

Derivative Activities. BeliSouth enters into foreign exchange forwa d contracts, currency swap
agreements and interest rate swap agreements in its normal course of business for hedging purposes.
These financial instruments are used to mitigate foreign cumency and interest rate risks, although to a
limited extent they expcse the company to market and credit risks. The credit risks associated with these
instruments are controlied through the evaluation and continual monltoring of the creditworthiness of the
counterparties. In the event that a counterparty falls to meet the terms of a contract or agreement,
BeliSouth's exposure is limited to the then current value of the currency rate or interest rate differential,
not the full notional amount. Such contracts and agreements have been executed with credRworthy
financial institutions whose credit ratings are generally AA/Aa or highet. As such, BeliSouth considers the
risk of nonperformance to be remote. See Note N 1o the Consclidated Financial Statements for addi-
tional information.
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in connection with the requirements of the 1868 Act, In August 1896, the FCC relecsed an order
adopting rules governing interconnection and open competition In thy local telephone service industry
(the Order). Among the issues specifically addressed by the Orde are the network slements that
BeltSouth must make available; pricing standards 10 be followed Dy & 188 in setting rates for intercon-
nection; access 10 network slements on an unbundied basis 8nd 180  services. BeliSouth and several
other incumbent local exchange carmiers (ILECs) joined in an appeal uf the Order to the United States
Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circult (the Court). Upon request of several state commissions and
mummnwmmmmmmmuummm
certain other terms. The Court heard oral arguments in January 1897, and a decision s pending.
Notwithstanding these developments, however, as discussed above, BeliSouth Telecommunications
and & number of camriers have negotiated interconnection agreements and state reguiatory CommMis-
sions are arbitrating or have approved various terms of interconnection between BeliSouth Telecommuy-
nications and other carriers. These terms may be revised, depending on, among other things, the
outcome of the appeal of the Order.

The 1998 Azt also requires the FCC 1o identily the local service subsidy provided by access
charges; to provide for the removal of such subsidy from access rates in order that access charges
reflect underlying costs; to arrange for a universal service fund to ensure the continuation of universal
service; and 1o develop the amangements for payments into that fund by all carmiers. The FCC is currently
WhHMhmnmmm|Mnmhm
charge rules. Until final orders are issued by the FCC and any judicial appeals have been concluded, it
wmuwumnmmmmm;mmm“ﬂ-
mmmum“mmwmmmmm
elements from ILECs or that connect wireless communicatione ‘sith the wireline networks of the ILECs.

to recover these cosls.

WWFGGMMMMMHMHE*I!MMMWW
mw.-ﬂummmmwmmmmwm.uﬂmuw
mm“mn1m!ﬂﬂmmm&1WMme
results or cash flows.

Wireloss Services. The FCC's PCS licensing process ¢dows multiple new competitors for Bell-
South's businesses. Licenses 1o provide PCS services have t sen won in auction by ATAT, Bell Holding
mmwmwmm-mmﬂmmw
BeliSouth's local wireline and wirsless telephone businesses. S sveral compelitive PCS systems are now
operational.

hmmmmmhmwmmndmmhdbu
mwwmlrnumwmum.mmummmm
mmmmrﬁﬁmmuummmmm
nications have announced that they plan to merge their celiular businesses. Those four companies have
also formed a joint venture 10 provide PCS in many domestic markets.

BeliSouth Competitive Strategy. BeliSouth has deveicped three main strategies that govem it
business decisions in the increasingly competitive tslecommunications industry. First, BeliSouth will
mhwmmhmmmwmmm
buillding: its brand strength and distribution channels; (D) providing full-service offerings including wire-
hudmmww.mmmmwmm
tnimmmmum“mwwmummw
by (a) deploying valus-added products and services and compstitive technology; () strengthening and
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BellSouth Strategic Management Unit, responsible for the development for BellSouth
Corporation, new business and market opportunities.

Mr. Meyers received his Bachelor of Arts degree from Louisiana State University - iew Orlcans.

Robert Scheye - Vice President - Supplier Development and Business Relations - BellSouth
BSE, Inc. (effective no earlier than November 1, 1997). In his current capacity, Mr., Scheye is
leading negotiations with other telecommunications carriers for obtaining the underlying services
to be provided by BSE, Inc. In addition, he is responsible for negotiating and procuring all
network hardware, software, and other components to deliver a complete communications
package to BSE, Inc. customers. Mr. Scheys has over 30 years of experience in the
telecommunications industry, including positions with C & P Telephone Company, AT&T, Bell
Communications Research, BellSouth Telecommunications and BellSouth Corporation.

Mr. Scheye has most recently been responsible for development of BellSouth policy positions
relating to long distance entry and competition, access charges and interconnection, resale and
unbundled network elements. In addition, Mr. Scheye has extensive experience in negotiating
and concluding interconnection and resale agreements between incumbent local exchange
carriers and new entrants such as competitive local exchange carriers.

Mr. Scheye received his undergraduate degree in economics from Loyol. College in Baltimore.

Harry M. Lightsey, IlI- Vice President - General Counsel, External Affairs and Secretary -
BellSouth BSE, Inc. Mr. Lightsey began his carcer in telecommunications with Southwestern
Bell Corporation Legal Department in 1982. Since then, Mr. Lightsey has held positions in the
Legal Departments of Southern Bell Telephone Company, BellS¢1th Telecommunications and
BellSouth Corporation. Most recently, Mr. Lightsey has been Gene. 1l Counsel - South Carolina
for BellSouth Telecommunications.

Mr. Lightsey received his undergraduate degree from Princeton Univ ersity and his 1.D. from the
University of South Carolina.




expanding distribution channels including joint marksting with BellSouth Telecommunications: and
(c) expanding in-region wireless coverage through successful bidding for PCS licenses and other
acquisitions. Third, BellSouth will continue 10 grow and develop its Latin Arnerican and other intermna.
tional operations. '

New Services. Notwithstanding the inevitable loss of | cal service customers and other risks
associated with increased competition, BellSouth will have the - Jportunity to benefit from entry into new
business markets. For example, the presence of competition, smong other things, can allow BeliSouth
to qualify 1o offer interLATA wireline service under provisions contained in the 1096 AcL BellSouth
belleves that in order lo remain competitive in the future, it must aggressively pursue a corporate
strategy of expanding its offerings beyond its traditional businesses and markets. These offerings
inciude interLATA services, information services and video and electronic commerce services. BeliSouth
has entered some of these businesses through investments in, strategic afliances with and acquisitions
of established companies in such industries and through the development of some of these services and
capabiiites internally. For example, among other initiatives, BellSouth has acquired several cable TV
rights, is conducting a trial of cable TV service and Is providing Internet access. BeliSouth also intends to
continue 0 pursue Certain foreign telecommunications licenses as they are offered.

BeliSouth plans to begin offering interLATA wireline service in each of s in-region states as soor 23
the FCC approves its application for sach state. BeliSouth has filed documents with the Georgia Public
Service Commission requesting that the Georgia Commission approve a statement of generally avail-
able terms and conditions as provided for in the 1666 Act and lo establish thal such terms and conditions
mest the competitive checkdist. BeliSouth will file an appiication for each state as soon as It believes the
conditions are met. Because of the proceedings required to obtain approval and the polential chal-
lenges of competitors and others, it is uncertain when BeilSouth will be authorized to commence
interLATA service in any of its in-region states. The 1998 Act requires that in-region interLATA service be
provided through a subsidiary separate from BellSouth Telecommunications.

Joint Marketing. The 1996 Act allows BellSouth 1o market wireless and other services jointly with
its wireline local exchange services; previously, separate marketing was required. This change has
enabled BeliSouth to more efficiently offer and provide integrated telecommunications. In March 1996,
BeliSouth began joint marketing of wireless and wireline services in selected markets. In addition, as
permitted by the 18968 Act, BellSouth intends 1o jointly market other services such as video, internet
access and, eventually, interLATA service wit. its wireline and wireless services.

1995 Work Force Reduction. As another par. of its competitive sirategy, BellSouth Telecommuni-
cations announced in 1065 a plan to reduce its wo: 't force by approximately 11,300 employees by the
end of 1897. Also, in 1895, BellSouth Telecommunic ations completad the restructuring of its telephone
operations that had been announced in 1993.




ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

_ REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
To the Sharehoiders of BeliSouth Corporation:

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with g - erally accepted accounting
princi~es and have been audited by Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P, independet accountants, whose repor
is contained herein.

The integrity and objectivity of the data in these financial statements including estimates and
judgments relating to matters not concluded by the end of the year, are the responsibility of the
management of BeliSouth. Management has aiso prepared all other information included therein uniess

Menagement maintains a system of intemal accounting controls which is continuously reviewed
and evaluated. However, there am inherent limitations that should be recognized in considering the
assurances provided by any system of internal accounting controls. The concept of reasonable assur-
ance recognizes that the cost of a system of internal accounting controls should not exceed, in manage-
ment’s judgment, the benefits 1o be derived. Management belisves that BeliSouth's system does
provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are executed in accordance with management's
general or specific authorizations and are recorded to maintain accountability for assets end 10

ples. Management also believes that this system provides reasonable assurance that access (o assets is
permitted only In accordance with management's authorizations, that the recorded accountability for
assets s compared with the existing assets al reasonable intervals and that appropriale action is taken
with respect to any diffierences. Management also seeks 10 assure the objectivity and integrity of its
financial data by the careful selection of its managers, by organi.ational arrangements that provide an
appropriate division of responsibility and by communications programs aimed at assuring that its
policies, standards and managerial authorities are understood throughout the organization. Manage-
ment is aiso aware that changes in operating stralegy and organizational siructure can give rise to
disruptions in internal controls. Special attention is given to controls while the changes are being
implemented,

Management maintains a strong internal auditing |.-ogram that independently assesses the effec-
tiveness of the intemal controls and recommends possible 'mprovements thereto. In addition, as part of
its audit of these financial statements, Coopers & Lybrand L.. .P. compieted a review of the accounting
controls to establish a basis for refiance thereon in determinirg the nature, iming and exdent of audit
tests to be applied. Management has considered the intemnal a iditor's and Coopers & Lybrand L.LP's
recommendations conceming the system of internal controls & d has taken actions that it believes are
cost-eflective in the circumstances to respond appropriately Ic these recommendations. Management
believes that as of December 31, 1886, the system of intermnal :ontrols was adequale lo accomplish the
objectives discussed herein.

Management also recognizes its responsibility for losten g a strong ethical ciimate so thal Bell-
South's affairs are conducted according 1o the highest standa s of personal and corporate conduct.
This responsibility is communicated to all empioyees through p licies and guidelines addressing such
issues as conflict of interest, safeguarding of BeliSouth's real and inteliectual properties, providing equal
employment opportunities and ethical relations with customers, suppliers and govemmental represent-
atives. BellSouth maintaine a program to assesc compliance with these policies and our ethicsl stan-
dards through its Senior Vice President, Executive Stafl Officer and Corporate Secretary.

7 R

F. Duae Ackerman Ronaid M. Dykes
Presic snt and Chiel Executive Officer Exscutive Vice President and

February 3, 1997
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AUDIT COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

The Audit Committes of the Board of Directors conaists of four members who ane neither officers nor
of BeliSouth Corporation. information as to these pers: s, as well as their guties, is provided

Lybrand L.LLP sach met with the Audit Commiltee on occasion lo encourage confidential
discussions as o any auditing matters : E \
Marshall M. Criser
Chairman, Audit Commitiee
February 3, 1997
: REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Sharehoiders
BeliSouth Corporation
Atianta, Georgia
We have audited the mmmumm-u

We conducted our audits in accordancs with generally accepted auditing standards. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

In our opinion, the financial statements re/ srred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of BellSouth C wporation as of December 31, 1896 and 1895, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1896, in conformity with genera. 'y accepted accounting princCiples.

As discussed in Note L to the consolidated hnancial statements, BellSouth discontinued accounting
for the operations of BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc. in accordance with Statement of Financial
AT :mmn.**mmnmacmmum*m

y 1

Qﬂﬂfu. v st L. P,

Atlanta, Georgia
February 3, 1797




MMMNMM
For the Years Ended
. Decamber 31,
- 1996 1998 1094
Revenues:
Network and related services:
B A e A g R R S S AP G $8082 §$ 7204 § 6863
INOrstale AOOBES. .. .....ccccvvvinnncnnnnnans SR el 3,563 3,275 3az7
m“t IIIIII LR B N L L R LR L ) LU .12 m “
Tl oneninninias s ML L AP (R e T4 1,008 1,180
Wireless communications . .. ................ AR R AT 2,790 2,562 2,067
Directory advertising and publishing . . .............000vuan 1,742 1.677 1,556
O BTV L L o e v vvvvnnsnnsnennsesnnnesssnssesss 1,288 1,185 1,134
Total Operating ROVENUSS . . .. ...covvvvivnnnrnnnarnnns 19.040 17806 16,845
Operating Expenses: _ '
Costof services and products .........ovvvvrsnennnnnnns 6,072 6184 6,043
Depreciction and amMOrmiZation . . . . ....ccvveviiiianaaseses 378 3,335 325
Seliing, general and administrative . . ........c 00 irv i e ems 4470 3873 3485
Waork force reduction charge (Note J) .............. e e 1082 —°
Tolal Operating Expenses . ..........ccovvnnnrvnnss e 14261 14584 12,787
OparEiNg OO, - 2 .+ v s i vrssessnrivessennsrnyonsoees 47T 3282 4058
INterest EXPINSS & oo cosovrennsosscosnsnnnses e ey T T24 666 -
Mmummmmm .................. 442 - —
Otherincome, et . .......co00uu00s O DR LR s R 108 20 1
Income Before Income Taxes and Extraordinary Losses . .. ....... 4608 2588 3403
Provision for Income Taxes (Note K) . . ......... .........ue. C 1745 1,024 1,243
income Before Extraordinary LOSSes . . ... ..........coneenns 2,883 1564 2,160
Extraordinary Loss for Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71, . :
netoftax (Note L) ...........000 e o PR (2.718) —
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt,
ok el A ENOME ) s o iisn e sa b e e e e T —_ (78) —
Not INCOM® (LOBE) . .« v v evvovosrsnsnsrsnesas srsnns § 2883 iu__.az-] i_&tﬂ
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding (Note G) . . ...... 994 993 992
Dividends Declared Per Common Bhare (Note G) .............. $§ 144 § 141 § 138
Eamings (Loss) Per Share: (Nole G)
income Before Extraordinary LOSSes .. ............cc0vunnn $§ 288 § 157 % 218
Loss for Discontinuance of SFAS No. 71,
out SUAINIIIL) i s i s e e e e e e - cry —
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Dabt,
T A P — (o —
Net Income (LOSS) ... ......... v $ 288°8 (1.24) § 218

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Dacember 31,
: 1908 1998

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cashandcashequivalents . ...........connvevnnrasocrsrasnsnannans $1178 51,
Tomporary Cash INVeStMents . . .. .......couuveiiassisnssnsssnanannsns 51 71
Accounts receivable, net of aliowance for uncoliectibles of $180 and $171 ...... 4,087 3,77
DI RS UMD = o 5 i 40 0.6 6 446 66508008088 40050800 NL 48060040 451 £3(
OUWMrOUMINE BEBOLE . . . .00 o v vuvnnrarnannssrvoronssnasssnannsuans 531 521

Tote) Cument ABSEtS . . .. ....cnvvvvnnmnasasnnsnasssnsnssnsaanans 6,208 6,508
investments and Advances (NOB B) .........ccvevnuinnnnnnnsnranannnes 2430 241
Property, Plant and Equipment, net (NOte C) . .......ccvvvnvninnnionnnncnn 21,825 21,08
Deforred Charges and Other ABSEtS ............cc000eenuiusnssssonsass 610 e
R T S S 1405 1530

Total Assels . . ........ e A e L $32.568 $31.880
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Cumrent Liabilities:

Debt maturing within one year (Note E) ........ S e $ 2124 § 2951
R 7 - e R R R S 1446 1,724
Other cument liabllities (NOIB D) .. .. ... ccvvvvrerisnnrnnsrraninssnanans 2871 27

Total Curment Liabilites . . .........coovvvivrannnnnnsy i T 8.441 7.30(
Long-TermDebt (NI E) ...........c0nvevvvnnrarrrnssssnsasncsanans 8,116 7824
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities: -
Accumulated deferred INCOMO XS . . . . .. .ccvvvnsssnsnsssssrsdossnss 1,808 1,85C
Unamortized investment tax credits . . ....... ....ccoccnescenesrssnsress 278 38¢
Other abiiities and deferred credits (Note F) . ... ........cvcvuvicvnnnnes 2585 273

Total Deferred Credits and Other Llabilitles . ... ...........ccicuvenees 4,762 4. T4
Shareholders' Equity:

cmmmnpummm-mmmmmm

OULRRBNAING] . i+ »cvcisdiasasiaraiiiseans saasEEREa AT EE 1,000 1.005
T R S (S T 7.697 7.81¢
Pl SBITINDE . v oo svossroasmsassranl siasassinesesesseasn 5,541 4,00
Shares heid intrustand treasury (NOte G) . ....... c.ccveeiucniananinns (532) (37«
Guarantee of EBOP debt (Note H) . ... ......ccve vuvsuvuncnninsrnssns [458) (52¢

Total Shareholders' EQURY . ...........ccvcvucansasassnsssransssnss 13,249 11.82¢

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity . . . ........oooveueraiesen $32.568 $31,88(

The accompanying roles are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements.
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY
{in Millions)
Mesmber of Sharos A ek
dharid
Hald In Hasd In Trust  Guaranies
Comemon wred Par  Puidin Retained e of EBOP
Sesk  Tweswy Wi Cophel Sorwings Tresswy Ot

Balance at December 31, 19863 502 (6) § 502 $8,010 85010  $(299)  §(643) §13,405
Netincome ......... 2180 2,160
Dividends declared . ........ (1.370) (1.370)
Shares issued for:

Employes benefit plans . . .. 6 6
mm ------ oW ' {'} 1- 42 {m —
ESOP activities and related tax

benoftt ....... e daen L . 12 59 T
Foreign cumrency translation

adjustment . ............. 8 6
Balance at Decamber 31, 1864 503 M 603 8084 67T {338) (584) 14,368
Two-for-one stock spilt

maj --------- ssEEwES m m m m e
N IOBS . ... cseedsinnias (1.232) (1.232)
Dividends declared . . ..... (1.400) (1,400)
Shares issued for:

Emgpioyee benefit plans 1 1 a0 n
Grantor trusts . ......... 38 (38) -_—
ESOP activities and related tax

benefit ......co000unnnsa 10 58 &8
Foreign currency translation

adjustment . .....co00000. __(o {10}
Balance at December 31, 1885 1,007 (13) 1,007 7610 4,009 (374) (526) 11,825
Mim L L L L] L] m m
Dividends declared . .. ...... (1.430) (1,430)
Shares issuedfor: .........

Empioyes benefit plans ; 1 1 14 1" 26
Grantor trusts . .......... 1 (1) 1 o4 (35) —
Shares purchased for:

TrOBINY < isne v svnas ) (85) (85)
Grantortrusts ........... (1) (49) (49)
ESOP activities and related tax

DO ... vonssnibanssan 8 60 [}
Foreign currency transiation
Balance at Decomber 31, 1806 1,000 JE} 51,000 $7.697 E_.EM $(532) §(468) 513240

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these consolidated financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
mmmmwmm
(In Mitllons)
e - For the Yesrs Ended Decemin
; “iwe 181
Netincome (1088) . ....oovsssvnssssnnss . LI N $2880 §(1.232) § 2
Adjustments to net income (loss):
: Gainonsale of pagingbusiness ................... T T (442) - -
Depreciation and amOMZAON . ... ........cccresessrnnsssssans ane 3,485 2
' Provisionforuncollectibles .. .............ccvnmenarnannnianas 254 213
mmu—mmmnm ...... 120 (1.971)
Pension expense in sxcess of funding/(pension income) ....... (14) (53)
Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates . .. ... e » N 130 149
Losses irom unconsolidated affiliates, net. . .. .................... 78 86
Extraordinary loss for discontinuance of SFASNo. 71 ............... - 4,440 -

r Extraordinary loss on sarly extinguishment of debt . .. .............. — 127 -

h Payment of call premium. . ....... A A e - T4 -

. Work force reduction ChifD® . . . .. ccvcvs-rsssssssassasransssass - 1,082 -

n Net change In:

1! Accounts receivable and other current 8SsetS . .. ................ 645)  (T70)

K Accounts payable and other current liabliities . .. ... T S AR R (705, (283)

Ir Deforredcharges and Other 888818 . . . .. ......ccvvsvrsosssssns (126) (28)

: Other liablities and delemed CreaMS ... ..........covnavseernnns 581 318

It Otherreconcliing Mems, NeL. ... .........ccvivrvessnnasanssans 55 2 _

Net cash provided by operating activities ... ................. | 5443. ¢
' Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Capital ®PenNARUMNES ., ...vcvvvssnrns srrnvarsssassnnasssnsss {4,455) (4.203) [

Procesds fromsale of paging business . . ... .........c.cvvsvanans 830 - .

1 Proceeds from disposition of short-term investmonts . .........c0vvune 358 187

: Purchases of shori-term Investments . .. ....... ccicvosvsissvsnons (336) (207

¢ Proceeds from investment dispositions and repaymsits of advances. . . . . . 102 426

'|| Investments in and advances to unconsolidated affiistes . ............ (820) (521)

§ Otherinvesting activities, net . .. ...........cc vnssssnsnssscsans (175) (68)

\ Net cash used for Investing BCHVIBES . . .. ... .......c.oeeeeeereons (4.199) (4384 (

I Cash Fiows from Financing Activities:

M Proceeds from shoridermbomowings ... ..... «.covverrernnvnnsnns 23842 210 2

) Repayments of short-term DOMOWINGS . . .. .. ....c.oovvrernuraniscnns (24,439) (20,565) (&

i Proceeds from long-termdebt . ......... ... .. ..ciciiiiiiiiinans 392 2,488

I Repayments of long-1erm debt . ... ..........coeueueeananaeinnns (544)  (1,558)

y | R s, S A T e (R DT, SRS (1.430) (1,385)
! Other ANANCING BCVINES, ML . . . .. ..c.oonvnrrrnssnrarsirrorrsns (118) (12
!I Net cash provided by (used for) financing aCtVIeS . . . .. ©........... (2,197 %

Net increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . .. ... .......... (533) 1,105
. Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period ... ........... e ek 1,711 608
Cash and Cash Equivalents st End of Period ... ..........ccovuvvunsns $1178 § 1711 §

- ——

The acc ampanying notes are en integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mhmwﬂrmm}

Nots A — ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BeliSouth Corporation (BellSouth) is a hoiding cc  pany headquartered in Atlanta,

South Telecommunications), serves, in the aggregate, two-thirGs of the population and
one-hall of the teritory within Alabama, Flonda, Georgla, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippl, North Caro-
lina, South Carolina and Tennesses. primarily provides local exchange

Areas (LATAS), and provides network access services 1o enable interLATA communications using the
long-distance faciities of interexchange carriers. Through subsidiaries, other telecommunications ser-
vices and products are provided primarily within the nine-state BaliSouth Telecommunications region.
BeliSouth Enterprises, Inc. (BellSouth Enterprises), another wholly-owned subsidiary, owns businesses
providing wireless and international communications services and advertising and publishing products.

Substantially all of BeliSouth's operating revenues are derived from domestic operations. For the
year ended December 31, 1096, approximately 70% of BeliSouth's operating revenues were from
wirsline and network services, 15% ware from wireless communications services and 9% were from
directory advertising and publishing services. The remainder of such operating revenues wes derved
principalty from other nonregulated services provided by BeliSouth Telecommunications.

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BeliSouth
wmmmnm:mwmmhwmm
ventures and subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity method. All significant intercompany
wransactions and accounts have been eliminated. Certain amounts in the prior period consolidated
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. -

Basis of Accounting. BeliSouth's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in ac-
mmmmmmmmwmm
mwmmnwmdmmm‘mdm
assets and liabiiities and the amounts of revenues and «voenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates

ﬂmmm.tm.mmm~dmdmm
sm;srmmn.*mummammum"suMLm
turther discussion of the impacts of discontinuance of SFAS No. T1.

December 31, 1896, 1995 and 1894, respectively.

Material and Supplies. New and reusable material is carried in inventory, principally at tverage
wmmmmmmmmmmmmwmm.w
material s carried al estimated salvage value.

Property, Plant and Equipment. The investrment in property, plant and equipment is stated al
mmmmmmmmmﬂmmmu
based on the remaining life mathod of depreciation and straight-ine composite rates cetermined on the
Mdmmmudemmmhnwﬂmn
mwwmumﬂhcﬂwmmmwm&mw
m-mmwuwm.mwwuwmm
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in Millions, Exos 5 Per Share Amounts)

Note A — ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued

straight-line or accelerated methods over the estim ad useful lives of the essets. Gains or losses on
MdmmmmHWHWHnmdmu
an element of other non-operating income

mn-h. intangible assets consist of the excass consideration paid over the fair value of
net assets acquired in business combinations, acquirad licenses and customer lists. Intangible assets
are being amortized using the straight-line and accelerated methods over periods ol benefil. Such
periods do not exceed 40 years. The carmying vaiue of intangible assets is periodically reviewed on the
basis of whether such intangibles are fully recoverable from projected, discounted net cash flows of the
related business unit. Amortization of such intangibles was $49, $50 and $53 for the ysars ended
December 31, 1906, 1895 and 1894, respectively. A! December 31, 1606 and 1995, accumulated
amortization of intangibles was §220 and $228, respectively.

Foreign Currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidianies and equity investees with a ftunc-
tional currency other than U.S. dollars are translated into U.S. doliars at exchange rates in effect at the
and of the reporting period. Foreign entity revenues and expenses are translated into U.8. dollars at the
average rates that prevalled during the period. The resulting net transiation gains and losses are
reported as foreign currency translation adjustments in Shareholders’ Equity as a component of Paid-In

Exchange gains and losses on transactions of the company and its equity investees denominated in
& currency other than their functicnal currency are generally included in results of operations as incurmed
uniess the transactions are hedged (see “Derivative Financial Instruments” below). The exchange gains
and losses for the years ended December 31, 1966, 1665 and 1694 were nol material.

Derivative Financial Instruments. Foreign exchange forward contracts are camied at fair value in
the consolidated balance sheets. Gains and losses on foreign exchange forward contracts used as
currency hedges of sxdsting assets or Jabilities are deferred and offsel the deferred losses and Qains of
the underlying asset or liability. The net sffect is ultimately recognized in income as the underlying
transaction matures. Gains and losses reic*ed to qualifying hedges of firm commiments also are
deferred and are recognized In income or at adjustments of carrying amounts when the hedged
transaction occurs.

Currency swap contracts entered into as hedges of existing assets and liabilities are camied at fair
value in the consolidated balance sheets. Gain. and losses on currency swaps are deferred and offset
against the deferred currency losses and gai s of the underlying asset or kability. The net eflect is
ultimately recognized in income as the underl, ing transaction matures.

interest rate swap agreements are treated is ofi-balance sheet financial instruments. Receipts or

payments resulting from these instruments are recognized as adjustments to interes! expense as
received or paid.

Revenue Recognition. Revenues are recognized when eamed. Cenain revenues derived from
local telephone and wireless services are billed monthly in advance and are recognized the following
month when services are provided. Directory advertising and publishing revenues and relaled direciory
costs are recognized upon publication of directories. Revenues derived from other lelecommunications
senvices, principally network access, toll and cellular airtime usage, are recognized monthly as services
are provided, Allowances for uncollectible billed services are adjusted monthly. The provision for such
uncollectible accounts was $254, $213 and $175 for the years ended December 31, 1686, 1685 and
1804, respectively.

Revenues from services provided to ATAT Corp., BeliSouth's largest customer, were approxdmately
9%, 10% and 11% o' consolidated operating revenuss for 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Mhmwhmm

Note A — ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)

Maintenance and Repairs. The cost of maintenance and repairs of plant, ir muma
replacing minor lems not effecting substantial betterments, is charged 10 operaty | expenses.

Income Taxes. The balance sheet refiects deferred tax balances associated .+ith the anticipated
tax impact of future income or deductions implicit in the balance sheet in the form of temporary
differences. Temporary differences primarity result from the use of accelerated methods and shorter lives
in computing depreciation for tax purposes.

For financial reporting purposes, BeliSouth is amortizing deferred investment tax credits eamed
prior to the 1986 repeal of the investment tax credit and also some transitional credits eamed after the

repeal. The credits are being amortized as a reduction to the provision for income taxes over the
estimated useful lives of the assets 1o which the credits relate.

Eamings Per Rhare. Eamings por common share are computed on the basis of the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each year.

Nota B — INVESTMENTS, ADVANCES AND SALES OF OPERATIONS
Investments and advances as of Deceniber 31 consist of the following:

1000 1008
Investments accounted for under the equity method . . ............. $1676 §1.845
Advances 1o and notes receivable from affiliates .................. a7s 477
Other Investments . . ......ocvieeenaransssncnsrannriassens 7o 24

Total investments and ADVENGCES . . . . . .....coooonnsss BT = Y $2430 $2.418

BellSouth's equity method investments primarilk include various partnerships in domestic and
intemational wireless properties and other intemnational communications consortiums. Losses related 1o
investments accounted for under the equity method were $(76), $(B8) and ${110) for the three years
ended December 31, 1996, 1985 and 1994, respectively, and are included as a component of Other
Income, nat.

Domestic Cellular. BeliSouth's domestic cellular invest “ents consist primarily of a 60.0% non-
controliing financial interest in the Los Angeles Cellular Telephon y Company and a 43.8% interest in the
Houston Cellular Telephone Company. Al December 31, 1996, BeliSouth's aggregate investment in
these entities exceeded the underying book value of the invest: s’ net assets by $880. The excess of
consideration paid over net assets acquired along with other int ingible assets is being amortized using
either straight-ine or accelerated methods over periods of pe nefit, which do not exceed 40 years.

International Communications. BellSouth has equity in restments in intemnational celiular opera-
tions in Latin America, Europe, the Asia-Pacific region and other intemational markets with ownership
ranging from 22.5% to 53.9%. Teicel Cellular C.A. (TeiCel), in which BeiiSouth has a
53.3% interest, provides celiular telephone service in Venezudla. BellSouth ls a 24.5% participant in
Optus, an intemnational consortium which provides a full spectrum of telecommunications services in
Australia, including swilched network and enhanced services, wirsless and salelite based Cervices.
BeliSouth is a 22.5% participant in the E-Plus Mobilfunk consortium (E-Plus), which provides cellular
telephone service in Germany.

Other investments. BeliSouth has noncontrolling financial interests ranging from 70% Lo 80% In
the .SL Ventures and 1155 Peachires Associates real estate partnerships. BeliSou 1 had notes receiva-
bie from and advances 10 these partnerships totaling $183 and $188 at December 31, 1668 and 1885,
respectively. The notes bear inlerest at rates ranging from 6.31% to 8.31% while the advances bear
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Doliars in Millions, Excopt Per Shere Amounts)

Note B — INVESTMENTS, ADVANCES AND SALES OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
interest at the federal funds rate plus .30%. Principal amounts outstanding ‘1December 31, 1866 are due

and payable to BeliSouth between January 15, 1698 and August 8, 7 02. The instruments require
mwammn_mwmnuu '3 holdings.

: 'mm-mmmmmmmmum;pumh
ﬁmdmmﬁmnmmmwm-dmn.1mm1m.
m.mmhwmhmdmmwmmw
MWHMMNBWMMMWMT“MM
interest al & variabie rate of 10% o 11% and matures in 2001.

from 6% to 72.5%.

hiﬂ.Mhle#ﬁlmm-ﬂhmmmmmﬂ
mhmmwnuhmmmnmu
mm#MMEMhMMMMMhHM
consolidated balance sheet. In January 1997, BeliSouth successiully complated the tender offer, aoquir-
ing & 56.7% interest in the entity.

Mmammw-am of Other income, net, were
:m.m-dmhnmmmm, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respeciively.
Sales of Operstions. In January 1996, BellSouth sold to Mobile Media Communications, inc. s

mwmmmmmmtmmmmmmm.h
the years ended December 31, 1mm1m.wmﬁummmmm.w
tively, for the years ended December 31, 1985 anc 1994. Total assets at December 31, 1995 were 5355.

ol 1998
OUBMOOPIAN .. .coovviinvnsrsaresnranns sernnesrirrons $20,866 $20,082
Contral Ofice BQUIDMBNt . . ... ..covrsrsessararssansnnstasy 17442 18,132
Building and bullding IMProvements . . ......... cooaeaesreres 3,585 3,303
and Other BQUIDMNt . . ... . ccoovrras sossassnsnsas 3,505 2952
FumBure and BOUMS . . . .. ccecroerrasscssss srssanansnans 3.017 2.m
Plam under cONSTUCHON . ........cccoserarransnanssranses 716 T2
Station equIpMent . . .. ... .o arrrrreesas s e naa s 638 6268
P R R e T R TR S L L 190 181
50,050 46,860

Less: Accumulated Jeprecialion . .......ccoessrrrrmnaenens g z34 2,7V
Total Property, Plant and Equipment, net. . . . ....ovvarauaees $21.825 §21,082

e ——— ——

BunnuLu-munw:uﬁmm,n and its sifect on Property, Plant
and Equipment.




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contirued)
(Dolisrs in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)
Note D — OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
. Other current liabilities are summarized as follows at Dec - nber 31:

Advanced billing and customer deposits . . . . . R T $ 5390 § 43
TRes BCCTURD., . . . ..o vcncnsvscssssaain . §17 a2
Dividends payable...... e o n - - 383 38
Salaries and waget a T e 335 325
benefits (see NOtO J) ........ccovnnvvrnnnnnnes 303 an
Intores! BNG rONES BCOMG . . . . .. ccvvenrnnsrasrsrrnrresnnanns 293 282
Compensaled absences ....... .. corrrrrnnrsrnes S 244 nr
I i e ons e s e o e s Sn s S ANR Y E R EAE N W
Total Other Current Liabilites . ............. PR TR - $287T1 S2.715
Note E — DEBT '
Debt Maturing Within One Year: Debt maturing within one year is summarized as follows at
Decamber 31:
LS
Debentures Redeemed in January 1886 ............ i L $§— § 485
Short-term notes payable:
Mm P EEEEE R E R RN B AN "EEEER BN E N IR .n '“
Commercial paper . . ......cocovvaans o T 1,885 2302
Current maturities of long-tlerm debt . . ........ bR 188 ™
Total Debt Maturing Within One Year . ... ......coveercveennsns §2.124 $2.851
Weighted average interest rale at end of period:
BaKIOENS . ... ossssssncssrsnasannnes R TA0% 7.50%
ComMMOcil PBPBr . . .. cvesvrsnssss sssssssasannnanassos 550% 5.81%

BailSouth has committed credit lines aggregating *1,851 with various banks. Bormrowings under the
committed lines totaled $92 and $66, respectively, at Necember 31, 1906 and 1995. BeliSouth also
maintains uncommitied lines of credit aggregating $650. \t December 31, 1996, there were no bomow-
mmnwmm“mmmmuumh
compensating balances associaled with any lines of cr dit




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Doliars in Millions, Except Per S8hore Amounts)

Note E — DEBT (Continued)

Lonhg-Term: Long-lerm debt, summarized below, consists | - narfly of debentures and notes issued
by BeliSouth Telecommunications. interest rates and maturities in the table below are for the amounts
outstanding at December 31, 1906,

bara! Meturitias 1o 1098
BeliSouth Telecommunications

Debentures: W% - BW% 1007 - 2045 $1.905 $1.915
BE5%-TH 2085 835 626
T™-8W% 2010-2005 2050 22538
4590 65,076
BeliSouth Telecommunications Notes . . BA%-7% 1008-2008 2175 2175

BellSouth Capltal Funding Corporation
........................ 4.89% - 9.25% 1897 - 2028 820 544
........... 0.125% - 0.19% 2009 594 847
m lllll R R R R E R e ‘“ n
Unamortized discount, net of premium . _ B33 3
B,282  B.488
mm @B B R B R EE B R R RS EE _i!-ﬂ ﬁ}
“I.nm-l'lhﬂnbltl ............ $8.118 §7.924

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding (principal amounts) at December 31, 1696 are summarized
below. Maturitios after the year 2001 include $500 principal amount 6.85% debentures due in 2005, Al
December 31, 1896, such debentures had an accreted book value of §135.

1097 N 1989 - 2000 2001  Thorsafier  Total
Maturities . .......... $ 166 § Tob § 265 § 473 § 182 $57T9é S8.68O

Notes lssued by BeSouth Capital Funding Corps. mation (Capital Funding) are used to finance the
businesses of BeliSouth Enterprises and the unreguis 'ed subsidiaries of BeiiSouth Telecommunica-
tions. BeliSouth has agreed o ensure the timely payme 1 of principal, premium, if any, and interest on
Capital Funding's debt securities.

During 1985, BeliSouth Telecommunications refir anced certain long-term dabt issues at more
tavorable interest rates. The approximate $1,800 gross ;. roceeds of debentures issued during the year to
accomplish these refinencings are included in Long-Ter.n Debt. Of the total §1,885 aggregale principal
amount of debentures called for redemption during 185, §1,400 had actually been redeemed as of
December 31, 1885. The remaining §485 of debentures, r deemed in January 1688, are included in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at Decembaer 31, 1895 in Dett Maturing Within One Year. AC 1 result of the
early extinguishment of thess issues, inciuding the issues redeemad In January 1996, an extraordinary
loss of $78 ($.08 per share), net of a currant tax benefit of $49, was recognized in 1885,

Al December 31, 1996, shelf registration statements were on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under which §1,827 of debt securities could be offered.

AT -h: w-rﬂ- o EmE RASSETL B SR S A, —
Q
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Note F — OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS
Other labilities and deferred credits are summarized as |

Postretirement benefits other than pensions (see Notes |
Accrued pension cost (see Notes Hand J) . .........
wm1tt!i*'1lt lllllllllllllll

Note G — SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stock Spiit. In Septamber 1685, BeliSouth's Board of Dir
effected in the form of a stock dividend, whereby each sharel
received on November B, 1985 one additional share of commu
record date. As a result of the spiit, 503,555,084 shares were iss
in Capital to Common Stock. Also in September 1895, BellS
increase in the number of authorized shares of common stoc
Weighted average common shares outstanding and per share
reflect the stock spiit.

Preferred Stock Authorized. BellSouth's Anticles of Inco
cumulative First Preferred Stock having a par value of §1 per shy
reserved and designated Series A for possible issuance under
of December 31, 1996, no prelemed shares had bee~ issued.

Sharehoider Rights Plan. In 1989, BeliSouth adop.»d a
dividend of one right for aach share of common stock then ow:sl
right entities shareholders 10 buy one one-hundredth of a shi
$87.50 per share. The rights may be exercised only if a persor
stock of BeliSouth without the prior approval of the Board
exchange offer that would result in ownership of 25% or more o
acquires 10% of BellSouth's stock without prior Board approve
purchase BellSouth common stock at half price. The rights cun
and may be redeemed by the Board of Directors for one cent
and thereafier under certain circumstances. The rights expire

Shares Held in Trust and Tressury. During 1894, 199!
grantor trusts 1o provide partial funding for the benefits payable
The trusts are irmevocable and assets contributed to the trusts
cerain exceptions. At December 31, 1996 and 1985, the asse
15,796,782 and 13,753,204 shares, respectively, of BellSouth
BeliSouth common stock held by the trusts, 14,586,782 were &
out of previously unissued shares and 1,210,000 shares wen
through use of the trusts’ funds,

The total cost of the shares issued by BeliSouth as of the
Commn Stock and Paid-in Capital; however, because these st
financiul reporting purposes, the shares are included within

51




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Doliars in Millions, Except Per Sh-re Amounts)

Note G — SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)
reduction to Sharehoiders’ Equity. in addition, there ls no samin  ; per share impact of these shares. The
cost of shares aoquired in open market purchases by the trust ae aiso included in Shares Heid in Trust
and Treasury.

In addition to shares held by the grantor trusts, Shares Held in Trust and Treasury includes treasury
shares purchased in connection with BsiiSouth's announced plans to repurchase shares of its common

stock. In 1996, BellSouth purchased 2,207,152 treasury shares for an aggregate of $85. A total of
276,168 shares were reissued under various empioyee benefit plans.

Shares Held in Trust and Treasury as of December 31, 1996 and 1885 are comprised of the

10948 1998
Sharen Bumourd Sharas Amount
Shares held by Grantor Trusts. . .......... 15,796,782 $458 13753204 6374
mmhm RE R W R E R '|-m.“'. T‘ |y’ _—

Total Shares Held In Trust and Treasury. . 17,727,766 $532 :3.753.204 $374

Guarantee of ESOP Debt. Financial reporting practices require that the amount equivalent to
BeliSouth's guarantee of the amortizing notes issued by its ESOP trusts be presented as a reduction to
m'mmmm--mhw'ﬁmmnm
of unallocated BeliSouth common stock purchased with the proceeds of the amortizing notes and the
timing difference resulting from the shares allocated accounting method. See Note H.

Note H — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plans. Substantially all employees of BaliSouth are covered by noncontributory defined
mmmwmnmwmmmmmwtmm
in the aggregate.

mmmwmummmmmm
benefits determined by a combination of compensatior -based service and additional credils and indi-
vidual account-based interest credits. The cash balance | lan is subject to a minimum benefit determined
under & plan in existence for nonrepresented employee prior to July 1, 1883 which provided benefits
based upon credited service and employees’ average .ompensation

improvements.

BeliSouth's funding policy is to make contributions to trust funds with the objective of accumulating
Mﬂum-mmmmmum.mmm
mmuwmmmmmmmes«mm
tions. Pension plan assets consist primerily of equity securities and fixed income investmants.




Service cost — benefits eamed during the year .. ........ § 288 § 230 § 2m
interest cost on projected benefit obligation ., , . .......... 709 812 TR
Actual (return) loss onplanassets. ... ................ (1,957 (3.041) 136
Net amortization and deferral ....................... BS6 1937 (1.158)
Net pension (IncCome) 0Ot . . ... ...ovvvnenrnnennnns 5 514] 5 E; $ 2

Effective January 1, 1884, the nonrepresented cash balance plan was divided from one into four
mmmmmumhumhmmmmm
company demograghic informaticn. The plan division had no material impact on BeliSouth in 1994, Net
pension (income) cost is affected by changes in the discount rate and other actuarial assumptions. The
consolidated net pension (income) cost amounts reflected above are exclusive of curtaliment effects
reflected in the work force reduction and restructuring activities (see Note J) and do not reflect curtall-
ment gains in the amount of $43 in 1096.

The following table sets forth the funded status of the plans at December 31:

198 199
Actuarial present value of:
Vestod benefit obIGRNON . . ... ....0iininiiiininnnnnnnnnes § 9321 §885
Accumulated benefit obligation .. ......................... § 9824 § 0961
Projected benefit obligation . . . ..........covvuvnnnnsennens $11,303 $11,904
Plan assots At fair valU . ... ........0c00iivnnnnnnineennnnn. 15614 14613
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation . ............ 4311 2619
Unrecognized net gain due to past experience different ‘~om
BESUMPDUONS MBOE . . . . .. .cvvivsrnnrarnnnnsnase sosssnes (4,206) (2.738)
Unrecognized prior service cost . ................... PR o (304) (169)
Unrecognized net asset attransition . . . .............. ....... (130) (151)
ACCTUBT PONBION COBL. .+ e eveniintsnnnsnnnsnssranssnns $ (4089) § (489)
The significant actuarial assumptions at December 31, 196 5 and 1995 were as follows:
1994 1998
Weighted average disCOUN rate. . . . ... ....oovveniir vunvnnnnnns 75 % 7.0%
Weighted average rate of compensation increase . . ..... ........... 6B % 57T%
Expected long-term rate of retumonplan assets ... ................ B25% B.0%

Postretiremont Benefits Other Than Pensions. BellSouth sponsors postretirement heau. . and
mmmmwmauwmmmm-
mwmhbﬂumdmﬁmhwmmmd
active plan participants at adoption. The accounting for the health care plan does not anticipate future

adjustments to the cost-sharing arrangements provided for in the written plan for employees who retire
after Drcember 31, 1991,

anmhummmmmmhwﬂm
sufficient assets 1o pay all heath and life benefits for which BeliSouth is liable. Contributions are
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actuarially determined using the aggregate cost method, su ectto ERISA and intemal Revenue Service
Eisfilﬂfiigiiiglﬁig
investments.

::El;iﬂng:ﬂ?!!nlgufiiﬂtna?
respectively, is composed of the following:

160 1998 1904
Health Lie Health Lie Meslth Lhe

Service cost — benefits eamed during the year . $ 35 § 108
intarest on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 225 223 21
Actual (retumn) loss on plan assets . . . . . . (183) (103) (185) (125)
Amontization of transition liability (asset) . . B8 3 2
Other amortization and deferral, net ................. 116 _58 115 77 (65) (30)
let postretirement benefit cost (income) §$308 § (3) § 280 m_ $37 § (5)

iéigiﬁg_giglgl
ﬂ%i;!?igglﬂ;ﬁigsih.

igﬁigﬁiisliﬁlu_;!lﬁ,;;

. e —
i = — [ — T e —— T —— ——r—

Fully eligible active plan participants . ........ 437 ez
Other active planparticipants .............. S41 184 687
2872 3,308 620
Planassetsatfairvalve ............ ....... 137 778 1,159 692
Accumulated postretiremnent benefit obligati. 1 less
than (in excess of) plan assets . 583 14
Unrecognized prior service cost . 1
Unrecognized net (gains) losses . .. ........ ... (278) 218
Unrecognized transition obligation (asset) (144) 1,163 57)
(Accrued) prepaid postretirement benefit cos: $ & (675) §
?EE%LE&!E;EE_EEIEH
1998 1998
Weighted average rate of compensation increase . .. ................ 58 %
HOalN 0Bre COBE IroNd P (1) . ..o ovvivesenreseieeasssnnnsssss BS5S % 9.0%
Expected long-term rate of retum on planassets (2)................. 8.25% B. %
(1) iii&gg;ggsiﬂlﬂdﬁrgﬁ
decrease gradually 1o 5% in 2003
iil!iﬂiﬁ.iﬂ.ﬂgffg%ﬂifduﬂlﬁ
1665,




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)
Note H — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)
The health care cost trend rate assumption affects the amounts reported. . one-percentage-point
increase in the assumed health care cost trend rates for each future year would increase the accumu-

tated postretirement bensiit obligation by $180 at December 31, 1996 and the estimated aggregate
service and interest cost components of the 1998 postretirement benefit cost by $17.

Defined Contribution Plans. BeliSouth maintains several contributory savings plans which cover
substantially all employees. In April 1996, the BeiSouth Management Savings and Employse Stock
Ownership Plan and the BeliSouth Enterprises Retirement Savings Plan merged to form the BeliSouth
Retirement Savings Plan. The BeliSouth Relirement Savings Plan and the BaliSouth Savings and
Security Plan (collectively, the Savings Plans) are tax-qualified defined contribution pians. Assets of the
plans are heid by two trusts (the Trusts) which, in tum, are part of the BeliSouth Master Savings Trust.

In 1990, a leveraged Employee Stock Owner: ip Plan (ESOP) was incorporated into the Savings
Plans. The Trusts borrowed $850 by issuing amortizing notes which are guaranteed by BellSouth (see
Note E). The Trusts used the loan proceeds 1o purchase shares of BeliSouth common stock in the open
market. These shares are heid In suspense accounts in the Trusts; a scheduled number of shares s
released for allocation 10 participants as each semi-annual loan payment is made. The Trusts service the
debt with contributions from BeliSouth and with dividends paid on the shares held by the Trusts. None of
the shares heid by the Trusts is subject to repurchase.

A portion of employees’ efigible contributions to the Savings Plans is matched by BaliSouth at rates
determined annually by the Board of Directors. BeliSouth's maiching obligation is fulfilled with shares

released from the suspense accounts semi-annually for allocation to participants. The number of shares -

allocated 10 each participant’s account is based on the market price of the shares at the time of
allocation. If shares released for allocation do not fulfill BellSouth's matching obiligation, BeliSouth
makes further contributions 1o the Trusts to fund the pur chase of additional shares in the open market to

futfill the remaining obligation.

BeliSouth recognizes expense using the shares aliocatec sccounting method, which combines the
cost of the shares allocated for the period plus interes! incurred, reduced by the dividends used 1o
service the ESOP debt. Dividends on all ESOP shares are recor jed as a reduction to retained eamings
and all ESOP shares are included in the computation of eami gs per share.

1™ 1908 1954
Compansation COBt . ..........coues0s:s s58 $75 s
INtorest oXPONSS . .......co000viiusnans $33 $37 30
Actual inlerest on ESOP Notes . .. ......... $56 $62 $66
Cash contributions, excluding dividends paid
RO TRUMD v v o vvsosoearnnnssnnsnnss s s $100
Dividends paid to the Trusts, used for debt
el ot R . 54 44 A2
Shares allocated to participants . . ... ...... 14305917 11942278 6,621,004
Shares committed tobe released . ......... - —

Sharesunallocated ............cc000:%¢ 17,472,807 19,608 448 22,167,680




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts
Note | — STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS y
At December 31, 1996, BeliSouth has stock options outstanding unde several stock-based con
mmmmmmmmmm roviges for grants 1o ke
employees of stock options and varicus other stock-based awards. One are ol BeliSouth commo

sions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” BellSouth's net income an
mummmmmnnmmmwm

1990 1098
Net income (loss) — as reported . ................00000usnss §26063 §(1.230)
Net income (1088) — PrO1OME. . . ....ooivennrvnnnnnnnnnn.s $2.852 §(1,235)
Eamings (loss) pershare —asreported ... .................... §$ 288 § (129
Eamings (loss) per share — proforma . ... ...............0..0. $2687 § (1.29)

Hnmhmmmm“mmmdhmmmwmm
in future years because, in general, the options granted in 1996 and 1895 do not vest for several yean
and additional awards are made each year

mmmmnmhnmmumm:

_ e 1088 1904
Options outstanding at January 1 .......... 15 287,748 10,345,924 7.308 284
Optionsgranted. .............0000unn.. $.5376,513 5.269.040 3525722
Optionsexercised ..................... (667,545)  (1,226,040) (374,278)
Optionsforfelted .. .................... (401,324) (101,178) (113,804)
Options outstanding at December 31 ....... 18.57/,382 14287748 10345924
Weighted-average option prices per common
share:
Outstanding at January 1 .............. $30.56 $28.65 $26.14
Granted at fair market value ....... 142.50 $30.85 $30.20
Granted at above fair market value . . . .. .. N/A $41.34 $41.79
Exorclesd. .. ..o 0niivniennniinnnnes $.6.24 §24.48 §2358
FOMBIBE . . s e ivivenennsonerseens 33 $30.10 $29.08
Outstanding at December31............ $34.11 $30.56 $28.685
Weighted-average fair value of options Cranted
at fair market value during the year ... ... .. §7.66 §5.60 §7.50
fair value of options granted .
at above fair market value during the yeasr . . . N/A $2.48 $1.70
Options exercisable at December 31 .. ...... 6,523,291 5,242,258 4,667 262
‘shares available for grant at December 21 . ., 9810682 10,074,447 10,050,008




BELLSOUTH CORPORATIOM
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT! 4ENTS (continued)

mmmwnm Umounts)
MNote | — STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
m&mamwwhmunnmmmnmm
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

1994 1999 1694
Expected e (Yoars) . . . .......cccovvuuannns R 7 7 7
o R R LG S DR Y 230%  455%  4.50%
Expoctod vOIBIBRYY ... .....cvcvireiniiiraiinainana 15.4% 15.8% 16.4%
Riskfroo intorest rade .. .........ccvvvcninnanannns 556% T7.21% 5.76%

$18.50 - $25.90 1,466,990 4.66 yoars $24.65 1,466,990 $24.65
$26.00 - $2799 2810677 5.24 yoars 1.3 1,639,885 $27.27
$28.00 - $20.99 9,668,220 7.05 years $20.44 1,229,828 $29.28
$30.00-$3899 3,250,373 7.56 years $30.98 819,337 $31.41
$39.00 - $44.50 7,357,132 8.77 years 3424 1,167,241 $42.08
$1850- 54450 18571382 7.38 yoars SN 8.523.291 $30.23

m+mmmdmm.Whmmmmmw-m
wireline business by the end of 1997, consists of $561 under the provisions of SFAS No. 112, "Empioy-
m'mrihgh'wunh."rﬂdumwmnwhm
severance benefits under preexisting separation plans, .9 $381 for curtaliment losses under the
mdﬂﬂﬂﬂmﬂ,W‘mhﬁmmanﬂmm
Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits” and SFAS No. 10, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretire-
mmmmmwrwnuhuwmmuw
mmmmmmmummnmmwm
benefit payments after 1887, also under SFAS No. 112, and 555 for adciional net curtaiiment losses
related to employee reductions under a restructuring plan in ated in 1993 and completed in 1995,

rates.




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Shars Amounts)

Note K — INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The provision for income taxes is summarized as follows:
1908 1098 1004

Federal:
b T R U e N R T ok $1380 s$1.081 §1,082
T e R R S A e 170 (148) 34
investment tax credits, net . .............. 0000 00uns ™ (69) (73)
1,483 B4d4 1,043

State:

r L e e T e e o R oo gt 235 203 180
R R N R I e 27 (23) 20
262 180 200
Total provision for income taxes . ................... $1,745 g.rm $1.243

losses in 1895 are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Income net of tax
benelits totaling $1,780, of which $49 is current and $1,731 is deferred.

Temporary differences which gave rise to deferred tax assets and (ablities) at December 31 were
as follows:

1994 1008

DO 5oh e v aia e e e e e e $ 707 § 627

Work force reduction charge. . ... ... .coeiciniiinnnnnnnnans 210 arn
Niowance foruncollectibles ..................cco0viieinna. a7 B9
Regulatory sharingaccruals ... .............ccoviiiininnnnn 32 114
................ 244 219
1,280 1,418

Valuation aliowance . (64) (55)
DO T ABBIE. 0 o s s o anisiciiviniein dens s i deidieniee 1216 1,964
BOMPIEIMION. . - & o i o e A e e e {2.110) (2.042)
O ORI -« i 47 7 6 {354) (361)
Issum Dasie BCCOUMING . . ... vvv v vinrcn e s (187) (207)
LOBNBOS . . .. ...ttt i (187)  (180)
I o 0 0 4.0 2. 08,555 obm e e R R AT (133) (129)
Deforred Tax Labilities . ..............cconvvnenvensnsas (2961) (2.929)
Net Deforred Tax Uability . . .........0 covvvvennrnnnnnn $(1.765) ﬂlﬂﬁ]

The valuation allowance, which increased by 80 in 1006, primarily relates (o state net operating
losses that will not be utiitzed during the camylorward period. Of the Net Delerred Tax Liability at
December 31, 1996 and 1695, $134 and $85, respectively, was curment and §(1,899) and $(1,650)
respectively, was noncument.

L]




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
mmmmmmmnnm{m
(Dollars In Millions, Except Per £°'3re Amounts)
Note K — INCOME TAXES (Continued)
A reconcillation of the Federal statutory income tax rate . BellSouth's effective tax rate foliows:
1904 1098 1004

Federal statUtOny tRX FBED . ... vovvvvinrrnsnnsnnrnrsncs 35.0% 350% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit. . . ... ... 37 45 40
Amontization of investment tax credits .. . ................. wn @n @)
Equity of unconsolidated subsidianies .................... B 20 0.6
Benefit of capital loss camylorward . ...... R A -  (04) (1)
Basis difference in disposed subsidiary . .................. (1.5) - -
MiscollanoOus Moma, NBl. . . . .. ..o cv v nirassasanns 0.8 12 A
ENOCHVE LRX FBI® . . . v oo vvvvetnennnnnarnararsnssnsis 379% 396% 36.5%

Note L — D'SCONTINUANCE OF SFAS NO. T

In 1995, as a result of its continuing reguilatory and marketplace assessments, BeliSouth Telecom-
munications concluded that it was required 1o discontinue SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation,"” for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, BeliSouth Telecommunica-
tions recorded a noncash extraordinary charge of $2.718 (net of a delermed tax benefit of $1,731). The
components of the charge are as follows:

Pretax  Afer Tmx

Reduction in recorded value of long lived telephone plant . . ........ $(4,896) $(3,002)
Full adoption of issue basis accounting . .........ccevvnnenans any 194
Elimination of regulatory assets and liabilities . .................. m -
Partial adjustment to unamortized investmant tax credits .. ......... 19 19
A A i S T R $(4,449) $(2.718)

The reduction of telephone plant, $4,896 (pretax,, was recorded as an increase 10 the related
accumulated depreciation accounts, the categories and a~ounts of which are as follows:

Central Office Equipment:
Dighal SWROIING  « + « v vovirrrncrsrstansaranrs sarirarEE R r e $1,305
U ORI o s vasentsnms e s ss bbb ebbas seteesssssesvasses 1.291
Total Central Office EQuIpment . . .. ....icuseiserssasnasssnnennvis 2.508
Outside Plant: ———
Buried metallic cable . .. ......cvvveveenaarraas sssrraarrarraaras 1,345
Asrial metallic CADIB . . . ... .ccvnrianriasssr i an asr s e 630
Underground metallic cable . ...........covnrineinannnnaransansss 325
Total Oulalde PIBNE . . . . .. o ivassnsnnsnsrssasassnsannasssssssnss 2,300
PR L a0 O e $4.896

Such reduction of plant was determined by an impairment analysis that identified estimated
amounts nol recoverable from future discounted cash flows. The analysis considered projected effects
nfhm-mnmuﬂudmhmmmwmmmm
m.dﬂ%ﬂdnmﬂmwmﬂmwwm
ation studies that identified inadequate levels of a~cumulated depreciation for cerain asset categories.
mmmwuummdmmmm
Wﬂummmnwm”m
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BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Doliars in Millions, Excapt Ps Bhare Amounts)

Note L — DISCONTINUANCE OF SFAS NO. 71 (Con rwed)

For financial reporting purposes, the average depreciuble lives of affected calegorias of long lived
telephone plant have been reduced to more closely reflect the economic and technological lives.
Differences between regulator-approved assel lives and the current estimaled economic esset lives are

Compoahe of Estirnatad
mtwul Econamic Assel
Cetegory Atest Uves
n Years)
Dighalswitching . . .......... N 170 100
N R s v v e s sonpespasanmnunedisntdad 105 8.1
Budedmetalliccable .............co0vnnvnnnes 20.0 140
Asrial metallic cable . .......... ..o esnnannan 200 140
Underground metallic cable . .........ccocuocuusus 25.0 12.0

The remaining components of the extraordinary charge, which partially offset the plant-related
portion of the overall charge, include §194 (after tax) related to the adoption by BeliSouth Telecommuni-
cations of issue basis accounting for its directory publishing revenues. BeliSouth's unreguiated subsid-
arles already recognized directory publishing revenues and production expenses using lssue basis

The overall extraordinary charge was also reduced by §71 (shter tax) to reflect the removal of
reguistory assets and llabilities that were recorded as a result of previous actions by regulators. Virtualh
all of these regulatory assets and liabilities arose in connection with the incorporation of new accounting
standards into the ratemaking process and were transitory in nature. in addition, the overall extraordi
nary charge was reduced by $19 (after tax) for the partial acceleration of unamortized investment o
credits associated with the reductions .~ asset cammying values and in asset lives.

Note M — SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOvY INFORMATION
1000 1998 1984

Cash Peld For:

Income Totes . ....... e i o AR T T $1.427 $1.231 $1.375
T e S PR e e S e s e $ 740 § TG0 § @665
Noncash Investing and Financing Activ tes:

Shares Issusd 0 Grantor TrUSES . .. .... «.ocvuuonnanasns $§ 35 § 38 § &

Note N — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The recorded amounts of cash and cash equivalents, lemporary cash inves.. . :ents, bank loans an-
commercial paper approximate fair value due to the shori-term nature of these instruments. The fa
value for BeliSouth Telecommunications Debentures and Notes are estmated based on the closin
market prices for each issue at December 31, 18986 and 1995. Fair value estimates for the Guarantee ¢
ESOP Debt, BeliSouth Capital Funding Corporation Notes, foreign exchange contracts, foreign currenc
mwmmmmuuqummmsmwmhmum
the estimates, the estimated amounts presented herein may not be indicative of the amounts th
BeliSouth could realize in a curent market exchange.




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in Milllons, Except Per Share Amounts)
Note N — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Foliowing is a summary of financial instruments where the fair - slues differ from the recorded
amounts as of December 31, 1896 and 1005:

i 1.

Estirnated Esmamairiod
Pacorded Falir Pecorded  Falr
Amound Velue Amouni Vehe

Long-Term Debt:
BeliSouth Telecommunications Debentures . . . . . $ 4500 § 4422 § 5076 § 5079
BaliSouth Telecommunications Notes . ........ 2175 2141 2178 2216
BellSouth Capital Funding Corporation Notes . . . 820 856 544 587
Guarantee of ESOPDebt . . . ......... .0 584 675 647 a3
Oft Balance Sheet Financlal instruments
interest Rale SWaps ............cocvnennns - m - (10)

Derivative Financlal Instruments. BeliSouth is, from time to time, party to CUency swap agree-
ments, interest rate swap agresments and foreign exchange forward contracts in its normal course of
business for purposes other than trading. These financial instruments are used to mitigate foreign
currency and interest rate risks, although to some extent they ©xpose the company to markaet risks and
credit risks. The credit risks associated with these instruments are controlied through the evaluation and
continual monitoring of the creditworthiness of the counterparties, in the event that a counterparty falls 1o
mnmdnm:wﬂﬂmﬂw.hhﬁthMWﬂﬂ.
nmmwmmmmnummmmmw
ments have been executed with creditworthy financial institutions. As such, BeliSouth considers the risk
ol nonperiormance to be remote.

Currency Swap. BeliSouth entered Into a currency swap in 1894 1o hedge European Currency
Units (ECU) 125,000,000 debt issued by Capital Funding. The curmency swap and related debt mature in
Fﬁm1mnmm.1m.numww.m“numﬂ
hmwlﬁﬂhnﬁdmm.ﬂnmﬂmﬂ.bmamﬂmhm
receivabie in the consolidated balance shoet at December 5, 1986,

Interest Rate Swaps. BeliSouth enters into interest rate v 2p agreements to exchange fixed and
variable rate inferest payment obligations without the exchange . the undertying principal amounts. As
of December 31, 1996, BellSouth was a party 10 various Inferes’ rate swaps with an aggregate notional
amount of $120. Under these swaps, BeliSouth paid fed raler averaging 7.13% and received variable
mmu‘mmmmummmm1um

Al December 31, 1995, BeliSouth was a party 1o two types of interest rate swaps with aggregate
notional amounts of $86 and $75, respectively. Under the 566 swa ps, BeliSouth paid fxed rates averg-
mrmmmmmmm,mnmw.mﬂm
rates averaging 5.96% and received fixed rates averaging 4.86%.

Other, mmmuu-dhmnﬂmmm“mmwm
$322 at Decomber 31, 1896. Of this total, $169 represents the U.S. Dollar equivalent of the outstanding
mdwwwnmmmwuwmm
up io a U.S. Dollar equivalent of $341 (530 miliion German Marks) st December 31, 1996.

Since there is no market for the instruments, it Is not practicable 10 estimate their fair value.

Conocentrations of Credit Risk. Financial instruments which potentially subject BeliSouth to
credit ris! mmummw,muummmmu




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Sha: ! Amounts)

Note N — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

these receivables, other than those from interexchange carmers. 4 imited due 10 the composition of th
customer base, which includes a large number of individuals and businesses. At December 31, 185
and 1995, approximately $492 and $520, respoctively, of trade accounts receivabie were from inter
exchange carriers.

Note O — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases. BellSouth has entered into operating leases for facilities and equipment used in opers
tions. Rental expense under operating leases was $269, $252 and $311 for 1996, 1995 and 199<

respectively. Capital leases currently in effect are not significant.

mmwmnmmmmmm
operating leases in effect ai December 31, 1896
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001  Theresfer  Totsl

Minimom rentsls . ..... $ 181 § 143 $ 121 $ 101 § 88 § 483 §1.117
— —— C— — -

Outside Plant. BeliSouth currently seli-insures all of its cutside plant against casualty losses. Tr
mmmammmnmlmm-mm. 1896 and 1985, respectively. Suc
mmmnummmmwmm-m
tible to damage from severe weather conditions and other perils, inciuding hurricanes.

Legal Claims. BeliSouth and Rts subsidiaries are subject 1o claims arising in the ordinary course
mmmdmmy.umvmwmmm empio

BellSouth Telecommunications 1o refund approx.mately $29, pius interest, based on an investigation
u1mm.mwuummmmdwm.mm.wm
Carolina Court of Common Pleas entered an orde affirming the Commission's order of the refur
BeliSouth Telecommunications intends 1o pursue ¢n appeal of this decision. The Commission h
mwummm'mmmmimmamm
1992 period is reached.

mmmmuwummmdwmm.m
hﬂvuﬁﬂwmnwmmmmnuﬂuuwmﬂmumm
results or cash flows.




BELLSOUTH CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Amo-.:1ts)

Note P — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

hmmmmﬂwmwnqmmu.w

umwmwmmunm1mm-wmmd

mwﬂmmmmﬂnﬂmwnu.Thmummim
include a work force reduction charge of $1,082, which reduced net income by $683.

1“ S ——
wm BB E W W W R R W TR EEE RN E N Hﬂ‘ “'|m “i‘m “Im
Oparating Income . . ...... s, £ TN S R P S $1,183 §$1,188 §$1201 $§1.207
Nt 0O Al s s st assnasessosranogescnces $ 670 § 629 $ 61 § 6
Eamings PerShare . ............ccoocnninnnes $ 98 § 6 § B § o
1995
Opersting ROVENUSS . . ... .covcnrvrmmnnnrnens $4200 $42390 $4432 54765
INCOME . iecsnssonsianansvssnssnses $1095 $1006 $1058 § 4
iIncome (Loss) Before Extraordinary Losses. ... .... $ 547 $ 557 § 550 §$ (99)
Extraordinary Loss for Discontinuance ol SFAS
No.7Ti,netoltax ........ RS e Tl e A B —_ (amne — —
Extraordinary Loss on Earty Extinguishment of Debt,
e | B e i o SR S —_ (16 — (62)
Net IncOme (LOBB) . ....coovverrsonnnnannnes § 547 $(2177) § 550 § (161)
Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Losses. . ...... $§ 55 § 56 § 58 § (10
Loss for Discontinuance of SFAS
NO. 71, DOt Of BB .....cccvnnsnsencssnnnnan — @7 — -
Extraordinary Loss on Earty Extinguishment of Debt,
NROIEEE ...ovssanssssssrsssnnsnnnsnanssss ., (02y — {.08)
NetIncome (LOSS) .......covvssacssrmonnenns .‘._E lE.m} $ 56 § !.m
63




SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

erty interests and include equipment revenue, net of cost. '
Toas Ended
December 31,
: 1396 1998
Cobular REVENUS, NBL % ... cvovevsvsnssassssssssassnasnssnassssns $ 2312 § 188
........................................... 1,308 1,08}
Depreciation and AMOMIZANON . . . .. .ooovvvstiiriransasassssannnans 364 20
Total Operating EXpenses . . . .....coovavveas L e — 1,672 1,36
L Y R (PP S R 640 52
Other Expenses, net (including Interest and taxes) .. ........ccovesarass an 2
NOLINODIMD o s soveserosvansansnssnssnsssasssssassarssssns $ 3683 %
Operating Margins as a Percentage of Revenue .
Including Depreciation and AMOMIZAION .. ....cocvrevianairnnranans 2TT™% 2T,
Excluding Depreciation and AMOMIEZAION . .. ... .covsrrrirorenasssss 434% 4,
Operational Comparisons (thousands):
Proportionate Cellular Population Served . .........oorevieineennens 40696 3993
Proportionate Celiular Customers . ... ....... «cccvcecasnrenessss 3612 284




ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

No change in accountants or disagreemaents on the adoption of approp ate accounting standards
or financial disclosure has occurred during the periods included in this reg

ITEMS 10 THROUGH 13.

information regarding executive officers required by Rem 401 of Regulation S-K is fumished in a
separate disclosure on page 22 in Part | of this report since the registrant did not furnish such information
in its definitive proxy statement prepared in accordance with Schedule 14A.

The additional information required by these ems will be included in the registrant’s definitive proxy
statement dated March 11, 1897 as lollows, and is herein incorporated by reference pursuant to General
Instruction G{3):

Ceaniive
o Desarpton Bttt
10, Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant . . . . ......... 5-12
1. Exacutive COMPONBRBION . ......vovevnenranssssanansss 21-28 (a)
12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Ownersand Management . . . .........coocvceveavnnrans 12
13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions . . ............ 21 (b

(a) mmwmmmmm mu'
not including “Five Year Performance Comparison™
{(b) Includes only “Compensation Commiftes Inturiocks and Insider Participation™

PART Iv
ITEM 14, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE: AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

P 1o
a. Documents filed as a pant of the report
(1) Financial Statements:
Report of Indopendent ACCOUNANES .. ..........ccneiravnnsannns 40
Consolidated Statements of INCOME . ... ......conee srsssvasssnns 41
Consolidated Balance Sheets . ... .....cov v eevees trerenrrrnns 42
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity . . . ... .. ............ 43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows .. ............civvveniinns 4
Notes to Consolidated Financial Bitatements . . ... ........oveuiiivnn 45-84

{2) Financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required
information is contained in the financial statements and notes thereto or
because such schedules are not required or applicable.

{3) Exhibits: Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the SEC, m
incorporated herein by reference as exhibits hersto, All
contracts or compensatory pians or amangements required 1o be filed as
exhil its to this Form 10-K Report pursuant to item 14(c) are filed as Exhibits
10a through 10y inclusive.
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100

10p

mﬁWHWMWhNMIMImhpu
ended December 31, 1890, File No. 1-8607).

Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporati 1 of BeliSouth Corporation. (Exhibit 3a-1
to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September ), 1885, File No. 1-8607).
wﬂmmmnh.w 10-Q for the quarter ended
Seplember 30, 1994, File No. 1-8607).
mwwmwwunmm-umd
report November 27, 1988).
mmmmnmdmdmmwmmd
mmwummmmwmmmmmmw.
Wuﬁwmwmwnmlmdw
such instrument to the SEC upon request.
mmmmmwmmmmmm:m
for the quanter ended September 30, 1896, File No. 1-8607).
mwwmmwmmmmmmum
the year ended Dacember 31, 1991, File No. 1-8607).
mmwmmmmwmmﬂ
amended and restated effective January 1, 1994, (Exhibit 10c-1 to Form 10-K for the year
ended Dacember 31, 1963, File No. 1-8607).

BeliSouth Corporation Executive Transfer Pian. (Exhibit 10ee to Registration
Statement No. 2-A7846).
mwmwmmw|MWFm1MhmM
ended December 31, 1689, File No. 1-8607). '
mwmmwm*mmw.
(Exhibit 10i to Registration Statement No. 2-87846).
WMMWMMMummm
effective September 23, 1996.
WWMWWMHWW
restated effective November 25, 1996,
BMWWEIHWHMMMHWMMM.
1ﬂ.m1&1um1mmm;wmmm. 1985, File No. 1-8607).
BellSouth Corporation Directors Retiremen Plan. (Exhibit 10qq to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1986, File No. 1-880 ).
WWWqu.{Emmmmm-xmmm
ended December 31, 1992, File No. 1-86(7).

Amendmaent dated November J, 1895 1o th.s BeliSouth Corporation Financial Counseling
Pian for Executives. (Exhibit 101-1 to Form 13K for the year ended December 31, 1895,

mmwmwmwmmm1ﬂmmn
anded December 31, 1882, File No. 1-8607).
mwm&mm*mmmw1mm

mammwwmww1mm
Form 10-Q for the quarter snced September 30, 1996, File No. 1-8607).

mwmwmmwmm
Form 10-K for the year ended Decembar 31, 1992, File No. 1-8807).

e = S~ e P oAl
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10u

10u-1

10v
10w

10x
10y
1
12
21
24
27
99%a

BeliSouth Personal Retirement Account Pension Pian, as amended and restated effoctive
July 1, 1896. (Exhibit 10r to Form 10-Q for the quans: ended Se~tember 30, 1996, File
No. 1-860T).

BeliSouth Corporation Trust Under Executive Benefit Plan(s) as ¢ »ended April 28, 1995.
(Exhiblt 10u-1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 188 File No. 1-8607).
Amendment dated May 23, 1986 to the BeliSouth Corporation Trust Under Exacutive
mw.mibinrumlwhnmmmm. 1096, Flle
BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Trust Under Exscutive Benefit Plan(s) as amended
April 28, 1995, (Exhibit 10v-1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1895 File

No. 1-8607).

Amendment dated May 23, 1996 1o the BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Trust Under
Executive Benefit Plan(s). (Exhibit 10t-1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1996,
File No, 1-8607),

BeliSouth Corporation Trust Under Board of Directors Benefit Plan(s) as amended April 28,
1995, (Exhiblt 10w-1 10 Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1095, File No. 1-8807).
Amendment dated May 23, 1996 to the BeliSouth Corporation Trust Under Board Directors
Benefit Plan(s). (Exhibit 10u-1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1898, File
No. 1-8607).

BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Trust Under Board of Directors Benefit Plan(s) as
amended April 28, 1895, (Exhibit 10x-1 to Form 10-Q for the quanier ended June 30, 1885,
File No. 1-8607). =

Amendment dated May 23, 1896 1o the BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Trust Under
Board of Directors Benefit Plan(s). (Exhibit 10v-1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1896, File No. 1-8607).

BeliSouth Corporation Stock Plan as amended on Seplember 23, 1896 and November 24,
1996,

BeliSouth Retirement Savings Plan as amende and restated effective July 1, 1896,
(Exhibit 10x to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Captember 30, 1896, File No. 1-8607).
BeliSouth Corporation Officer Estate Enhancement 'an and Agreement.

BeliSouth Change in Control Executive Severance Agr yements.
Computation of Eamings Per Share.

Computation of Ratio of Eamnings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of BellSouth.

Powers ol Attomey.

Financial Data Schedule.

Annual report on Form 11-K for BeliSouth Retirement £ wings Plan for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1996 (10 be filed as an amendme A hereto within 180 days of the
end of the perod covered by this report).

Annual report on Form 11-K for BeliSouth Savings and Security ESOP Plan for the flscal
MMMraiJﬂennMMummmethupd
the end of the period covered by this report).

b. Reports on Form B-K:

Dets of Event Eubject

January 23, 1897 Fourth Quarter 1996 Eamings Release




SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the riquirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
wmmwumumuuwmuwmmm.mm

BELLSC TH CORPORATION

/8] RUNALD M. DYKES

Ronald M. Dykes

" Executive Vice President and
Chis! Financial Officer
February 25, 1997

| Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signec
i below by the following persons on behall of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dats

| indicated.
s PRINGIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER:
¥ F. Duane Ackerman®
br President and Chief Executive Officer
i PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER:
: Ronald M. Dykes*
Exscutive Vice President and
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER:
! W. Pairick Shannon®
5 Vice President and Controller
1J
| DIRECTORS:
i F. Duane Ackerman® Phyliis Burke Davis*
) Reuben V. Anderson* John G. Mediin, Jr.*
James H. Blanchard® Aobin B. Smith*
J. Hyatt Brown* C. Dixon Spangler, Jr.*
John L. Clendenin®* Ronaid A. Terry*
!' Armando M. Codina® Thomas R. Wiliams*
it Marshall M. Criser* J. Tyles Witson
’ *By: /s/ RONALD M. DYKES
Ro~ald M. Dykes
(individually and 8s Attorney-in-Fact)
February 25, 1097
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We consent 10 the incorporation by reference in the registration statements of BeliSouth Corpora-
tion on Form §-3 (Nos, 33-20411, 3348029, 3349461, 33-51449, 33-83173 and 333-21233) and
Form S-8 (Nos. 33-38265, 33-38264, 33-38263, 33-30773, 33-30772, 33-26518, 3' 12165, 264802,
33-40450, 33301427, 333-01429 and 333-13783) of our repon, dated February 3, 19 °, which includes
an explanatory paragraph stating that the Company discontinued accounting for e operations of
BelSouth Telecommunications, Inc. in accordance with Statement of Financial Acc.unting Standards
No. 71, “"Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”, effective June 30, 1885, on our
audits of the consolidated financlal statements of BeliSouth Corporation as of December 31, 1696 and
1995, and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1986, which report is included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/a/ Coopers & Lybrand LLP

February 25, 1897




EXHIBIT O - 16(B)

DESCRIPTION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF APPLICANT

John Michael Doscher - President - BellSouth BSE, Inc. Mr. Doscher has over 25 years of
experience in the telecommunications industry with a wide range of telecommunications
manufacturers and operators, including Pacific Bell, Northern Telecom, Hutchinson
Communications and BellSouth. Mr. Doscher's most recent position has been as Assistant Vice
president - Strategic Management for BellSouth Telecommunications, responsible for
development of business strategies based on new and emerging markets, technology and
regulatory opportunities. Prior to assuming that position in 1996, Mr. Doscher was General
Manager - Network and Technology for Hutchinson Communications Ltd. in Hong Kong,

responsible for architecture design, procurement, delivery and operations.

Mr. Doscher received his undergraduate degree from Californi» State University - Sacramento
and has attended various executive development programs at University of California - Berkeley
and Comell University.

Ellen M. Mitchell - Vice President - Mass Market Sal~s and Service - BellSouth BSE, Inc. Ms.
Mitchell is responsible for identification, development acd delivery of consumer sales and
service capabilities, as well as customer care for the consun:+r market. She began her
telecommunications career over 14 years ago and has held poritions of increasing responsibility
with AT&T, BellSouth Advanced Systems, BellSouth Service: , BellSouth Telecommunications
and BellSouth Corporation. These positions have included resionsibilities at BellSouth
Telecommunications as Promotion manager - Consumer/Sma/; Business Voice Products,
Director - Product Innovation - Consumer Market and Directc r - Strategic Mariet Planning -
Consumer Market. Most recently, Ms. Mitchell has held the psition of Senior Director -
Emerging New Business Strategic Development, responsible fc+ leading cross-department and
cross-entity teams addressing strategic planning initiatives for E sllSouth Corporation.

Ms. Mitchell received her Bachelor of Science from the University of Alabama - Birmingham
and her Masters in Business Administration from Samford University.

David J, Mevers - Vice President - Business Sales and Service - BellSouth BSE, Inc. Mr. Meyers
is responsible for staffing internal and external sales organizations for meeting the needs of the
business ma %et and for delivery of products and services to that market. He has over 20 years of
experience in the Bell System and has held positions of increasing responsibility in the sales and
marketing organizations of AT&T ad South Central Bell (a predecessor of BellSouth
Telecommunications). Most recently, Mr. Meyers has held the positic2 of Senior Director -




	8-8 No. - 119
	8-8 No. - 120
	8-8 No. - 121
	8-8 No. - 122
	8-8 No. - 123
	8-8 No. - 124
	8-8 No. - 125
	8-8 No. - 126
	8-8 No. - 127
	8-8 No. - 128
	8-8 No. - 129
	8-8 No. - 130
	8-8 No. - 131
	8-8 No. - 132
	8-8 No. - 133
	8-8 No. - 134
	8-8 No. - 135
	8-8 No. - 136
	8-8 No. - 137
	8-8 No. - 138
	8-8 No. - 139
	8-8 No. - 140
	8-8 No. - 141
	8-8 No. - 142
	8-8 No. - 143
	8-8 No. - 144
	8-8 No. - 145
	8-8 No. - 146
	8-8 No. - 147
	8-8 No. - 148
	8-8 No. - 149
	8-8 No. - 150
	8-8 No. - 151
	8-8 No. - 152
	8-8 No. - 153
	8-8 No. - 154
	8-8 No. - 155
	8-8 No. - 156
	8-8 No. - 157
	8-8 No. - 158
	8-8 No. - 159
	8-8 No. - 160
	8-8 No. - 161
	8-8 No. - 162
	8-8 No. - 163
	8-8 No. - 164
	8-8 No. - 165
	8-8 No. - 166
	8-8 No. - 167
	8-8 No. - 168
	8-8 No. - 169
	8-8 No. - 170
	8-8 No. - 171
	8-8 No. - 172
	8-8 No. - 173
	8-8 No. - 174
	8-8 No. - 175
	8-8 No. - 176
	8-8 No. - 177
	8-8 No. - 178
	8-8 No. - 179
	8-8 No. - 180
	8-8 No. - 181
	8-8 No. - 182
	8-8 No. - 183
	8-8 No. - 184
	8-8 No. - 185
	8-8 No. - 186
	8-8 No. - 187
	8-8 No. - 188
	8-8 No. - 189
	8-8 No. - 190
	8-8 No. - 191
	8-8 No. - 192
	8-8 No. - 193
	8-8 No. - 194
	8-8 No. - 195
	8-8 No. - 196
	8-8 No. - 197
	8-8 No. - 198
	8-8 No. - 199
	8-8 No. - 200
	8-8 No. - 201
	8-8 No. - 202
	8-8 No. - 203
	8-8 No. - 204
	8-8 No. - 205
	8-8 No. - 206
	8-8 No. - 207
	8-8 No. - 208
	8-8 No. - 209
	8-8 No. - 210
	8-8 No. - 211
	8-8 No. - 212
	8-8 No. - 213
	8-8 No. - 214
	8-8 No. - 215
	8-8 No. - 216
	8-8 No. - 217
	8-8 No. - 218
	8-8 No. - 219
	8-8 No. - 220
	8-8 No. - 221
	8-8 No. - 222
	8-8 No. - 223
	8-8 No. - 224
	8-8 No. - 225
	8-8 No. - 226
	8-8 No. - 227
	8-8 No. - 228
	8-8 No. - 229
	8-8 No. - 230
	8-8 No. - 231
	8-8 No. - 232
	8-8 No. - 233
	8-8 No. - 234
	8-8 No. - 235
	8-8 No. - 236
	8-8 No. - 237
	8-8 No. - 238
	8-8 No. - 239
	8-8 No. - 240
	8-8 No. - 241
	8-8 No. - 242
	8-8 No. - 243
	8-8 No. - 244
	8-8 No. - 245
	8-8 No. - 246
	8-8 No. - 247
	8-8 No. - 248
	8-8 No. - 249
	8-8 No. - 250
	8-8 No. - 251
	8-8 No. - 252
	8-8 No. - 253
	8-8 No. - 254
	8-8 No. - 255
	8-8 No. - 256
	8-8 No. - 257
	8-8 No. - 258
	8-8 No. - 259
	8-8 No. - 260
	8-8 No. - 261
	8-8 No. - 262
	8-8 No. - 263
	8-8 No. - 264
	8-8 No. - 265
	8-8 No. - 266
	8-8 No. - 267
	8-8 No. - 268
	8-8 No. - 269
	8-8 No. - 270
	8-8 No. - 271
	8-8 No. - 272
	8-8 No. - 273
	8-8 No. - 274
	8-8 No. - 275
	8-8 No. - 276
	8-8 No. - 277
	8-8 No. - 278
	8-8 No. - 279
	8-8 No. - 280
	8-8 No. - 281
	8-8 No. - 282
	8-8 No. - 283
	8-8 No. - 284
	8-8 No. - 285
	8-8 No. - 286
	8-8 No. - 287
	8-8 No. - 288
	8-8 No. - 289
	8-8 No. - 290
	8-8 No. - 291
	8-8 No. - 292
	8-8 No. - 293
	8-8 No. - 294
	8-8 No. - 295
	8-8 No. - 296
	8-8 No. - 297
	8-8 No. - 298
	8-8 No. - 299
	8-8 No. - 300
	8-8 No. - 301
	8-8 No. - 302
	8-8 No. - 303
	8-8 No. - 304
	8-8 No. - 305
	8-8 No. - 306
	8-8 No. - 307
	8-8 No. - 308
	8-8 No. - 309
	8-8 No. - 310
	8-8 No. - 311
	8-8 No. - 312
	8-8 No. - 313
	8-8 No. - 314
	8-8 No. - 315
	8-8 No. - 316
	8-8 No. - 317
	8-8 No. - 318
	8-8 No. - 319
	8-8 No. - 320
	8-8 No. - 321
	8-8 No. - 322
	8-8 No. - 323



